
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING JUNE 2, 2016 • Page 1 of 5 

MEETING OF THE 

TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

2 NORTH MAIN STREET 

3rd FLOOR – CONFERENCE ROOM 

THURSDAY, JUNE 2, 2016 

3:00 P.M.  

AGENDA 

1. Discuss, as may be needed, Regular Meeting agenda items for the meeting posted for Thursday,
June 2, 2016

2. Discuss Code of Ordinances, Chapter 15 “Garbage, Refuse, and Recycling,” including, but not
limited to, the current requirements for waste hauling franchises.

3. Discuss possible amendments to Code of Ordinances, Chapter 2, Article II “Code of Ethics.”

4. Discuss Code of Ordinances, Chapter 16, Article VIII “Tattoo Shops” and City Charter Section
6.4 “Voluntary Submission of Legislation by the City Council.”

5. Discuss the status of right-of-way acquisition for the expansion of Prairie View Road and the
purchase of a portion of three properties and three temporary construction easements necessary
for the expansion.

Executive Session – Pursuant to Chapter 551, Government Code § 551.072 – Real Property –
The City Council may enter into executive session to discuss the purchase, exchange, lease or
value of real property relating to City projects, the public discussion of which would have a
detrimental effect on negotiations with a third party.



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING JUNE 2, 2016 • Page 2 of 5 

5:00 P.M. 

 MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

2 NORTH MAIN STREET 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS – 2ND FLOOR 

TEMPLE, TX 

TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
1. Invocation

2. Pledge of Allegiance

II. PUBLIC COMMENTS

Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may sign up to do so prior to this meeting. 
Public comments will be received during this portion of the meeting.  Please limit comments to three 
minutes.  No discussion or final action will be taken by the City Council.  

III. PROCLAMATIONS & SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS

3. Recognize the City of the Temple Employee of the Quarter for the second quarter of 2016.

IV. CONSENT AGENDA

All items listed under this section, Consent Agenda, are considered to be routine by the City Council 
and may be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be removed 
from the Consent Agenda at the request of any Councilmember and will be considered separately. 

4. Consider adopting a resolution approving the Consent Agenda items and the appropriate
resolutions and ordinances for each of the following:

Minutes

(A) May 19, 2016 Special and Regular Meeting

Contracts, Leases, & Bids

(B) 2016-8165-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of a portion of
three properties necessary for the expansion of Prairie View Road, purchasing three 
temporary construction easements, authorizing closing costs associated with the 
purchases, and authorizing the payment of relocation expenses, in an amount not to 
exceed $214,000. 



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING JUNE 2, 2016 • Page 3 of 5 

(C) 2016-8166-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of two E-One fire 
trucks in an amount not to exceed $1,860,000 from HallMark Fire Texas of Cleburne. 

(D) 2016-8167-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of one marked 
police vehicle in the amount of $43,195.99 from Caldwell Country Ford of Caldwell. 

(E) 2016-8168-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services 
agreement with Evergreen Solutions, LLC of Tallahassee, FL in an amount not to exceed 
$64,000 for a comprehensive compensation/classification plan update.   

(F) 2016-8169-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services 
agreement with H.W. Lochner, Inc. in an amount not to exceed $84,000, for right-of-way 
acquisition services associated with the reconstruction and expansion of Hogan Road 
from SH 317 to South Pea Ridge Road. 

(G) 2016-8170-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a construction contract with 
Fitzgerald Lawnscaper, Ltd. of Woodway in the amount of $193,950 for drainage 
improvements to the Korompai Soccer Complex. 

(H) 2016-8171-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a 3-year agreement for the 
rental/lease of non-civil service uniforms and floor mats in the estimated annual amount 
of $45,000 with Cintas Corporation of Round Rock. 

(I) 2016-8172-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an increase in the estimated 
expenses in FY2016 for the hauling and disposal of sludge by S&M Vacuum & Waste, 
Ltd of Killeen from $160,000 to $250,000. 

(J) 2016-8173-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the City Manager to accept the 
donation of a 2.96-square-foot sidewalk easement and a 0.014-acre temporary 
construction easement in the C.S. Masters Survey, Abstract No. 550, Temple, Bell 
County, Texas, necessary for the construction of a sidewalk along North 31st Street. 

Ordinances – Second & Final Reading 

(K) 2016-4771: SECOND READING – Z-FY-16-20: Consider adopting an ordinance 
authorizing a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to install a proposed 115' stealth monopole 
for Verizon Wireless at the Mueller building site on a tract of land of 0.0258 +/- acres, 
situated in the S. Bottsford Survey, Abstract No. 118, Bell County, Texas, located at 7050 
North General Bruce Drive. 

(L) 2016-4772: SECOND READING – A-FY-16-02: Consider adopting an ordinance 
authorizing the abandonment and conveyance of 146.78 feet of a 20-foot-wide alley 
located between Lot 6, Block 1, Black’s Addition, and Lot 6, Block 2, Black’s Addition, City 
of Temple, Bell County, Texas. 

(M) 2016-4773: SECOND READING – Z-FY-16-19: Consider adopting an ordinance 
authorizing a rezoning from Agricultural (AG) to Light Industrial (LI), and to consider and 
recommend action on a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow for landfill use in the LI 
zone on 283.73 +/- acre tract of land, recently annexed into the City of Temple by 
Ordinance No. 2015-4733, located to the south of Little Flock Road and to the west of 
Bob White Road. 



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING JUNE 2, 2016 • Page 4 of 5 

Misc. 

(N) 2016-8174-R: Consider adopting a resolution ratifying an application for Tobacco and E-
Cigarette Enforcement funding from the Texas School Safety Center (TxSSC) in the 
amount of $7,275 for the purposes of enforcing Subchapter H, Chapter 161 of the Texas 
Health and Safety Code for fiscal year 2017. 

(O) 2016-8175-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing budget amendments for fiscal 
year 2015-2016. 

V. REGULAR AGENDA 

ORDINANCES – FIRST READING/PUBLIC HEARING 

5. 2016-4774:  FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING: Consider adopting an ordinance amending
Chapter 41, “Credit Access Businesses,” of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Temple, Texas
to delete Section 41-11 “Submission of Quarterly Report.”

6. 2016-4775: FIRST READING  - PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-16-21: Consider adopting an
ordinance authorizing a rezoning from Single Family Three - Planned Development (SF-3-PD)
District to General Retail (GR) District on Lots 4-7, 21-25, Block 13, Hilldell Estates, located at
18 South Pea Ridge.

7. 2016-4776: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-16-22: Consider adopting an
ordinance authorizing a rezoning from Agricultural (AG) district to General Retail (GR) district on
0.993 +/- acres of land situated in and being a part of the Baldwin Robertson Survey, A-17, Bell
County, Texas, located east of State Highway 317 and south of Tarver Drive, addressed as 6401
State Highway 317.

8. 2016-4777: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-16-24: Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a rezoning from Agricultural (AG) to General Retail (GR) on 8.436 +/-
acres of land, situated in the Maximo Moreno Survey, Abstract 14, Bell County, Texas, located 
at 4350 South 5th Street, Temple, Texas.

9. 2016-4778: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-16-25: Consider adopting an
ordinance authorizing rezoning from Multifamily-2 (MF-2) to Office-2 (O-2) on .711 +/- acres of
land, Lot 1, Block 1, Vandiver Subdivision, Bell County, 416 North 11th Street, Temple, Texas.

10. 2016-4779: FIRST READING - PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-16-26: Consider adopting an
ordinance authorizing a rezoning from Light Industrial (LI) district to Single Family One (SF-1)
district on 1.88 +/- acres, out of the Redding Roberts Survey, Abstract No. 345, Bell County,
Texas, located at 3221 West Avenue R.

11. 2016-4780: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING – Z-FY-16-27: Consider adopting an
ordinance authorizing amendments Ordinance No. 2005-4025 for the existing Planned
Development-General Retail District (PD-GR) with the Planned Development site plan for Lots
6 & 7, Block 1, Adam's Island Commercial Subdivision, for a new building with parking lot and
sidewalks, new water and sewer services, and new storm sewer.



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING JUNE 2, 2016 • Page 5 of 5 

12. 2016-4781: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-16-28: Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a rezoning from Single Family-One District (SF-1) to Two Family District 
(2F) for an existing duplex, on Pt 2 of Lot 2, Block 1, Roselawn Addition, located at 1408 and 
1410 North 5th Street. 

 
13. 2016-4782: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-16-32: Consider adopting an 

ordinance authorizing a rezoning from Two Family (2F) District for the east 40 feet of Lots 1 and 
2, Block 1, Fairview Addition (1401 and 1405 South 33rd Street), and from TMED T5-e located 
at 1404 South 31st Street to Planned Development District TMED T5-e (PD T5-e) to allow for a 
commercial parking lot to serve an existing business. 

 
RESOLUTIONS: 
 
14. 2016-8176-R: Consider adopting a resolution calling public hearings to consider the annexation 

of approximately 2.149 acres of Dubose Road right-of-way located to the south of FM 93 and 
north of Forrester Road and directing Staff to develop a municipal services plan. 

 
 

The City Council reserves the right to discuss any items in executive (closed) session whenever permitted by the 
Texas Open Meetings Act. 
 
I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of this Notice of Meeting was posted in a public place at 
1:00 PM, on Friday, May 27, 2016. 
 
 
_________________________ 
City Secretary, TRMC 



 

 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
   

06/02/16 
Item #4(A) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Lacy Borgeson, City Secretary   
  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Approve Minutes: 
  

(A) May 19, 2016 Special and Regular Meeting 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve minutes as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Copies of minutes are enclosed for Council review. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: N/A 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
May 19, 2016 Special and Regular Meeting 
 
 
  



 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

06/02/16 
Item #4(B) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1  

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 
Jim Kachelmeyer, Deputy City Attorney  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:   Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of a portion of three 
properties necessary for the expansion of Prairie View Road, purchasing three temporary construction 
easements, authorizing closing costs associated with the purchases, and authorizing the payment of 
relocation expenses, in an amount not to exceed $214,000.  
 
Executive Session – Pursuant to Chapter 551, Government Code § 551.072 – Real Property – The City 
Council may enter into executive session to discuss the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real 
property relating to City projects, the public discussion of which would have a detrimental effect on 
negotiations with a third party. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The City is currently in the design phase for the proposed expansion of Prairie View 
Road from North Pea Ridge Road to the water tower approximately 0.4 miles west of FM 317, including 
a realigned intersection at FM 317. The design requires the acquisition of right-of-way from eighteen 
different property owners. Appraisals have been performed on the parcels, offers have been made to 
the property owners based upon those appraisals, and the City’s consultant is preparing the required 
relocation studies.  
 
Agreements have been reached with four of the property owners, and extensions to submit counter 
offers have been granted to several others.  Staff is actively negotiating with each of the remaining 
property owners and hopes to reach agreements with each of them this summer. At this time, Staff is 
also asking for authorization to purchase the necessary right-of-way from three properties, purchase 
the accompanying temporary construction easements, pay closing costs, and pay any relocation 
expenses that may be required by law, in an amount not to exceed $214,000. The addresses of the 
three properties are listed below: 
 
8890 Prairie View Road 
8710 Prairie View Road 
8640 Prairie View Road 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funding is appropriated for the purchase of a portion of the three properties 
necessary for the expansion of Prairie View Road in account 365-3400-531-6862, project #101257. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Resolution 



1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO.     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF A PORTION OF THREE 
PROPERTIES NECESSARY FOR THE EXPANSION OF PRAIRIE VIEW 
ROAD, AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF THREE TEMPORARY 
CONSTRUCTION EASEMENTS, AUTHORIZING THE PAYMENT OF 
CLOSING COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH THESE PURCHASES; 
AUTHORIZING THE PAYMENT OF RELOCATION EXPENSES IN AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $214,000; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the City is currently in the design phase for the proposed expansion of Prairie 
View Road from North Pea Ridge Road to the water tower approximately 0.4 miles west of FM 
317, including a realigned intersection at FM 317; 
 
 Whereas, the design requires the acquisition of right-of-way from eighteen different 
property owners - appraisals have been performed on the parcels, offers have been made to the 
property owners based upon those appraisals, and the City’s consultant is preparing the required 
relocation studies;  
 
 Whereas, agreements have been reached with four of the property owners, and 
extensions to submit counter offers have been granted to several others - Staff is actively 
negotiating with each of the remaining property owners and hopes to reach agreements with each 
of them this summer; 
 
 Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize the purchase of necessary right-of-way 
from three properties, purchase the accompanying temporary construction easements, pay 
closing costs, and pay any relocation expenses that may be required by law, in an amount not to 
exceed $214,000; 
 
 Whereas, the properties are located at: 
  
     8890 Prairie View Road  8710 Prairie View Road      8640 Prairie View Road 
  
 Whereas, funding for the purchase of a portion of these three properties for the expansion 
of Prairie View Road is available in Account No. 365-3400-531-6862, Project No. 101257; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: The City Council authorizes the purchase of a portion of three properties 
necessary for the expansion of Prairie View Road, authorizes the purchase of three temporary 
construction easements, authorizes the payment of closing costs associated with these purchases, 
and authorizes the payment of relocation expenses, in an amount not to exceed $214,000. 



2 
 

 
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, after approval as 
to form by the City Attorney, to execute any documents that may be necessary for the purchase 
of these properties. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of June, 2016. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 

 

 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
06/02/16 

Item #4(C) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Mitch Randles, Fire Chief 
Belinda Mattke, Director of Purchasing 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of two E-One fire trucks 
in an amount not to exceed $1,860,000 from HallMark Fire Texas of Cleburne. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description.  
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Included in the adopted FY2016 Capital Improvement Program budget, financed 
with 2016 Certificate of Obligation bonds, is funding for the purchase of a fire platform ladder truck and 
a fire pumper truck. The purchase of these two trucks will improve the front line fire fleet by turning 
Quint 6 (Asset #11192), a 2001 75-foot ladder truck, and Engine 7 (Asset #11324), a 2001 truck, into 
reserve units.  It will also enable the retirement of Engine 22 (Asset #9993), a 1995 truck.   
 
Staff carefully defined the specifications of each truck and worked closely with two different fire truck 
manufacturers, Emergency-One (“E-One”) (marketed by HallMark Fire Texas) and Pierce (marketed 
by Siddons-Martin Emergency Group), to receive two independent sets of competitive cooperative-
supported quotes. Staff narrowed the selection of fire truck manufacturers down to these two 
companies based on each of these manufacturers having (1) a single-source manufacturing and 
warranty approach and (2) repair centers in Texas.  E-One was determined by staff to provide the best 
value for each truck, and accordingly, staff is recommending the purchase of both trucks from E-One. 
 
E-One’s current pricing for the HP100 Platform truck with a 100-foot vertical reach and 91’6” horizontal 
reach is $1,156,273.88.  E-One’s current pricing of the Pumper with a 750-gallon water tank is 
$687,237.88. Staff will participate in a pre-build meeting in June, at which time the final details of each 
truck will be worked out and final pricing will be determined at an amount not to exceed $1,165,000 for 
the Platform truck and $695,000 for the Pumper.      
 
HallMark Texas has been awarded contract #FS12-15 by the Houston-Galveston Area Cooperative 
(HGAC), which staff is recommending the use of for these purchases.  Contracts awarded through 
HGAC have been competitively procured and meet the statutory procurement requirements for Texas 
municipalities. 
 
The pricing received is based on pre-payment of the trucks within 20 days of placement of the order. 
The pre-payment discount totals approximately $60,000, and is offset by the cost of performance bonds 
in the amount of approximately $13,000, for a net savings of approximately $47,000. 



06/02/16 
Item #4(C) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 
It is anticipated that the trucks will take approximately 8-10 months to construct with delivery to the City 
in the spring of 2017.        
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funding for the purchase of these fire trucks is appropriated in account 365-2200-
522-6776, as follows:   
 
 Platform   Pumper   

 Ladder Truck  Truck   

 Project #101338  Project #101339  Total 
Project Budget  $        1,300,000   $           600,000    $ 1,900,000 

Encumbered/Committed to Date         -             -  - 

Purchase of Fire Trucks-HallMark Tex (1,165,000)  
  

(695,000)  
 

(1,860,000)

Remaining Funds  $          135,000   $          (95,000)   $     40,000  
 
 
The remaining funds totaling $40,000 will be used to outfit the trucks with fire equipment upon their 
arrival.    
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

Resolution 
 
  



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO.      
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF TWO E-ONE FIRE TRUCKS, IN AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $1,860,000, FROM HALLMARK FIRE TEXAS OF 
CLEBURNE, TEXAS; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

               
  
 Whereas, the fiscal year 2016 Capital Improvement Plan budget, financed with 2016 
Certificate of Obligation bonds, includes funding for the purchase of a fire platform ladder truck 
and a fire pumper truck – these two trucks will improve the front line fire fleet by turning Quint 6, 
a 2001 75-foot ladder truck, and Engine 7, a 2001 truck, into reserve units and it will also enable 
the retirement of Engine 22, a 1995 truck; 
 

Whereas, Staff carefully defined the specifications of each truck and worked closely with 
two different fire truck manufacturers to receive two independent sets of competitive cooperative-
supported quotes - the competitive quotes were narrowed down based on each of the 
manufacturers having  a single-source manufacturing and warranty approach and  repair centers in 
Texas; 
 

Whereas, HallMark was determined by staff to provide the best value for each truck, and 
Staff recommends the purchase of both trucks from HallMark Fire Texas of Cleburne, Texas; 
 
 Whereas, HallMark Fire Texas has been awarded a Houston-Galveston Area Cooperative 
contract (HGAC), and Staff recommends this contract be used for these purchase – contracts 
awarded through HGAC have been competitively procured and meet the statutory procurement 
requirements for Texas municipalities;   
 
 Whereas, funding for the purchase of two E-One fire trucks from HallMark Fire Texas is 
appropriated in Account No. 365-2200-522-6776; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council authorizes the purchase of two E-One fire trucks, in an amount not 
to exceed $1,860,000, from HallMark Fire Texas of Cleburne, Texas utilizing a Houston-Galveston 
Area Cooperative contract. 
 

Part 2: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, after approval as to 
form by the City Attorney, to execute any documents that may be necessary for this purchase. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act.  



2 
 

 
 

 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd of June, 2016. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
06/02/26 

Item #4(D) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Floyd Mitchell, Chief of Police Department 
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:   Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of one marked police 
vehicle in the amount of $43,195.99 from Caldwell Country Ford of Caldwell. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Staff is recommending the purchase of one marked Ford Explorer to replace Unit 
number 12569 (2007 Ford Crown Victoria) that was involved in an accident on March 9, 2016.  
 
Caldwell Country Ford has been awarded contract #430-13 by BuyBoard, which staff is recommending 
using for this purchase.  Contracts awarded through BuyBoard have been competitively procured and 
meet the statutory procurement requirements for Texas municipalities.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT:    A budget adjustment is being presented to Council to appropriate insurance 
proceeds and police revenue for replacement of the vehicle and for purchase of the necessary 
equipment.  
 
Upon approval of the budget adjustment, funding for purchase of the replacement vehicle including the 
radio and necessary equipment will be appropriated in account 110-2031-521-6213, project #101509, 
in the amount of $51,450.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Budget Adjustment 
Resolution 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 





1 
 

RESOLUTION NO.      
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF ONE MARKED POLICE VEHICLE IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $43,195.99, FROM CALDWELL COUNTRY FORD OF CALDWELL, 
TEXAS; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

               
  
 Whereas, Staff recommends the purchase of one marked 2016 Ford Explorer to replace a 
2007 Ford Crown Victoria, which was involved in an accident on March 9, 2016;   
 
 Whereas, Caldwell Country Ford has been awarded a BuyBoard contract, which Staff is 
recommending be used for this purchase - contracts awarded through BuyBoard have been 
competitively procured and meet the statutory procurement requirements for Texas municipalities; 

 
Whereas, a budget adjustment to the fiscal year 2016 budget needs to be approved to 

appropriate insurance proceeds and police revenue for replacement of the vehicle and purchase of 
necessary equipment; 

 
Whereas, upon approval of the budget adjustment, funds will be available in Account No. 

110-2031-521-6213, Project No. 101509; and 
 

 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 

 
Part 1: The City Council authorizes the purchase of a 2016 Ford Explorer, in the amount of 

$43,195.99, from Caldwell Country Ford of Caldwell, Texas, utilizing the BuyBoard Local 
Government Online Purchasing Cooperative. 

 
Part 2: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, after approval as to 

form by the City Attorney, to execute any documents that may be necessary for this purchase. 
 
Part 3: The City Council authorizes an amendment to the fiscal year 2016 budget, 

substantially it the form of the copy attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A.’ 
 
Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act.  



2 
 

 
 

 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of June, 2016. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

06/02/16 
Item #4(E) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Brynn Myers, Assistant City Manager 
Belinda Mattke, Director of Purchasing 
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services agreement 
with Evergreen Solutions, LLC of Tallahassee, FL in an amount not to exceed $64,000 for a 
comprehensive compensation/classification plan update. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  Staff prepared a Request for Proposals from qualified firms for a comprehensive 
review and update of our classification system (i.e. our grade and salary structure) for our general 
government positions, to include analysis and placement of all our current positions, with 
recommendations for improvements and modifications to our current system. In addition, the 
encompassed work requested includes a compensation market update, to include a review and 
inclusion of other supplemental pay programs. 

Proposals were received from the following companies: 
 
(1) Springsted Incorporated   (5) Evergreen Solutions, LLC 
(2) Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc.  (6) forWord Connections, LLC 
(3) Condrey & Associates, Inc.    (7) Management Advisory Group International, Inc. 
(4) JJFitzgerald Business Consultants   (8) The Segal Company (Western States) Inc. 
 
A committee of staff representing City Manager’s Office, Human Resources, Purchasing, Parks, Public 
Works, Legal, and Finance reviewed the proposals received and narrowed the list to two firms, 
Management Advisory Group International, Inc. and Evergreen Solutions, LLC, who were then invited 
to Temple for an interview on May 16th. Following the interviews, the committee determined that 
Evergreen Solutions, LLC was the highest ranked firm based on the pre-established evaluation criteria.   
 
 
 
 
 

 



06/02/16 
Item #4(E) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

The scope of services defined for the project are as follows: 
 

1. Project Initiation 
2. Project Outreach and Employee Participation 
3. Job Classification Analysis 
4. Conduct Market Salary Survey 
5. Solution Analysis and Development 
6. Finalize Project 

 
It is anticipated that the project will kick off in late June with completion of the project by October 31, 
2016. 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Funding of this project in the amount of $100,000 is appropriated in the FY2016 
budget in the following accounts:   
 

 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 
 
  

Funding Source Account # Amount

General Fund 110-2700-515-2616 73,390$ 
Hotel/Motel Fund 240-4400-551-2616 3,630      
Drainage Fund 292-2900-534-2616 3,430      
Utility Fund 520-5000-535-2616 19,550   
Total Available Funding 100,000 
Encumbered/Committed to Date -              
Professional services agreement - 
Evergreen Solutions, LLC (64,000)  
Remaining Funds 36,000$ 



1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO.     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
WITH EVERGREEN SOLUTIONS, LLC OF TALLAHASSEE, 
FLORIDA, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $64,000, FOR A 
COMPREHENSIVE/CLASSIFICATION PLAN UPDATE; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, Staff prepared a Request for Proposals to obtain bids from qualified firms 
for a comprehensive review and update of the City’s classification system for general 
government positions, to include analysis and placement of all current positions, with 
recommendations for improvements and modifications to our current system; 

 Whereas, in addition, the encompassed work will include a compensation market 
update, including a review and inclusion of other supplemental pay programs; 

 Whereas, a Staff committee reviewed the proposals received and recommends 
Council authorize a professional services agreement with Evergreen Solutions, LLC, in an 
amount not to exceed $64,000 – Evergreen Solutions was the highest ranked firm based on 
the pre-established evaluation criteria;   
 
 Whereas, funding is available for this professional services agreement in the 
following accounts: 

Account No. 110-2700-515-2616;  Account No. 240-4400-551-2616; 
Account No. 292-2900-534-2616;  Account No. 520-5000-535-2616; and  

 
Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 

interest to authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, after approval 
as to form by the City Attorney, to execute a professional services agreement with Evergreen 
Solutions, LLC of Tallahassee, Florida, in an amount not to exceed $64,000, for a 
comprehensive compensation/classification plan update. 
 
 Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



2 
 

 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of June, 2016. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

06/02/16 
Item #4(F) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1  

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 
James Kachelmeyer, Deputy City Attorney 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services agreement 
with H.W. Lochner, Inc. in an amount not to exceed $84,000, for right-of-way acquisition services 
associated with the reconstruction and expansion of Hogan Road from SH 317 to South Pea Ridge 
Road. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 

ITEM SUMMARY:   The City of Temple has adopted a Transportation Capital Improvement Program 
which identifies capacity and connectivity improvements to Hogan Road.  Proposed improvements 
include reconstruction and expansion of Hogan Road from SH 317 to South Pea Ridge Road to a three-
lane collector roadway with sidewalk and utility upgrades.  The engineer’s opinion of probable cost for 
the construction of Hogan Road is $2,588,596. 
 

On January 21st, Council authorized a professional services agreement with BSP in the amount of 
$357,200 to design, bid, administer, and inspect the expansion of Hogan Road. On April 21st, Council 
authorized a deductive contract amendment to the professional services agreement with BSP in the 
amount of $78,000. Design of the project will take approximately 300 calendar days from the Notice to 
Proceed issued earlier this year. 
 

The preliminary design of the expansion of Hogan Road from SH 317 to South Pea Ridge Road may 
require right-of-way from nine properties.  Accordingly, Staff solicited a proposal from H.W. Lochner, 
Inc. (“Lochner”) to provide right-of-way acquisition services for the project, as they are familiar with the 
area and best understand the services needed.  Staff is working with Lochner on a similar project and 
has been pleased with the company’s work.  According to Lochner’s proposal, the firm will offer multiple 
services during the acquisition process, including, but not limited to, project management, title, and 
appraisal services.  Fees for condemnation support are not currently included in this proposal and will 
be addressed later as needed. 
 

Accordingly, Staff recommends entering into a services agreement with H.W. Lochner, Inc., in an 
amount not to exceed $84,000, for right-of-way acquisition services associated with the reconstruction 
and expansion of Hogan Road from SH 317 to South Pea Ridge Road.  
 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Funding for the award of a professional services agreement for right-of-way services 
with H.W. Lochner, Inc. is appropriated in account 365-3400-531-6857, project #100952. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution  



 1

RESOLUTION NO.     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
WITH H.W. LOCHNER, INC., OF ROUND ROCK, TEXAS, IN AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $84,000, FOR RIGHT-OF-WAY 
ACQUISITION SERVICES ASSOCIATED WITH THE 
RECONSTRUCTION AND EXPANSION OF HOGAN ROAD FROM 
STATE HIGHWAY 317 TO SOUTH PEA RIDGE ROAD; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the City of Temple has adopted a Transportation Capital Improvement 
Program which identifies capacity and connectivity improvements to Hogan Road – certain 
proposed improvements include reconstruction and expansion of Hogan Road from State 
Highway 317 to South Pea Ridge Road to a three-lane collector roadway with sidewalk and 
utility upgrades; 
 
 Whereas, on January 21, 2016, Council authorized a professional services agreement 
with BSP Engineers, Inc. to design, bid, administer, and inspect the expansion of Hogan 
Road; 
 
 Whereas, the preliminary design of the expansion of Hogan Road from State 
Highway 317 to South Pea Ridge Road may require right-of-way from nine properties - Staff 
solicited a proposal from H.W. Lochner, Inc. (“Lochner”) to provide right-of-way acquisition 
services for the project, as they are familiar with the area and best understand the services 
needed; 
 
 Whereas, Staff is working with Lochner on a similar project and has been pleased 
with their work - Lochner will offer multiple services during the acquisition process, 
including, but not limited to, project management, title, and appraisal services; 
 
 Whereas, Staff recommends entering into a services agreement with H.W. Lochner, 
Inc., in an amount not to exceed $84,000, for right-of-way acquisition services associated 
with the reconstruction and expansion of Hogan Road from State Highway 317 to South Pea 
Ridge Road; 
 
 Whereas, funding is available for this professional services agreement in Account 
No. 365-3400-531-6857, Project No. 100952; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 
 



 2

 
 
 Part 1: The City Manager, or his designee, is authorized to execute a professional 
services agreement, after approval as to form by the City Attorney, with H.W. Lochner, Inc. 
of Round Rock, Texas, in an amount not to exceed $84,000, for right-of-way acquisition 
services associated with the reconstruction and expansion of Hogan Road from State 
Highway 317 to South Pea Ridge Road. 
 
 Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of June, 2016. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

06/02/16 
Item #4(G) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

 
 
DEPT. /DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:   
 
Kevin Beavers, Director of Parks and Recreation  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a construction contract with 
Fitzgerald Lawnscaper, Ltd. of Woodway in the amount of $193,950 for drainage improvements to the 
Korompai Soccer Complex.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  One of the projects approved in the 2015 Parks Bond was addressing drainage 
concerns at the Ferenc Korompai Soccer Complex in Wilson Community Park. 
 
This project includes re-establishing the drainage system that was in place when the complex was 
constructed, creating two catch basins to collect the water from the drainage system, installing 24” 
storm sewer piping to remove the collected water from the area, and field leveling services and re-
seeding on soccer field #6. 
 
As shown on the attached bid tabulation, on May 17, 2016 the City of Temple received three bids for 
this project. Bids ranged from a low of $193,950 to a high of $245,584.52, with Fitzgerald Lawnscaper, 
Ltd. submitting the low bid. This resolution also provides for the waving of construction permit fees. 
 
The Parks and Recreation Department has worked with Fitzgerald on the construction of the football 
field in Wilson Park and have found them to be a responsible contractor.  Also attached to this Agenda 
Item is the Engineer’s Letter of Recommendation from Clark & Fuller.  
 
It is anticipated that the construction of this project will commence in June with completion of the project 
in early September.   
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  This project is funded by the Parks GO Bonds that were approved by voters on May 
9, 2015.  Funding is appropriated in account 362-3500-552-6405, project 101314, as identified below: 
 

Project Budget  $   254,745 
        Encumbered/Committed To Date       (35,410)        

Construction Contract – Fitzgerald Lawnscaper, Ltd        (193,950) 
          Remaining Funds         $     25,385 

 



06/02/16 
Item #4(G) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Engineer’s Letter of Recommendation  
Bid Tabulation 
Resolution 
  
  



Korompai Soccer Fields Drainage Improvements Project – Letter of Recommendation Page 1 
 

 
 

 
 

215 North Main Street 
Temple, Texas 76501 

 (254) 899-0899 
Fax (254) 899-0901 

www.clark-fuller.com 
Firm Registration No: F-10384 

 
  

 
 
 
May 18, 2016 
 
 
City of Temple 
Val Roming 
1909 Curtis B. Elliot Drive 
Temple, Texas 76503 
 
 
Re: Korompai Soccer Fields Drainage Improvements Project 
 
 
Dear Mr. Roming,  
 
On May 17th, we received three (3) bids for the Korompai Soccer Fields Drainage 
Improvements Project.  We have reviewed each of the bids for accuracy and completeness.      
Fitzgerald’s Lawnscaper, Ltd. submitted a Base Bid totaling $193,950.00 making them the 
apparent low bidder.  Please see the enclosed Bid Tabulation Sheet and Bid Schedule Breakout 
for detailed information.   
 
The engineer’s final opinion of probable cost for this project is $245,000.00 and we are 
recommending that you award the contract to Fitzgerald’s Lawnscaper, Ltd. We believe, through 
personal experience, that Fitzgerald’s Lawnscaper, Ltd. is qualified and is capable of providing 
the Korompai Soccer Fields Drainage Improvements as required in this project. 
 
We believe that Fitzgerald’s Lawnscaper, Ltd. is a proven company with many successfully 
completed projects and we look forward to working with them on this project. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
 
Monty Clark, P.E., CPESC 
 

http://www.clark-fuller.com/�


Base Bid
No. Item Description Est. Quan. UOM Unit Price Total Cost Unit Price Total Cost Unit Price Total Cost

Base Bid
1 Furnish and Install Site preperation, miscellanneous demolition, & site cleaning 100% LS 19,957.00$   19,957.00$           11,960.00$                        11,960.00$                     12,583.00$   12,583.00$                  
2 Provide Mobilization Bonds, Permits and Insurance 100% LS 12,043.00$   12,043.00$           25,325.00$                        25,325.00$                     $11,288.00 11,288.00$                  
3 Provide and implement a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan 100% LS 994.00$        994.00$                13,500.00$                        13,500.00$                     1,215.00$     1,215.00$                    
4 Provide and Implement a Trench Saftey Plan 100% LS 619.00$        619.00$                500.00$                             500.00$                          4,317.00$     4,317.00$                    
5 Provide Sawcut, Remove and Replace Existing Reiforced Concrete Sidewalk 14 SY 150.50$        2,107.00$             120.00$                             1,680.00$                       204.00$        2,856.00$                    
6 Relocate Existing Irrigation System 100% LS 20,135.00$   20,135.00$           12,500.00$                        12,500.00$                     15,821.00$   15,821.00$                  
7 Provide All unclassified Earthwork for all Cuts and Fills 100% LS 58,582.00$   58,582.00$           20,500.00$                        20,500.00$                     21,813.00$   21,813.00$                  
8 Provide New Dwarf Tif 419 Bermuda Grass, via Hydromulch Grass Seeding 100% LS 18,588.00$   18,588.00$           12,135.00$                        12,135.00$                     16,008.00$   16,008.00$                  
9 Provide 4" Sandy Loam Topsoil, Field Restoration, ans Dwarf Tif 419 Bermuda 7850 SY 6.84$            53,694.00$           8.40$                                 65,940.00$                     11.30$          88,705.00$                  
10 Provide New Stone Rip Rap Rock Outlet Protection 60 SY 145.18$        8,710.80$             58.00$                               3,480.00$                       51.20$          3,072.00$                    
11 Provide New 4'x4' Precast Type E Storm Sewer Inlet with Heavy Duty Lid Assembly 2 EA 4,540.00$     9,080.00$             2,850.00$                          5,700.00$                       6,852.00$     13,704.00$                  
12 Provide New Orecast Concrete Headwall 2 EA 2,604.00$     5,208.00$             1,900.00$                          3,800.00$                       4,969.00$     9,938.00$                    
13 Provide New 24" RCP Class III Storm Sewer 242 LF 134.66$        32,587.72$           65.00$                               15,730.00$                     95.00$          22,990.00$                  
14 Provide New 4' Sidewalk Drain 1 EA 3,279.00$     3,279.00$             1,200.00$                          1,200.00$                       3,775.00$     3,775.00$                    

245,584.52$      193,950.00$               228,085.00$            
Total Base Bid
Korompia Soccor Fields Drainage Improvements

Quality W Contractors

Bid Tabulation Sheet
Korompai Soccer Fields Dainage Improvements

Bid Date: May 17th, 2016

Holy Contractors LLC Fitzgerald's / Fitzgerald Lawnscaper, Ltd.



1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO.     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH 
FITZGERALD LAWNSCAPER, LTD. OF WOODWAY, TEXAS, IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $193,950, FOR DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS TO THE 
KOROMPAI SOCCER COMPLEX; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, one of the projects approved in the 2015 Parks Bond was addressing drainage 
concerns at the Korompai Soccer Complex in Wilson Community Park; 
 

Whereas, this project will include reestablishing the drainage system that was in place 
when the complex was constructed, the creation of two catch basins to collect water from the 
drainage system, installation of 24-inch storm sewer piping to remove the collected water from 
the area, field leveling services and re-seeding on soccer field number 6; 

 
Whereas, on May 17, 2016, three bids were received for this project with Fitzgerald 

Lawnscaper, Ltd. submitting the low bid - Staff has worked with Fitzgerald Lawnscaper in the 
past and has found them to be a responsible vendor; 

 
Whereas, Staff recommends authorizing a construction contract in the amount of 

$193,950 for drainage improvements to the Korompai Soccer Complex, including the waving of 
construction permit fees; 

 
 Whereas, this project is funded by the Parks GO Bonds that were approved by the voters 
on May 9, 2015 and funding is appropriated in Account No. 362-3500-552-6405, Project No. 
101314; and  
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, after approval as 
to form by the City Attorney, to execute a construction contract with Fitzgerald Lawnscaper, Ltd. 
of Woodway, Texas, in an amount not to exceed $193,950, for drainage improvements to the 
Korompai Soccer Complex. 
 
 Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



2 
 

 
 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of June, 2016. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 

 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney  



 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

06/02/16 
Item #4(H) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Belinda Mattke, Director of Purchasing 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a 3-year agreement for the 
rental/lease of non-civil service uniforms and floor mats in the estimated annual amount of $45,000 with 
Cintas Corporation of Round Rock.  
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  In order for the public to identify City of Temple employees and to protect employees 
from elements of their work environment, several departments utilize a uniform rental/lease service.  
Departments that currently utilize a uniform rental/lease service are all Public Works divisions, 
Metering, Parks & Recreation, Airport, Library, and Facility Maintenance.  Several department with high 
traffic also rent floor mats.  
 
The City’s current contract with G&K Services will expire on July 14, 2016. A staff committee 
representing departments that utilize the uniform and floor mat contract was formed to evaluate the 
options available from the various vendors that serve the Temple area:  Cintas Corporation, G&K 
Services, Aramark, and Prudential Overall Supply.  Based on a price analysis, quality of products, and 
references from other entities that use these various contracted vendors, it is the committee’s 
unanimous recommendation to recommend award of a 3-year rental contract that begins on July 5, 
2016, with Cintas Corporation.   
  
Cintas Corporation has been awarded a U.S. Communities Government Purchasing Alliance contract, 
which staff is recommending utilizing for these services.  Contracts awarded through U.S. Communities 
have been competitively procured and meet the statutory procurement requirements for Texas 
municipalities.   

 
FISCAL IMPACT:   Each department that supplies its employees with uniforms budgets for the uniforms 
in account #2618.  Consistent with the expiring contract with G&K Services, the estimated annual 
expenditure for the rental/lease of floor mats and non-civil service uniforms is approximately $45,000. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution 
  



 1

RESOLUTION NO.     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A THREE-YEAR RENTAL/LEASE 
AGREEMENT WITH CINTAS CORPORATION OF ROUND ROCK, 
TEXAS,  IN THE ESTIMATED ANNUAL AMOUNT OF $45,000, FOR 
THE USE OF NON-CIVIL SERVICE UNIFORMS AND FLOOR MATS; 
AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, in order for the public to identify City of Temple employees and to protect 
employees from elements of their work environment, several departments utilize a uniform 
rental/lease service; 
 

Whereas, departments that currently utilize a uniform rental/lease service are all 
Public Works divisions, Metering, Parks & Recreation, Airport, Library, and Facility 
Maintenance - several departments with high traffic also rent floor mats;  
 

Whereas, the City’s current contract with G&K Services will expire on July 14, 2016 
and a Staff committee representing departments that utilize the uniform and floor mat 
contract was formed to evaluate options available from various vendors that serve the 
Temple area; 

 
Whereas, based on a price analysis, quality of products, and references from other 

entities that use these various contracted vendors, it is Staff’s unanimous recommendation 
that Council award a 3-year rental/lease agreement with Cintas Corporation of Round Rock, 
Texas effective July 5, 2016;   
  

Whereas, Cintas Corporation has been awarded a U.S. Communities Government 
Purchasing Alliance contract, which Staff is recommending utilizing for these services - 
contracts awarded through U.S. Communities have been competitively procured and meet 
the statutory procurement requirements for Texas municipalities;  
 
 Whereas, each department that supplies its employees with uniforms, budgets for the 
uniforms in their individual accounts; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: The City Manager, or his designee, after approval as to form by the City 
Attorney, is authorized to execute a three-year agreement, in the estimated annual amount of 
$45,000, for the rental/lease of non-civil service uniforms and floor mats with Cintas 
Corporation of Round Rock, Texas. 
 
 



 2

 
 
 Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of June, 2016. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

 
 
 
 
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

 

 
06/02/16 

Item #4(I) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
  DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
  Belinda Mattke, Purchasing Director 
  Damon B. Boniface, Utility Director  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an increase in the estimated 
expenses in FY2016 for the hauling and disposal of sludge by S&M Vacuum & Waste, Ltd of Killeen 
from $160,000 to $250,000. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

 
 

ITEM SUMMARY: On September 3, 2015, Council authorized a one-year renewal to a services 
agreement for the hauling and disposal of sludge with S&M Vacuum & Waste of Killeen for FY2016 
at a rate of $0.029 per gallon for an estimated annual purchase of $160,000. 

 
This fiscal year, the City’s water treatment plant continues to experience a record amount of rain 
and higher than normal velocity of water released from Lake Belton Dam  into the Leon River. 
Water quality diverted from the Leon River has s ev e r e l y  decreased, and resulted in an 
unanticipated larger volume of sludge. 

 
S&M has hauled and disposed of 5,737,200 gallons of sludge through mid-May, at a cost of 
$166,378.80. Staff is estimating the need to haul and dispose of an additional 2.8 million gallons of 
sludge t h r o u g h  the remainder of FY2016, for a total estimated annual expenditure of $250,000. 
 
This annual contract is structured as a ‘unit price’ contract to allow for flexibility in the contract based 
on the needs of the City during the fiscal year.  Accordingly, no change order is required to the executed 
services agreement.  However, staff desires to acknowledge to Council that expenditures have 
exceeded the estimated annual expenditures which were previously disclosed. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funding for the increased expenditure is available in the Water Treatment Plant 
operations and maintenance budget, account 520-5100-535-2338. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution  



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO.      
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING AN INCREASE IN THE ESTIMATED 
EXPENSES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016, FROM $160,000 TO $250,000, FOR 
THE HAULING AND DISPOSAL OF SLUDGE BY S&M VACUUM & 
WASTE, LTD, OF KILLEEN, TEXAS; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, on September 3, 2015, Council authorized a one-year renewal to a services 
agreement for the hauling and disposal of sludge with S&M Vacuum & Waste of Killeen for 
fiscal year 2016 at a rate of $0.029 per gallon, for an estimated annual purchase of $160,000; 
 

Whereas, the City’s water treatment plant continues to experience a record amount of 
rain and higher than normal velocity of water released from Lake Belton Dam into the Leon 
River – the water quality diverted from the Leon River has severely decreased and resulted in 
an unanticipated larger volume of sludge; 
 

Whereas, S&M has hauled and disposed of approximately 5,737,200 gallons of sludge 
through mid-May, at a cost of $166,378.80 - Staff estimates the need to haul and dispose of 
an additional 2.8 million gallons of sludge through the remainder of fiscal year 2016, for a 
total estimated annual expenditure of $250,000; 
 

Whereas, S&M’s annual contract is structured as a ‘unit price’ contract to allow for 
flexibility in the contract based on the needs of the City during the fiscal year; 

 
Whereas, Staff desires to advise Council that expenditures have exceeded the 

estimated annual expenditures which were previously authorized and recommends that 
Council authorize estimated fiscal year 2016 annual contract expenditure increases to the 
hauling and disposal of sludge contract with S&M Vacuum & Waste, Ltd.; 
 

Whereas, funding for this increased expenditure is available in the Water Treatment 
Plant operations and maintenance budget, Account No. 520-5100-535-233; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council authorizes an estimated fiscal year 2016 annual contract 
expenditure increase from $160,000 to $250,000 for fiscal year 2016, for the hauling and 
disposal of sludge by S&M Vacuum & Waste, Ltd of Killeen, Texas. 

 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute any 
documents, after approval as to form by the City Attorney, that may be necessary for these 
annual contract increases.  



2 
 

 
 

Part 3:  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of June, 2016. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

      DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
 

06/02/16 
Item #4(J) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:   
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 
Jim Kachelmeyer, Deputy City Attorney 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the City Manager to accept the 
donation of a 2.96-square-foot sidewalk easement and a 0.014-acre temporary construction easement 
in the C.S. Masters Survey, Abstract No. 550, Temple, Bell County, Texas, necessary for the 
construction of a sidewalk along North 31st Street. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
   
ITEM SUMMARY:  The proposed sidewalk and enhancement project along North 31st Street will 
provide needed connectivity and safety for pedestrians traveling between the HOP bus shelter, Temple 
High School, and area businesses. The project will provide a new 8‐foot sidewalk and enhancements 
on the west side of the street, as well as connection to existing sections of 5‐foot sidewalk along the 
east side of the street in front of Temple High School.  The proposed project would also provide needed 
safety elements for pedestrians including cross-walks and pedestrian warning flashers to improve driver 
awareness and visibility of pedestrian traffic. On March 17, City Council authorized a construction 
contract with Choice Builders for the construction of the project.   
 
In order to complete the construction, the City needs to acquire permanent sidewalk easements and 
temporary construction easements from the property owners along North 31st Street. Temple 
Independent School District has donated five permanent easements and five temporary construction 
easements, and Council ratified Staff’s acceptance of the donation on May 5.  SJD Oak Ridge 
Investments, LLC, has agreed to donate a permanent sidewalk easement and a temporary construction 
easement, and Council authorized Staff to accept the donation of the property on May 5.  CFA-NC 
Townridge Square, LLC offered to donate 0.008 acre of permanent sidewalk easements, and Staff is 
seeking Council authorization to accept the donation of the property on May 19.   
 
JJA Properties, L.P., has offered to donate a 2.96-square-foot permanent sidewalk easement and a 
0.014-acre temporary construction easement necessary for the project, and Staff is seeking Council 
authorization to accept the donation of the property interests.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: The City will be responsible for future maintenance of the property and any costs 
associated with the closing transaction on the land which will be nominal. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO.      
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE ACCEPTANCE OF THE DONATION OF 
AN APPROXIMATELY 2.96 SQUARE FOOT SIDEWALK EASEMENT 
AND AN APPROXIMATELY 0.014 ACRE TEMPORARY 
CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT IN THE C.S. MASTERS SURVEY, 
ABSTRACT NO. 550, TEMPLE, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, WHICH IS 
NECESSARY FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF A SIDEWALK ALONG 
NORTH 31ST STREET; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the proposed sidewalk and enhancement project along North 31st Street 
will provide needed connectivity and safety for pedestrians traveling between the HOP bus 
shelter, Temple High School, and area businesses; 
 

Whereas, the project will provide a new 8‐foot sidewalk and enhancements on the 
west side of the street, as well as a connection to existing sections of 5‐foot sidewalk along 
the east side of the street in front of Temple High School – the project will also provide 
needed safety elements for pedestrians including crosswalks and pedestrian warning flashers 
to improve driver awareness and visibility of pedestrian traffic; 

 
Whereas, on March 17, 2016, Council authorized a construction contract with Choice 

Builders, LLC for the construction of the project - in order to complete the construction, the 
City needs to acquire permanent sidewalk easements and temporary construction easements 
from property owners along North 31st Street; 

 
Whereas, JJA Properties, L.P. has offered to donate an approximately 2.96 square 

foot permanent sidewalk easement and an approximately 0.014 acre temporary construction 
easement necessary for this project, and Staff recommends Council accept the donation of 
these easements;   
 

Whereas, the City will be responsible for future maintenance of the property and any 
costs associated with the closing transaction on the land which will be nominal; and  

 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 



2 
 

 
 

 Part 1:  The City Council accepts the donation of an approximately 2.96 square foot 
sidewalk easement and an approximately 0.014 acre temporary construction easement in the 
C.S. Masters Survey, Abstract No. 550, Temple, Bell County, Texas, necessary for the 
construction of a sidewalk along North 31st Street. 
 

Part 2:  The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, after 
approval as to form by the City Attorney, to execute any documents that may be necessary 
for acceptance of these donations. 

 
 Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of June, 2016. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM  
 

06/02/16 
Item #4(K) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 5 

 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Tammy Lyerly, Senior Planner 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  SECOND READING – Z-FY-16-20: Consider adopting an ordinance authorizing 
a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to install a proposed 115' stealth monopole for Verizon Wireless at the 
Mueller building site on a tract of land of 0.0258 +/- acres, situated in the S. Bottsford Survey, Abstract 
No. 118, Bell County, Texas, located at 7050 North General Bruce Drive. 
 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  At its May 2, 2016, meeting the 
Planning and Zoning Commission voted 7/0 to recommend approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 
to install a proposed 115' stealth monopole for Verizon Wireless at the Mueller building site at 7050 
North General Bruce Drive. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the requested Conditional Use Permit 
(CUP) for the following reasons: 

1. Compliance with the Future Land Use Plan; 
2. Compliance with surrounding zoning and land uses;  
3. Compliance with the Thoroughfare Plan; and 
4. Public and private facilities are available to serve the subject property. 

 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The applicant requests this Conditional Use Permit to allow installation of a 115’ 
stealth monopole for Verizon Wireless at the Mueller building site located at 7050 North General Bruce 
Drive.  The property is zoned Light Industrial District (LI) and is located within the I-35 Interstate Corridor 
Overlay Industrial Sub-District.  The applicants were unable to find a suitable collocation site in this 
area and propose a stealth monopole to resemble a flagpole with a flag.  The applicants have submitted 
a letter regarding the inability to collocate. 
 
Although the Unified Development Code (UDC) prohibits freestanding personal wireless service 
facilities in the other I-35 interstate Corridor Overlay Sub-District, UDC Section 5.4.4.C permits 
freestanding monopoles in the Industrial Sub-District.   
 
UDC Section 5.4.3. (I-35 Interstate Corridor Overlay District Standards) allows the Director of 
Planning to consider Freestanding Stealth Personal Wireless Service Facilities in all I-35 Interstate 
Corridor Overlay Sub-Districts.   
 
 
 

 



06/02/16 
Item #4(K) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 5 

 
A Conditional Use Permit is required because the applicant’s proposed stealth monopole 
placement of 345 feet within adjacent residential uses does not meet the condition that requires 
freestanding towers within Light Industrial and Heavy Industrial Districts to be located no closer 
than 1,000 feet to the boundary of any residential use or district, per UDC Section 5.4.4. (Chief 
Building Official Review and Final Action). 
 
Personal wireless cell towers pursuing C.U.P.s are subject to the following design standards in Section 
5.4.5 of the UDC:   

 
A. Boundary and Use Setbacks  
1. A guy or guy anchor for a facility must not be closer than 20 feet to a bounding property line.  
Staff note: The proposed freestanding monopole does not have a guy or guy anchors.  It 
is a stealth monopole that will resemble a flagpole without a flag. 
 
2. The distance between the base of a self-supported tower and the property line of any 
residential zoning district or use must not be less than 3 times the height of the tower structure.  
Staff note: The proposed monopole is located within an existing Light Industrial zoning 
district and is located no closer than 345 feet from the nearest residential use.  The 
nearest residential use is located within the Agricultural zoning district. 
 
B. Security Screening Fence  
1. A solid, wood or masonry fence, a minimum of eight feet in height, must completely enclose 
the base of every tower.  Staff note: The site plan proposes a six foot high wood fence 
enclosed around the tower base and equipment shelter. 
 
2. In a residential zoning district or on property that abuts a residential zoning district or use, a 
solid wood or masonry fence, a minimum of eight feet in height, must complete enclose all 
mechanical equipment and accessory structures.  Staff note: The request is in an existing 
Light Industrial District and proposes a six foot high wood fence enclosed around the 
tower base and equipment shelter. 
 
3. A security screening fence for a facility built or permitted after May 17th, 2001, may not be 
less than 6 feet in height.  Staff note: This request proposes a six foot high wood fence. 
 
4. A security fence must be built to safely discourage unauthorized access to facilities by 
climbing.  Staff note: The applicants propose a six foot high fence topped with barbed 
wire, as allowed by UDC Section 7.7.5 D. 
 
5. External and internal gates and doors that provide access to a facility must be equipped with 
a self-locking or self-latching mechanism for purposes of preventing unauthorized access.  Staff 
note: The site plan reflects compliance with this requirement. 
 
6. Screening is not required for a facility located on a building that is not designed or built 
primarily to support the facility, if the ancillary equipment, including but not limited to the 
equipment enclosure, is not visible from an abutting property line or public street right-of-way.   
 

 



06/02/16 
Item #4(K) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 3 of 5 

 
Staff note: The site plan reflects a six foot high wood fence for screening around the site’s 
perimeter. 
 
C. Screening  
1. As much of the total facility as possible must be screened or located so as to not be visible 
from prevalent views.  Staff note: The proposed tower base and equipment shelter will be 
screened by a six foot high wood fence. 
 
2. Landscaping must be continuously maintained in a healthy, growing condition and be trimmed 
as necessary to comply with ordinances governing height of grass, corner sight obstruction and 
street and sidewalk obstruction.  Staff note: The applicant proposes to remove the five 
existing trees within the fenced area and plant six new trees along the along the outer 
border of the proposed 6-foot high wooden privacy fence.  Placement of the six new 
replacement trees will be free of any corner sight obstructions. 
 
D. Collocation  
A new freestanding tower is not permitted unless the applicant demonstrates to the satisfaction 
of the approving authority that existing, permitted or proposed alternative support structures 
cannot accommodate the proposed facilities for the following reasons:  
1. Height is not sufficient to meet applicant’s engineering requirements;  
2. Structural strength is not sufficient to support applicant’s proposed facilities and cannot be 

reinforced in accordance with engineering requirements;  
3. Other aspects of structure do not meet applicant’s technical design requirements;  
4. Electromagnetic interference would result from collocation;  
5. Fees or costs for sharing or adapting are unreasonable; any cost that is less than the cost to 

construct and develop a new tower is presumed to be reasonable;  
6. Owners of alternative structures are unwilling to accommodate the applicant’s needs within 

30 days after the date such owners received applicant's written request; or  
7. Other factors render alternative support structures unsuitable. 
 
Staff note: The applicants have submitted a letter regarding the inability to collocate. 

 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES: The following table provides the direction from the property, 
Future Land Use Plan (FLUP) designation, existing zoning and current land uses: 
 
Direction FLUP    Zoning     Current Land Use 
Site  Suburban Commercial    LI      Industrial/ Manufacturing 
North            Suburban Commercial    AG      Industrial/ Manufacturing  

    & Rural Residential 
South            Suburban Commercial     LI            Undeveloped Industrial Property 
East           Suburban Commercial    LI      Industrial/ Manufacturing & I-35 
West          Agricultural / Rural        AG      Agricultural / Rural Residential  
 
 
 
 

 



06/02/16 
Item #4(K) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 4 of 5 

 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map 
 

Compliance? 
CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use and Character (FLUP) Yes 
CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  Yes 

CP 
Goal 4.1 - Growth and development patterns should be consistent 
with the City’s infrastructure and public service capacities 

Yes 

 
Future Land Use and Character Plan (FLUP) (CP Map 3.1) 
The property is within the Suburban Commercial character district of the Choices ’08 City of Temple 
Comprehensive Plan.  The property is also within the I-35 Interstate Corridor Overlay Industrial Sub-
District, which specifically allows freestanding monopoles in the Industrial Sub-District, per UDC 
Section 5.4.4.C. 
 
Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) and Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalk Ordinance 
The subject property fronts North General Bruce Drive/ I-35, a highway, which is appropriate for 
commercial and industrial uses.  Pegasus Drive, a collector, is appropriate for the applicant’s requested 
stealth monopole.     
 
Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
An existing 10-inch water line is located within the right-of-way of Pegasus Drive.  A 6-inch water line 
is located on the northern portion of the applicant’s property.  Sewer services to the property are 
provided by septic system. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE:  Eight (8) notices of the May 2, 2016, Planning and Zoning Commission public 
hearing were sent out to property owners within 500-feet of the subject property as required by State 
law and City Ordinance.  As of Wednesday, April 27, 2016, no notices have been received in favor of 
the requested Conditional Use Permit and no notices have been returned in opposition to the requested 
Conditional Use Permit.   
 
Staff sent out notices to all property owners within 500 feet, per UDC Section 5.4.5.D 
(Conditional Use Permit), which requires a notification boundary of 500 feet.  Since Staff initially 
only notified property owners within 200 feet, new notification maps were sent out to property 
owners within 500 feet for the May 2, 2016, Planning and Zoning meeting. 
 
The newspaper printed notice of the public hearing on April 21, 2016, in accordance with state law and 
local ordinance. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
 
 
 
 
 



06/02/16 
Item #4(K) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 5 of 5 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Site and Surrounding Property Photos 
Zoning Map 
Location map with Aerial  
Future Land Use and Character Map    
Thoroughfare & Trails Map 
Utility Maps 
Applicant’s Collocation Letter 
Applicant’s Site Plan Exhibits 
Ordinance 
 
 
  



 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES: 
The following table shows the subject property, existing zoning and current land uses: 
 

Direction Zoning 
Current Land 

Use Photo 

Subject 
Property LI 

Industrial / 
Manufacturing 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Stealth 

Monopole Site 

Stealth 

Monopole Site 

Stealth 

Monopole Site 



Page 2 of 4 
 

Direction Zoning 
Current Land 

Use Photo 

East LI 

Industrial/ 
Manufacturing  
& I-35 
 

  

 

West AG  
Agricultural / 
Rural 
Residential 

 

Pegasus DR 

Stealth 

Monopole Site 



Page 3 of 4 
 

Direction Zoning 
Current Land 

Use Photo 

South LI  
Undeveloped 
Industrial 
Property 

 

 

North AG 

Industrial / 
Manufacturing 
&  
Rural 
Residential  

 

Pegasus DR 

Stealth 

Monopole Site 



Page 4 of 4 
 

Direction Zoning 
Current Land 

Use Photo 

 
 



7300
PropID:
11763

7205
PropID:
11766

7167
PropID:
128530

7325
PropID:
11765

7172
PropID:
193460

6720
PropID:
110158

6830
PropID:
193465

7179
PropID:
148303

7171
PropID:
147396

6701
PropID:
127223

6781
PropID:
127224

6812
PropID:
364696

7050
PropID:
438074

6710
PropID:
27090

6821
PropID:
5804

6808
PropID:
66673

7330
PropID:
11762

7188
PropID:
128532

6910
PropID:
198391

7170
PropID:
193462

1206-A

1207-A

1236-A

1211-A
1237-A

1236-A

1210-A

1245-A

1208-A

1201-A

1243-A

1242-A

1218-A

N
 G
EN

ER
A
L 
B
R
U
C
E 
D
R

N
 I
N
TE

R
ST

A
TE

 3
5

P
EG

A
SU

S 
D
R

LI

C

AG

Ü

Date: 4/19/2016
 myarberry

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-20

LI  to LI-CUP

Address :
7050 N General Bruce DR

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

500'
NOTIFICATION MAP

CurrentZoning

HI - CUP

UE

UE - PD

SF-1

SF-1 - CUP

SF-1 - PD

SF-2

SF-2 - PD

SF-3

SF-3 - PD

SF-3 - CUP, PD

SFA

SFA-2

SFA-2 - PD

SFA-3

SFA-3 - PD

2F

2F - CUP

2F - PD

MF-1

MF-1 - CUP

MF-1 - PD

MF-2

MF-2 - CUP

MF-2 - PD

MF-3 - PD

O-1

O-1 - CUP

O-1 - PD

O-2

O-2 - CUP

O-2 - PD

NS

NS - CUP

NS - PD

GR

GR - CUP

GR - PD

GR - CUP, PD

CA

CA - CUP

CA - PD

C

C - CUP

C - PD

C - CUP, PD

LI

LI - CUP

LI - PD

LI - CUP, PD

HI

HI - PD

AG

AG - CUP

MH

MH - CUP

MH - PD

MU

MU - CUP

SD-C

SD-C - CUP

SD-H

SD-H - CUP

SD-T

SD-V

T4

T4 - PD

T4 - CUP

T5-C

T5-C - CUP

T5-C - PD

T5-E

T5-E - CUP

T5-E - PD

NO BASE

CUP

PD

CaseArea

Buffer500



P
EG

A
SU

S 
D
R

N
 I
N
TE

R
ST

A
TE

 3
5

N
 G
EN

ER
A
L 
B
R
U
C
E 
D
R

7170

7050

6710

7188

6910

7167

7171

6830 6821

7172

6720

Ü

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-20

LI to LI-CUP

Address :
7050 N General Bruce DR

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

AERIAL MAP

 myarberry
Date: 4/19/2016

Streets

EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

MINOR ARTERIAL

PRIVATE

RAMP

Railroad

Temple Municipal Boundary

Parcels

ETJ Parcels

Parcels

CaseArea



Date: 4/19/2016

7167

7172

6720

6830

7171

7050

6710

6821

7188

6910

7170

N
 G
EN

ER
A
L 
B
R
U
C
E 
D
R

N
 I
N
TE

R
ST

A
TE

 3
5

P
EG

A
SU

S 
D
R

Ü
Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-20

LI to LI-CUP

Address :
7050 N General Bruce DR

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

Date: 4/19/2016
 myarberry

FUTURE LAND
USE MAP

EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

MINOR ARTERIAL

PRIVATE

RAMP

Future LUP

Agricultural/Rural

Auto-Urban Commercial

Auto-Urban Mixed Use

Auto-Urban Multi-Family

Auto-Urban Residential

Business Park

Estate Residential

Industrial

Neighborhood Conservation

Parks & Open Space

Public Institutional

Suburban Commercial

Suburban Residential

Temple Medical Education District

Urban Center

CaseArea



Date: 4/19/2016

7167

7172

6720

6830

7171

7050

6710

6821

7188

6910

7170

N
 G
EN

ER
A
L 
B
R
U
C
E 
D
R

N
 I
N
TE

R
ST

A
TE

 3
5

P
EG

A
SU

S 
D
R

Ü
Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-20

LI to LI-CUP

Address :
7050 N General Bruce DR

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

Date: 4/19/2016
 myarberry

Parcels

Thoroughfare Plan

Expressway

Major Arterial

Proposed Major
Arterial

Minor Arterial

Proposed Minor
Arterial

Collector

Proposed
Collector

Trails Master Plan

[ EXISTING, CITY
WIDE SPINE

! EXISTING,
COMMUNITY
WIDE
CONNECTOR

EXISTING,
LOCAL
CONNECTOR

[ PROPOSED,
CITY WIDE
SPINE

! PROPOSED,
COMMUNITY
WIDE
CONNECTOR

PROPOSED,
LOCAL
CONNECTOR

Parcels

Parcels

CaseArea

THOROUGHFARE
AND TRAILS MAP



GF

1
0

6

P
EG

A
SU

S 
D
R

N
 I
N
TE

R
ST

A
TE

 3
5

N
 I
N
TE

R
ST

A
TE

 3
5

N
 G
EN

ER
A
L 
B
R
U
C
E 
D
R

7170

7050

6710

7188

6910

7167

7171

68216830

7172

6720

7300

Ü

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-20

LI to LI-CUP

Address :
7050 N General Bruce DR

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

UTILITY MAP

 myarberry
Date: 4/19/2016

Manhole

Gravity Main

GF Hydrant

Main

Parcels

Parcels

CaseArea



 

WIRELESS COMMUNICATION FACILITY 

RF LOCATION STATEMENT  
 
Re: Verizon Wireless – Verizon Mueller/Telecommunication facility located at 

7050 N. General Bruce Drive, Temple Texas 76501 
 

Verizon Wireless hereby states that a careful review of the geographical area to be served 

by the proposed new tower was made, which revealed that an antenna height of one 

hundred (115’) feet would be required.  

 

This tower will be located on a specific parcel, and sits in a location designed to enhance 

and expand both the available coverage and the necessary capacity for the citizens of 

Temple, Texas. This location will provide Verizon customers with enhanced 

communications and added capacity for adjacent highway traffic along IH 35 for Temple,   

Texas.  

 

Verizon Wireless considered other immediate locations, structures and possibilities, but 

no other option was available that would allow Verizon Wireless to utilize a tower less 

than one hundred fifteen (115’) feet while serving the intended coverage area and 

providing sufficient capacity. No other structure has sufficient height to meet these 

engineering requirements.  

 

This RF Location Statement confirms the importance of this specific location in order to 

provide service, i.e. coverage and capacity, to the citizens of Temple Texas.  

 

 

_Kathryn L. Foster______________              3/16/2016_______________ 

R.F. Engineer for Verizon Wireless   Date 

 
 

 

 

 









E
llipso

id
:

S
y
st

e
m

:
D
a
t
u
m

T
ra

n
s.

:
G
R
S

19
8
0

G
e
o
d
et

ic
N
A
D

19
8
3

C
L
A
R
K

18
6
6

G
e
o
d
et

ic
N
A
D

19
2
7

N
o
t
es:

1)
A
ll

e
le

va
t
io

n
s

a
r
e

m
e
a
n

se
a

le
vel.

(
N
o
rt

h
A
m
erica

n
V
ert

ica
l

D
a
t
u
m

o
f

19
8
8

)
2
)

M
et

es
a
n
d

B
o
u
n
d
s

de
sc

ript
io
n

pr
epa

r
ed

t
h
is

da
t
e.

3
)

T
h
is

su
rvey

w
a
s

per
fo

rm
ed

w
it
h

t
h
e

be
n
e
fit

o
f

a
n

O
w
n
e
rsh

ip
a
n
d

E
n
c
u
m
br

a
n
c
e

R
e
po

r
t

pr
e
pa

r
e
d

by
O
ld

R
epu

blic
T
it
le

da
t
ed

O
ct

o
ber

13
,
2
0
14

,
u
pd

a
t
ed

S
ept

e
m
ber

18
,
2
0
15

.
4
)

B
ea

rin
g
s

ba
se

d
o
n

T
ex

a
s

S
t
a
t
e

P
la

n
e

C
o
o
rd

in
a
t
es

C
en

t
r
a
l

Z
o
n
e

(N
A
D

8
3
).

L
a
t
it
u
d
e

N
o
rt

h
:

3
1°

0
9
'
4
5
.16

"
3
1°

0
9
'
4
4
.5

9
"

L
o
n
g
it
u
de

W
est

:
9
7
°

19
'
2
5
.7

4
"

9
7
°

19
'
2
4
.6

5
"

I, the undersigned, a Registered Professional Land Surveyor in the State of Texas,
hereby certify to Verizon Wireless, Archcomm, Inc., and their respective successors
and assigns in interest that this survey substantially complies with the current
Texas Society of Professional Surveyors Standards and Specifications for a
Category 1B, Condition II survey.

Clinton L. Kanak, R.P.L.S.
Registered Professional Land Surveyor No. 4499

17500 FM 306

CANYON LAKE, TX 78133

(830) 935-4011 FAX (830) 935-4012

FIRM LICENSE NO. 10140200

S
U
B
J
E
C
T

T
O
:

1)
15

'
P
U
B
L
IC

U
T
IL

IT
Y

E
A
S
E
M
E
N
T

V
O
L
U
M
E

3
8
9
5
,
P
A
G
E

3
7

O
F
F
IC

IA
L

P
U
B
L
IC

R
E
C
O
R
D
S

B
E
L
L

C
O
U
N
T
Y
,
T
E
X
A
S

(O
P
R
B
C
T
).

(D
O
E
S

N
O
T

A
F
F
E
C
T

L
E
S
S
E
E
'S

L
E
A
S
E

A
R
E
A

O
R

A
C
C
E
S
S

A
N
D

U
T
IL

IT
Y

E
A
S
E
M
E
N
T

(D
N
A
)).

2
)
P
O
S
E
S
S
IO

N
A
N
D

U
S
E

A
G
R
E
E
M
E
N
T

F
O
R

T
R
A
N
S
P
O
R
T
A
T
IO

N
P
U
R
P
O
S
E
S

IN
S
T
R
U
M
E
N
T

N
O
.
2
0
11-3

2
6
6
0

O
P
R
B
C
T
.
(D

N
A
)

3
)
P
O
S
E
S
S
IO

N
A
N
D

U
S
E

A
G
R
E
E
M
E
N
T

F
O
R

T
R
A
N
S
P
O
R
T
A
T
IO

N
P
U
R
P
O
S
E
S

IN
S
T
R
U
M
E
N
T

N
O
.
2
0
11-3

2
6
6
1
O
P
R
B
C
T

(D
N
A
).

4
)
C
O
U
R
T

O
R
D
E
R

C
O
N
D
IT

IO
N
A
L
L
Y

G
R
A
N
T
IN

G
W

R
IT

O
F

P
O
S
S
E
S
S
IO

N
IN

S
T
R
U
M
E
N
T

N
O
.
2
0
13

-0
0
0
14

2
8
8

O
P
R
B
C
T

(D
N
A
).

5
)
C
O
U
R
T

O
R
D
E
R

C
O
N
D
IT

IO
N
A
L
L
Y

G
R
A
N
T
IN

G
W

R
IT

O
F

P
O
S
S
E
S
S
IO

N
IN

S
T
R
U
M
E
N
T

N
O
.
2
0
13

-0
0
0
15

3
5
7

O
P
R
B
C
T

(D
N
A
).

6
)
C
O
U
R
T

O
R
D
E
R

C
O
N
D
IT

IO
N
A
L
L
Y

G
R
A
N
T
IN

G
W

R
IT

O
F

P
O
S
S
E
S
S
IO

N
IN

S
T
R
U
M
E
N
T

N
O
.
2
0
13

-0
0
0
15

9
2
4

O
P
R
B
C
T

(D
N
A
).

S
U

R
V

E
Y

O
F

:
A

0
.0

2
5

8
O

F
A

N
A

C
R

E
L

E
A

S
E

A
R

E
A

,A
20

F
O

O
T

W
ID

E
A

C
C

E
S

S
A

N
D

U
T

IL
IT

Y
E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T
A

N
D

A
1

0
F

O
O

T
W

ID
E

U
T

IL
IT

Y
E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T
O

U
T

O
F

L
O

T
1

,
M

U
E

L
L

E
R

,IN
C

.A
D

D
IT

IO
N

,P
H

A
S

E
2

R
E

C
O

R
D

E
D

IN
C

A
B

IN
E

T
D

,S
L

ID
E

32
5

B
P

L
A

T
R

E
C

O
R

D
S

B
E

L
L

C
O

U
N

T
Y

,
T

E
X

A
S

,
S

IT
U

A
T

E
D

IN
T

H
E

S
.B

O
T

T
S

F
O

R
D

S
U

R
V

E
Y

A
B

S
T

R
A

C
T

N
O

.11
8,B

E
L

L
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,T

E
X

A
S

.



(N) MONOPOLE POLE

(N) 25' x 45' LEASE

AREA ( 1125 S.F.)

(N) EQUIPMENT ON

10' x 15' CONCRETE 

SLAB  W/ CANOPY

(E) TREE TO 

BE REMOVED

(E) TREE TO 

BE REMOVED

(N) 20' WIDE ACCESS

& UTILTY EASEMENT

(N) TREE REPLACEMENT 

LANDSCAPE

(N) TREE REPLACEMENT 

LANDSCAPE

(N) FUTURE CARRIER

(E) PAVEMENT

(E) TREES TO BE REMOVED

(E) EXISTING GATE

REMAIN 

(E) EXISTING APPROACH

REMAIN 

(E) CONC. CULVERT

(N) 20' WIDE ACCESS

& UTILTY EASEMENT

(N) 25' x 45'  

LEASE AREA

(E) 20' DRAINAGE &

UTILTY EASEMENT

(E) CURB  

(E)EXISTING FENCE 

TO REMAIN

(E) LIGHT POLE

(E) BUILDING

(E) DRAINAGE CHANNEL

SELF CLOSING GATE

(N)  DRIVEWAY

FOR VERIZON

(N) REPLACEMENT 

 LANDSCAPE

(E) FIRE LANE

7
0
5

0
 
N

.
 
G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 
B

R
U

C
E

 
D

R
I
V

E

T
E

M
P

L
E

,
 
T

E
X

A
S

 
 
7
6

5
0

1

Z
O

N
I
N

G
 
 
S

I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N

SITE PLAN

APPROVAL BOX

AERIAL IMAGERY

DETAIL SITE PLAN

TOWER - TYPICAL

VICINITY MAP

ORIGINAL SUBMITTAL DATE:

 

ACCEPTED FOR APPROVAL:

 

 

ADVERTISING IS PROHIBITED ANYWHERE ON A WTF, WITH THE EXCEPTION OF THE

MINIMUM SIGNAGE AS REQUIRED BY THE FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISION

(FCC) REGULATIONS OR NECESSARY FOR THE OPERATIONS OF A WTF.

AN IDENTIFICATION SIGN FOR EACH SERVICE PROVIDER RESPONSIBLE FOR THE

OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF A WTF AT THE SITE, NOT LARGER THAN TWO

SQUARE FEET, SHALL BE POSTED AT A LOCATION FROM WHICH IT CAN BE EASILY READ

FROM OUTSIDE THE PERIMETER OF THE WTF, AND SHALL PROVIDE THE NAME,

ADDRESS, AND EMERGENCY NUMBER OF THE RESPONSIBLE SERVICE PROVIDER.

PROJECT TYPE

DATE

SITE INFORMATION

CONTACT INFORMATION

CONSULTANTS

SITE NAME:

NOT TO SCALE

NOT TO SCALE

NOT TO SCALE

 SCALE 1" = 60'-0"

SITE ADDRESS

NOTE: TYPICAL LEASE AREA, ACTUAL EQUIPMENT LOCATIONS MAY VARY.

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT

M
U

E
L

L
E

R

CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS

1
7
1
5
 
C

A
P

I
T

A
L
 
O

F
 
T

E
X

A
S

 
H

W
Y

 
S

O
U

T
H

,
 
S

T
E

.
 
2
0
7

 
(
5
1
2
)
3
2
8
-
2
6
9
3
 
-
 
*
 
v
i
n
c
e
h
@

f
l
a
s
h
.
n
e
t

L
A

N
D

 
P

L
A

N
N

I
N

G
 
&

 
Z

O
N

I
N

G
 
C

O
N

S
U

L
T

A
N

T
S

A
U

S
T

I
N

,
 
T

E
X

A
S

 
7
8
7
4
6

V
E

R
I
Z

O
N

 
C

O
M

M
U

N
I
C

A
T

I
O

N
S

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

ZONING MAP

CARRIER  INFORMATION

(N) NEW ANTENNAS

               ON MOUNT

ZONING SITE PLAN

"AG"         - Agricultural Open Space District

"LI"       - Limited Industrial DistrictPermit“UD"

ZONING DISTRICT LEGEND

 SCALE 1" = 30'-0"

(E) EQUIPMENT CONC.

      SLAB W/ CANOPY

o
ire

n
v







(N) 6' HT. WOOD

FENCE W/ BARBED WIRE

(NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION)

(N) PROPOSED

 MONOPOLE TOWER

(N) 6' HT WOOD

FENCE W/ BARBED

WIRE

(N) METER FRAME METER,

DISC TELCO BOX

PROPOSED SITE

PROPOSED SITE

PROPOSED SITE

345'

NOTE:  SETBACK INDICATES 3X HEIGHT OF TOWER FROM RESIDENTIAL USE

AG

AG



SITE PLAN

1

10.01.15  ISSUE

EN1

SITE PLAN

(210) 308-9905

ARCHCOMM, LLC.

1006 Beckett

San Antonio, Texas 78213







LEASING

CONSTRUCTION

LANDLORD

THIS IS AN INCOMPLETE

SET NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION OR

PERMITTING.

APPROPRIATE

PROFESSIONAL SEAL

WILL BE APPLIED TO

FINAL CONSTRUCTION

SET

TBPE  NO. F-15659

T
E

M
P

L
E

,
 
B

E
L

L
 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
T

E
X

A
S

P
E

G
A

S
U

S
 
 
D

R
I
V

E

(
2
9
9
9
3
4
)

*
*
*

M
U

E
L

L
E

R

*
*
*

H
:
\
V

E
R

I
Z

O
N

\
S
O

U
T
H

 
T
E
X

A
S
\
M

u
e
l
l
e
r
 
-
 
2
9
9
9
3
4
\
2
0
1
4
1
0
7
9
1
2
2
-
N

B
\
M

u
e
l
l
e
r
-
E
N

S
I
T
E
 
B

A
S
E
 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
.
d

w
g

,
 
1
0
/
7
/
2
0
1
5
 
4
:
0
8
:
3
3
 
P

M
,
 
m

l
o

p
e
z



SITE PLAN

1

10.01.15  ISSUE

EN2

SITE PLAN

(210) 308-9905

ARCHCOMM, LLC.

1006 Beckett

San Antonio, Texas 78213







LEASING

CONSTRUCTION

LANDLORD

THIS IS AN INCOMPLETE

SET NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION OR

PERMITTING.

APPROPRIATE

PROFESSIONAL SEAL

WILL BE APPLIED TO

FINAL CONSTRUCTION

SET

TBPE  NO. F-15659

T
E

M
P

L
E

,
 
B

E
L

L
 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
T

E
X

A
S

P
E

G
A

S
U

S
 
 
D

R
I
V

E

(
2
9
9
9
3
4
)

*
*
*

M
U

E
L

L
E

R

*
*
*

H
:
\
V

E
R

I
Z

O
N

\
S
O

U
T
H

 
T
E
X

A
S
\
M

u
e
l
l
e
r
 
-
 
2
9
9
9
3
4
\
2
0
1
4
1
0
7
9
1
2
2
-
N

B
\
M

u
e
l
l
e
r
-
E
N

S
I
T
E
 
B

A
S
E
 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
.
d

w
g

,
 
1
0
/
7
/
2
0
1
5
 
4
:
0
6
:
5
8
 
P

M
,
 
m

l
o

p
e
z



10.01.15  ISSUE

EN3

SITE ELEVATION

SITE ELEVATION

1

(210) 308-9905

ARCHCOMM, LLC.

1006 Beckett

San Antonio, Texas 78213







LEASING

CONSTRUCTION

LANDLORD

THIS IS AN INCOMPLETE

SET NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION OR

PERMITTING.

APPROPRIATE

PROFESSIONAL SEAL

WILL BE APPLIED TO

FINAL CONSTRUCTION

SET

TBPE  NO. F-15659

T
E

M
P

L
E

,
 
B

E
L

L
 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
T

E
X

A
S

P
E

G
A

S
U

S
 
 
D

R
I
V

E

(
2
9
9
9
3
4
)

*
*
*

M
U

E
L

L
E

R

*
*
*

H
:
\
V

E
R

I
Z

O
N

\
S
O

U
T
H

 
T
E
X

A
S
\
M

u
e
l
l
e
r
 
-
 
2
9
9
9
3
4
\
2
0
1
4
1
0
7
9
1
2
2
-
N

B
\
M

u
e
l
l
e
r
-
E
N

S
I
T
E
 
B

A
S
E
 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
.
d

w
g

,
 
1
0
/
7
/
2
0
1
5
 
4
:
0
5
:
5
7
 
P

M
,
 
m

l
o

p
e
z



X

17500 FM 306

CANYON LAKE, TX 78133

(830) 935-4011 FAX (830) 935-4012

FIRM LICENSE NO. 10140200



 
 

1 

ORDINANCE NO.     
(Z-FY-16-20) 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW FOR 
THE INSTALLATION OF A PROPOSED 115 FOOT STEALTH MONOPOLE 
ON AN APPROXIMATELY 0.0258 ACRE TRACT OF LAND SITUATED IN 
THE S. BOTTSFORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 118, BELL COUNTY, 
TEXAS, AND LOCATED AT 7050 NORTH GENERAL BRUCE DRIVE; 
DECLARING FINDINGS OF FACT; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN 
OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Whereas, the applicant has requested a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow for the 

installation of a 115-foot stealth monopole for Verizon Wireless at the Mueller building site 
located at 7050 North General Bruce Drive – this property is zoned Light Industrial and located 
within the I-35 Corridor Overlay Industrial Sub-District; 

 
Whereas, the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance of the City of Temple, Texas, provides 

for the issuance of conditional use permits under certain conditions and authorizes the City 
Council to impose such developmental standards and safeguards as the conditions and locations 
indicate to be important to the welfare or protection of adjacent property and for the protection of 
adjacent property from excessive noise, vibration, dust, dirt, smoke, fumes, gas, odor, explosion, 
glare, offensive view or other undesirable or hazardous conditions, and for the establishment of 
conditions of operation, time limits, location, arrangement and construction for any use for which 
a permit is authorized;  

 
Whereas, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Temple, Texas, after due 

consideration of the conditions and operation of said property located on an approximately 0.0258 
acre tract of land, situated in the S. Bottsford Survey, Abstract No. 118, Bell County, Texas, and 
located at 7050 North General Bruce Drive, recommends that the City Council approve the 
application for this Conditional Use Permit for the installation of a proposed 115-foot stealth 
monopole for Verizon Wireless at the Mueller building site; and 

 
Whereas, the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, after public notice as required 

by law, has at a public hearing, carefully considered all the evidence submitted by the applicant 
concerning the proposed plans and has heard the comments and evidence presented by all 
persons supporting or opposing this application at said public hearing, and after examining the 
conditions, operation and the location of said establishment, finds that the proposed use of the 
premises substantially complies with the comprehensive plan and the area plan adopted by the 
City Council. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 

TEXAS, THAT: 



 
 

2 

 
Part 1: The City Council approves a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow for the 

installation of a proposed 115-foot monopole for Verizon Wireless at the Mueller building site 
located at 7050 North General Bruce Drive, more fully described in Exhibit ‘A’, attached hereto 
and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 
Part 2: The owners/applicants, shall comply with following standards:   
 
A. Boundary and Use Setbacks  

1. A guy or guy anchor for a facility must not be closer than 20 feet to a bounding 
property line.  

2. The distance between the base of a self-supported tower and the property line of 
any residential zoning district or use must not be less than 3 times the height of the tower 
structure.   
 
B. Security Screening Fence  

1. A solid, wood or masonry fence, a minimum of eight feet in height, must 
completely enclose the base of every tower.   

2. In a residential zoning district or on property that abuts a residential zoning 
district or use, a solid wood or masonry fence, a minimum of eight feet in height, must 
completely enclose all mechanical equipment and accessory structures. 

3. A security screening fence for a facility built or permitted after May 17, 2001, 
may not be less than 6 feet in height.   

4. A security fence must be built to safely discourage unauthorized access to 
facilities by climbing.   

5. External and internal gates and doors that provide access to a facility must be 
equipped with a self-locking or self-latching mechanism for purposes of preventing 
unauthorized access.   

6. Screening is not required for a facility located on a building that is not designed 
or built primarily to support the facility, if the ancillary equipment, including but not 
limited to the equipment enclosure, is not visible from an abutting property line or public 
street right-of-way.   
 
C. Screening  

1. As much of the total facility as possible must be screened or located so as to not 
be visible from prevalent views.   

2. Landscaping must be continuously maintained in a healthy, growing condition 
and be trimmed as necessary to comply with ordinances governing height of grass, corner 
sight obstruction and street and sidewalk obstruction.   
 
D. Collocation  
A new freestanding tower is not permitted unless the applicant demonstrates to the 
satisfaction of the approving authority that existing, permitted or proposed alternative 
support structures cannot accommodate the proposed facilities for the following reasons:  

1. Height is not sufficient to meet applicant’s engineering requirements;  
2. Structural strength is not sufficient to support applicant’s proposed facilities and 

cannot be reinforced in accordance with engineering requirements;  
3. Other aspects of structure do not meet applicant’s technical design requirements;  
4. Electromagnetic interference would result from collocation;  



 
 

3 

5. Fees or costs for sharing or adapting are unreasonable; any cost that is less than 
the cost to construct and develop a new tower is presumed to be reasonable;  

6. Owners of alternative structures are unwilling to accommodate the applicant’s 
needs within 30 days after the date such owners received applicant's written 
request; or  

7. Other factors render alternative support structures unsuitable. 
 
Part 3: The Director of Planning is hereby directed to make the necessary changes to the 

City Zoning Map accordingly. 
 
Part 4: The declarations, determinations and findings declared, made and found in the 

preamble of this ordinance are hereby adopted, restated and made a part of the operative 
provisions hereof. 

 
Part 5: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 

paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the final 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of 
the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this ordinance, since the 
same would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance of 
any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 

 
 
Part 6: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 

accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is accordingly 
so ordained. 

 
Part 7: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 19th day of 

May, 2016. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 2nd day of June, 2016. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 

 
_______________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
___________________________   ______________________________ 
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
  

         
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

 
06/02/16 

Item #4(L) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
 
DEPT. / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Dessie Redmond, Planner  
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: SECOND READING – A-FY-16-02: Consider adopting an ordinance authorizing 
the abandonment and conveyance of 146.78 feet of a 20-foot-wide alley located between Lot 6, Block 
1, Black’s Addition, and Lot 6, Block 2, Black’s Addition, City of Temple, Bell County, Texas.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the abandonment of 146.78 feet of a 
20-foot-wide alley in Black’s Addition between Lot 6, Block 1, Black’s Addition, and Lot 6, Block 2, 
Black’s Addition, City of Temple, Bell County, Texas, which will be more particularly described in a 
surveyed description provided by the applicant and attached as Exhibit A to the ordinance. This is a 
recommendation for approval since the alley contains no utilities and is not used for other public 
services or access. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The applicant, Bobby Spradley, submitted a request on behalf of SJD Oak Ridge 
Investments, LLC, for the abandonment and conveyance of 146.78 feet of a 20-foot-wide alley. SJD 
owns all of the property bounding the west side and north end of the alley. Waco Tri-Star Holdings, Ltd. 
owns all of the property on the east side of the alley, where Tri-Star Self Storage is located. Tri-Star’s 
representative, Linda Clemmons, submitted a letter to the City stating that Tri-Star has no interest in 
owning a portion of the alley. The south end of the 146.78-foot alley terminates at a public alley that 
runs parallel to West Adams Avenue. The alley is vacant and undeveloped. 
 
Planning staff contacted all public service providers, including the Public Works Department. The alley 
may be conveyed without reserving utility or drainage easements, as the providers’ responses indicate 
there are no existing public facilities in the alley and no objections to abandoning the alley.  
  
FISCAL IMPACT:  If approved, SJD Oak Ridge Investments, LLC will be allowed to purchase the 
abandoned alley rights-of-way at the fair market value of $1000, as recommended by a 3rd party 
broker’s opinion.      
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Map 
Tri-Star Self Storage Letter 
3rd Party Broker’s Opinion  
Ordinance



A-FY-16-02 Spradley, Alley Abandonment May 19, 20161

Map



A-FY-16-02 Spradley, Alley Abandonment May 19, 20162

Tri-Star Self Storage Letter



A-FY-16-02 Spradley, Alley Abandonment May 19, 20163

3rd Party Broker’s Opinion



 
 1 

ORDINANCE NO.     
(A-FY-16-02) 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE ABANDONMENT AND CONVEYANCE OF 
AN APPROXIMATELY 146.78 FOOT PORTION OF A 20 FOOT WIDE 
ALLEY LOCATED BETWEEN LOT 6, BLOCK 1, BLACK’S ADDITION, 
AND LOT 6, BLOCK 2, BLACK’S ADDITION, CITY OF TEMPLE, BELL 
COUNTY, TEXAS; DECLARING FINDINGS OF FACT; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 

Whereas, the applicant, Bobby Spradley, submitted a request on behalf of SJD Oak 
Ridge Investments, LLC, for the abandonment and conveyance of an approximately 146.78 foot 
portion of a 20 foot wide alley located between lot 6, block 1, Black’s Addition and lot 6, bock 2, 
Black’s addition, City of Temple, Bell County, Texas; 

 
Whereas, SJD Oak Ridge Investments, LLC (“SJD Oak Ridge”) owns all of the property 

bounding the west side and north end of the alley and Waco Tri-Star Holdings, Ltd. owns all of 
the property on the east side of the alley - Tri-Star Self Storage submitted a letter to the City 
stating that Tri-Star Self Storage has no interest in owning a portion of the alley; 

 
Whereas, the south end of the approximately 146.75 foot alley terminates at a public 

alley that runs parallel to West Adams Avenue and the subject alley is vacant and undeveloped; 
 
Whereas, Staff has contacted all public and private service providers, including the 

Public Works Department, and confirmed that the alley may be conveyed without reserving utility 
or drainage easements, as the providers’ responses indicate there are no existing public facilities or 
utilities in the alley and there are no objections to abandoning the alley because it is not used for 
other public services or access;  

 
Whereas, once abandoned, SJD Oak Ridge will be allowed to purchase the abandoned 

portion of the alley at the fair market value of $1,000, as determined by a third party broker’s 
opinion; and 

 
Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 

approve this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council abandons approximately 146.78 feet of a 20 foot wide alley 
located between lot 6, block 1, Black’s Addition, and lot 6, block 2, Black’s Addition, City of 
Temple, Bell County, Texas as depicted on the surveyed description attached hereto and 
incorporated herein as Exhibit A and authorizes conveyance of the abandoned portion of the alley to 
the adjoining property owner, SJD Oak Ridge Investments, LLC, upon payment to the City of the 
fair market value of the property which has been determined to be $1,000. 

 



 
 2 

 
 
 
Part 2: If any provision of this ordinance or the application of any provision to any 

person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or 
applications of the ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 
application, and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 19th day of 
May, 2016. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 2nd day of June, 2016. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 

 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      ATTEST: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 
 
 



 
 3 

 
 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS  § 
 
COUNTY OF BELL  § 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ___ day of ___________, 2016, by 
Daniel A. Dunn, Mayor of the City of Temple, Texas. 
 
 
 
               
       Notary Public, State of Texas 



    

 
            

 
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM  

 
06/02/16 

Item #4(M) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 5 
 
 
DEPT. / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Dessie Redmond, Planner  
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  SECOND READING – Z-FY-16-19: Consider adopting an ordinance authorizing 
a rezoning from Agricultural (AG) to Light Industrial (LI), and to consider and recommend action on a 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow for landfill use in the LI zone on 283.73 +/- acre tract of land, 
recently annexed into the City of Temple by Ordinance No. 2015-4733, located to the south of Little 
Flock Road and to the west of Bob White Road. 
 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  At their April 18, 2016 meeting, the 
Planning & Zoning Commission voted 8 to 0 to recommend approval of the proposed rezoning and the 
approval with conditions for the CUP, as presented by Planning staff. 
 
During the meeting, the Planning & Zoning Commission discussed how long the proposed expansion 
would add to the life of the landfill. It is estimated approximately 75 years. The existing landfill still has 
an estimated 15 years left. The subject property was purchased and annexed long before needed 
because the permitting process for a landfill can take years to complete, especially if there is opposition 
from surrounding property owners.  
 
There was also discussion on if the diminished values of the sounding property owners would occur 
within 20 years. This is one of the criteria for reviewing a CUP. It is very challenging on speculating 
how and when the use of the landfill will impact the neighboring properties and how that is quantified.  
 
Discussion about the creek and the existing floodplain was also mentioned. The creek is isolated from 
the dump area and a drainage system collects runoff from the landfill before it gets to the creek. The 
area in the floodplain within the subject property and the existing landfill is not used as landfill use.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval for a rezoning from AG district to LI district. 
Staff also recommends approval with conditions on the CUP to allow for landfill use in the LI zone. 
These recommendations are based on for the following reasons: 
 
 
 
 
 



06/02/16 
Item #4(M) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 5 

 
1. The proposed rezoning is in compliance with the overall purpose of the Comprehensive 

Plan. 
2. The proposed zoning is compatible with surrounding zoning.   
3. The request complies with the Thoroughfare Plan. 
4. The landfill use is compatible with the adjacent landfill use to the west of the property.  
5. The request has demonstrated compliance to Section 3.5.4 of the Unified Development 

Code (UDC).  
 
The conditions are similar conditions as the CUP on the existing landfill and are as follows: 

A. The development of the property must conform to the Light Industrial Zoning District 
standards. 

B. The landfill shall comply with all applicable State and Federal regulations. 
C. The operator shall work with Planning staff to develop a fence and tree buffering plan to 

preserve some of the perimeter canopy trees and mitigate negative visual appearance.  
D. An expansion beyond the 283.73 +/- acres of the landfill is subject to proper permit 

processes, including an additional conditional use permit. 
E. The permittee shall operate the establishment in such a manner as to prevent excessive 

noise, dirt, litter, and odors on the establishment or in the surrounding area and shall operate 
the establishment in such a manner as to minimize disturbance to surround property owners. 

F. A conditional use permit issued under this sections runs with the property and is not affected 
by a change in the land ownership. 

G. The City Council may revoke, suspend or modify the conditional use permit after notice to 
property owner and hearing before the city Council if the City Council fins evidence of fraud 
or deception, violation of conditions of the conditional use permit, or as provided in Section 
7-609 and 7-610 of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The applicant has requested a rezoning of approximately 283.73 acres from AG to 
LI with a CUP to allow for the use of landfill. The subject property includes the land that was recently 
annexed into city limits by Ordinance No. 2015-4733. The annexation of the property was conducted in 
accordance with Chapter 42 of the Texas Local Government Code. The subject property includes 
properties to the south of Little Flock Road, to the west of Bob White Road, to the north of Tower Road 
and to the east of the existing landfill. The subject property is proposed for the purpose of expanding 
the landfill. The LI zoning district requires the applicant obtain a CUP for a landfill use.  
 
It is proposed the property will be developed as a landfill use, there are other uses allowed in the LI 
zoning district. The uses allowed in the LI, include but are not limited to: 
 

Permitted & *Conditional Use Table – Light Industrial (LI) 

Residential Uses 
Convent or monastery 
*Family or group home 

Agricultural Uses 
Farm, Ranch, orchard or garden 
Kennel without veterinary hospital 

Commercial Uses 
Heavy machinery sales, storage and repair 
Welding or machine shop 



Education & Institutional 
Uses 

*Cemetery, crematorium or mausoleum 
Place of worship 

Industrial Uses 
*Landfill 
Distribution center 

Office Uses 
Office  
Warehouse office 

Overnight Accommodations 
Uses 

Hotel 
*Recreational vehicle park 

Recreational & 
Entertainment Uses 

Amusement, commercial (indoor and outdoor) 
*Shooting range (outdoor) 

Restaurant Uses Restaurant (not drive-in and drive-in) 

Retail Sales and Service 
Uses 

Barber shop 
Medical appliances, fitting, sales or rental 

Transportation and Related 
Uses 

Airport or landing field 
Railroad freight terminal 

Utility and Service Uses 
Electrical energy generating plant  
*Sewage treatment plant 

Vehicle Sales and Services 
Uses 

Car wash 
Truck stop 

 
Prohibited uses include Cleaning plant (commercial), animal feedlot, and cement or hydrated lime plant.  
 
The Unified Development Code: 
The Unified Development Code (UDC) Section 3.5.4 Review Criteria states, in determining whether to 
approve, approve with conditions or deny a CUP application, the review bodies in Sec. 3.5.2 above 
must consider the following criteria. 

A. The conditional use is compatible with and not injurious to the use and enjoyment of the property, 
and does not significantly diminish or impair property values within the immediate vicinity. 
B. The establishment of the conditional use does not impede the normal and orderly development 
and improvement of surrounding vacant property. 
C. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage, and other necessary support facilities have been or 
will be provided. 
D. The design, location and arrangement of all driveways and parking spaces provide for the safe 
and convenient movement of vehicular and pedestrian traffic without adversely affecting the 
general public or adjacent development. 
E. Adequate nuisance prevention measures have been or will be taken to prevent or control 
offensive odors, fumes, dust, noise and vibration. 
F. Directional lighting is provided so as not to disturb or adversely affect neighboring properties. 
G. There is sufficient landscaping and screening to insure harmony and compatibility with adjacent 
property. 

 
UDC Section 3.5.5, states the Planning & Zoning Commission may recommend and the City Council 
may impose additional conditions of approval. 
 
 
Surrounding Property and Uses: The following tables provide information regarding the subject 
property and surrounding properties on Future Land Use Plan (FLUP) designations, existing zoning 
and current land uses: 
 
 



06/02/16 
Item #4(M) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 4 of 5 

 
 

 Surrounding Property & Uses  

Direction FLUP Zoning Current Land Use 

Site Agricultural/Rural AG 
Annexed into city limits 

in 2015 

North Agricultural/Rural ETJ* 
Existing Residence 

and Rural 

South Agricultural/Rural ETJ 
Existing Residence 

and Rural 

East Agricultural/Rural ETJ 
Existing Residence 

and Rural 

West Industrial  LI Landfill 

*ETJ – Extraterritorial Jurisdiction 
 
Comprehensive Plan Compliance: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, objectives 
or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 
 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Compliance?
Comp Plan Map 3.1 - Future Land Use Plan (FLUP) Yes 
Comp Plan Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  Yes 

Comp Plan 
Goal 4.1 - Growth and development patterns should 
be consistent with the City’s infrastructure and public 
service capacities 

Yes 

Trails Plan Temple Trails Master Plan Map N/A 
 

 
Future Land Use Plan (FLUP) (Comp Plan Map 3.1) 
The subject property is located in the Agricultural/Rural character district according to the Comp Plan. 
The propose zoning is not compatible with the Agricultural/Rural character district as described in the 
Choice ’08 Comprehensive Plan (Comp Plan) – Future Land Use Map. This designation is meant to 
protect areas in active farm and/or ranch use. However, it should be noted, due to the proximity of the 
existing landfill, the proposed landfill use does comply with the overall purpose of the Comp Plan. The 
Comp Plan lays out a “big picture” vision for the growth of the community. The landfill use is a necessary 
component of a community. As Temple grows, the expansion of the landfill is inevitable and is therefore, 
part of the “big picture” vision for the growth of the community. 
 
Thoroughfare Plan (Comp Plan Map 5.2) 
The subject property is bounded to the north by Little Flock Road (major arterial), to the east by Bob 
White Road (collector road) and to the south by Tower Road (minor arterial). There is a proposed major 
arterial that runs just east of the property and abuts the property at the south east corner.  
 
Availability of Public Facilities (Comp Plan Goal 4.1) 
There are no existing utilities in the subject properties because it was recently annexed into city limits. 
There are also no existing utilities in the existing landfill as depicted in the Utility Map.  



06/02/16 
Item #4(M) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 5 of 5 

 
Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance 
There are no proposed trails in or around the subject property as shown in as shown in the 
Thoroughfare and Trails Map.  
 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: The request does not propose to develop the property and there 
are no proposed buildings.  
  
PUBLIC NOTICE: 21 notices to property owners within 200-feet of the subject property were sent notice 
of  the public hearing as required by State law and City Ordinance.  As of Wednesday, May 11, 2016, 
nine notices have been received in disagreement with the request (five returned letters were from the 
same property owner who owns five separate properties within the 200’ buffer area).  
 
The newspaper printed notice of the public hearing on April 7, 2016, in accordance with state law and 
local ordinance. 
 
PROPOSED CITY COUNCIL MEETING SCHEDULE: This rezoning is scheduled for the 1st Reading 
on May 19, 2016 and a 2nd Reading on June 2, 2016.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Site Photos 
Location Map 
Future Land Use Map    
Thoroughfare & Trails Map 
Utility Map 
Notification Map 
(8) Returned Property Notice 
Existing Zoning District vs Proposed Zoning District 
Ordinance 
 

  



Z-FY-16-19 Landfill Rezoning and CUP May 19, 20161

Standing on Little Flock Road at the northwest corner of the property 
looking south into the property.

Standing on Bob White Road at the central east boundary looking south 
into the property.

Site Photos

Bob White Road Little Flock Road



Z-FY-16-19 Landfill Rezoning and CUP May 19, 20162

Existing landfill abutting the west boundary of the subject property. Standing on Little Flock Road looking south into the property.

Site Photos

Little Flock Road





Z-FY-16-19 Landfill Rezoning and CUP May 19, 20163

Location Map

B
N

 &
 S

F
 R

R

B
N

 &
 S

F
 R

R

U
n

i o
n

 P
a

c
i f

i c
 R

R

U
n

i o
n

 P
a

c
i f

i c
 R

R

B
N

 &
 S

F
 R

R

B
N

 &
 S

F
 R

R

B
N

 &
 S

F
 R

R

B
N

 &
 S

F
 R

R

B
N

 &
 S

F
 R

R

B
N

 &
 S

F
 R

R

S 
24

TH
 S

T
S 

30
TH

 S
T

CASE RD

DA IRY RD

N
 5

0T
H

 S
T

E FRENCH AVE

N
 8

TH
 S

T

LAVENDUSKY DR

N
 4

2N
D

 S
T

E MUNROE AVE

LORRAINE AVE

N
 2

4T
H

 S
T

SE
H

K
D

O
D

G
EN

LO
O

P

N
E

H
K

D
O

D
G

EN
LO

O
P

SE H K DODGEN LOOP

E AVE C

E AVE B

E AVE E

E AVE A

E AVE D

S 
34

TH
 S

T

S 
26

TH
 S

T

S 
18

TH
 S

T

S 
14

TH
 S

T

S 
22

N
D

 S
T

HERITAGE

N
 1

6T
H

 S
T

E DOWNS AVE
S 

20
TH

 S
T

E AVE J

E AVE N

E AVE I

E AVE F

E AVE K

S 
TE

R
R

A
C

E 
ST

N
12

TH
ST

N
 2

0T
H

 S
T

S
12

TH
ST

S 
16

TH
 S

T

E CENTRAL AVE

S 
10

TH
 S

T

E AVE G

P
A

N
D

A
 D

R

N
 1

8T
H

 S
T

E BARTON AVE

N
 1

0T
H

 S
T

LA
N

D
FI

LL
RD

CYPRESS ST

N
 3

6T
H

 S
T

E ELM AVE

FAWN CREEK ST

N
 5

0T
H

 S
T

S 
30

TH
 S

T

PECAN CREEK ST

N
 3

4T
H

 S
T

MARDEAN LN

E FRENCH AVE

CURTIS B. ELLIO
T DR

LU
N

A
 L

N

N
 2

2N
D

 S
T

E CALHOUN AVE

E AVE B

E AVE F

S 
22

N
D

 S
T

E AVE H

E ADAMS AVE

E AVE H

TOWER RD

Ü
Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-19

Ag to Lt Ind

Address: south of

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

LOCATION MAP

 dredmond
Date: 3/14/2016

Streets

EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

MINOR ARTERIAL

PRIVATE

RAMP

Railroad

Temple Municipal Boundary

Parcels

ETJ Parcels

CaseArea

CaseArea

west of Bob White Rd
Little Flock Rd and



Z-FY-16-19 Landfill Rezoning and CUP May 19, 20164

Future Land Use Map

Date: 3/14/2016

TOWER RD

E AVE H

LA
N

D
FI

LL
 R

DÜ
Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-19

Ag to Lt Ind

Address: south of Little

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

Date: 3/14/2016
 dredmond

FUTURE LAND
USE MAP

EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

MINOR ARTERIAL

PRIVATE

RAMP

Parcels

Future LUP

Agricultural/Rural

Auto-Urban Commercial

Auto-Urban Mixed Use

Auto-Urban Multi-Family

Auto-Urban Residential

Business Park

Estate Residential

Industrial

Neighborhood Conservation

Parks & Open Space

Public Institutional

Suburban Commercial

Suburban Residential

Temple Medical Education District

Urban Center

CaseArea

Bob White Rd
Flock Rd and west of

Bo
b 

W
hi

te
 R

oa
d

Tower Road

Little Flock Road



Z-FY-16-19 Landfill Rezoning and CUP May 19, 20165

Thoroughfare and Trails Map

Date: 3/14/2016

TOWER RD

E AVE H

LA
N

D
FI

LL
 R

DÜ
Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-19

Ag to Lt Ind

Address: south of Little

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

Date: 3/14/2016
 dredmond

Parcels

Thoroughfare Plan

Expressway

Major Arterial

Proposed Major
Arterial

Minor Arterial

Proposed Minor
Arterial

Collector

Proposed
Collector

Trails Master Plan

[ EXISTING, CITY
WIDE SPINE

! EXISTING,
COMMUNITY
WIDE
CONNECTOR

EXISTING,
LOCAL
CONNECTOR

[ PROPOSED,
CITY WIDE
SPINE

! PROPOSED,
COMMUNITY
WIDE
CONNECTOR

PROPOSED,
LOCAL
CONNECTOR

CaseArea

CaseArea

THOROUGHFARE
AND TRAILS MAP

Bob White Rd
Flock Rd and west of

Bo
b 

W
hi

te
 R

oa
d

Tower Road

Little Flock Road



Z-FY-16-19 Landfill Rezoning and CUP May 19, 20166

Utility Map

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF
GF

GF

GF GF GF

GF GF

GF
GF

GF
GF

GF GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF
GF
GF

GF

GF

GF
GF

GF

GF

GF

12

6

8

10

2

12

6

6
8

SE
 H

 K
 D

O
D

G
EN

 L
O

O
P

P
A

N
D

A
 D

R

LA
N

D
FI

LL
 R

D

LORRAINE AVE

BULLSEYE LN

E AVE H

E AVE H

Wilson Park

TOWER RD

Ü
Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-19

Ag to Lt Ind

Addresses: south of

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

UTILITY MAP

 dredmond
Date: 3/14/2016

Manhole

Gravity Main

GF Hydrant

Main

Parcels

CaseArea

CaseArea

of Bob White Rd
Little Flock Rd and west

Bo
b 

W
hi

te
 R

oa
d

Tower Road

Little Flock Road



Z-FY-16-19 Landfill Rezoning and CUP May 19, 20167

Notification Map

TOWER RD

E AVE H

E AVE H

BULLSEYE LN

LA
N

D
FI

LL
R

D

Ü

Date: 3/14/2016
 dredmond

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-19

Agriculture to Light Industrial

Address :
south of Little Flock

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

200'
NOTIFICATION MAP

Buffer

CaseArea

CaseArea

Buffer

Road & west of Bob
White Road

Bo
b 

W
hi

te
 R

oa
d

Tower Road

Little Flock Road



Z-FY-16-19 Landfill Rezoning and CUP May 19, 20168

Returned Property Notice



Z-FY-16-19 Landfill Rezoning and CUP May 19, 20169

Returned Property Notice



Z-FY-16-19 Landfill Rezoning and CUP May 19, 201610

Returned Property Notice



Z-FY-16-19 Landfill Rezoning and CUP May 19, 201611

Returned Property Notice



Z-FY-16-19 Landfill Rezoning and CUP May 19, 201612

Returned Property Notice



Z-FY-16-19 Landfill Rezoning and CUP May 19, 201613

Returned Property Notice



Z-FY-16-19 Landfill Rezoning and CUP May 19, 201614

Returned Property Notice



Z-FY-16-19 Landfill Rezoning and CUP May 19, 201615

Returned Property Notice



Z-FY-16-19 Landfill Rezoning and CUP May 19, 201616

Returned Property Notice



Z-FY-16-19 Landfill Rezoning and CUP May 19, 201617

Returned Property Notice



Z-FY-16-19 Landfill Rezoning and CUP May 19, 201618

Returned Property Notice



Z-FY-16-19 Landfill Rezoning and CUP May 19, 201619
Bob White Road

Proposed Light Industrial Zoning DistrictExisting Agricultural Zoning District

Existing Zoning District versus Proposed Zoning District

Existing landfill with CUPExisting landfill with CUP

Little Flock Road

Tower Road

Bo
b 

W
hi

te
 R

oa
d

Bo
b 

W
hi

te
 R

oa
d

Tower Road

Little Flock Road

Agricultural
Light Industrial 
Light Industrial with a CUP
ETJ
Subject Property Boundary



 
 

1 

ORDINANCE NO.     
(Z-FY-16-19) 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A REZONING FROM AGRICULTURAL TO LIGHT 
INDUSTRIAL AND APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO 
ALLOW FOR LANDFILL USE IN THE LIGHT INDUSTRIAL ZONE ON AN 
APPROXIMATELY 283.73 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, RECENTLY 
ANNEXED INTO THE CITY OF TEMPLE BY ORDINANCE NO. 2015-4733, 
LOCATED TO THE SOUTH OF LITTLE FLOCK ROAD AND TO THE WEST 
OF BOB WHITE ROAD; DECLARING FINDINGS OF FACT; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Whereas, the applicant has requested a rezoning of an approximately 283.73 acre tract of 

land located to the south of Little Flock Road and to the west of Bob White Road from 
Agricultural to Light Industrial with a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow for a landfill use; 

 
Whereas, the property includes land that was recently annexed into the Temple city 

limits by Ordinance No. 2015-4733 and the annexation of the property was conducted in 
accordance with Chapter 42 of the Texas Local Government Code; 

 
Whereas, the property is located to the south of Little Flock Road, to the west of Bob 

White Road, to the north of Tower Road and to the east of the existing landfill – the property is 
proposed to be used for the expansion of the existing landfill and the Light Industrial zoning 
district requires the applicant obtain a CUP for a landfill use; 

 
Whereas, the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance of the City of Temple, Texas, provides 

for the issuance of conditional use permits under certain conditions and authorizes the City 
Council to impose such developmental standards and safeguards as the conditions and locations 
indicate to be important to the welfare or protection of adjacent property and for the protection of 
adjacent property from excessive noise, vibration, dust, dirt, smoke, fumes, gas, odor, explosion, 
glare, offensive view or other undesirable or hazardous conditions, and for the establishment of 
conditions of operation, time limits, location, arrangement and construction for any use for which 
a permit is authorized;  

 
Whereas, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Temple, Texas, after due 

consideration of the conditions, operation and location of the property in question, recommends 
that the City Council approve the rezoning of the property from Agricultural to Light Industrial 
and approve the application for the Conditional Use Permit for landfill use in the Light Industrial 
zone; and 

 
Whereas, the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, after public notice as required 

by law, has at a public hearing, carefully considered all the evidence submitted by the applicant 
concerning the proposed plans for this tract of land, and has heard the comments and evidence 
presented by all persons supporting or opposing this application at said public hearing, and after 
examining the conditions, operation and the location of said property, finds that the proposed use 
of the property substantially complies with the comprehensive plan and the area plan adopted by 
the City Council. 



 
 

2 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 

TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Part 1: The City Council approves a rezoning of an approximately 283.73 acre tract of 

land located to the south of Little Flock Road and to the west of Bob White Road from 
Agricultural to Light Industrial with a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow for a landfill use. 
The property is more fully described in Exhibit ‘A’, attached hereto and made a part hereof for 
all purposes. 

 
Part 2: The owners/applicants, shall comply with following standards:   
 
A. the development of the property must conform to the Light Industrial Zoning District 

standards; 
B. the landfill shall comply with all applicable State and Federal regulations; 
C. the permittee shall work with Planning Staff to develop a fence and tree buffering 

plan to preserve some of the perimeter canopy trees and mitigate negative visual 
appearance;  

D. an expansion beyond the approximately 283.73 acres of the landfill is subject to 
proper permit processes, including an additional conditional use permit; 

E. the permittee shall operate in such a manner as to prevent excessive noise, dirt, litter, 
and odors on the property or in the surrounding area and shall operate in such a 
manner as to minimize disturbance to surrounding property owners; 

F. a conditional use permit issued under this section runs with the property and is not 
affected by a change in the land ownership; 

G. the City Council may revoke, suspend or modify the conditional use permit after 
notice to the property owner and hearing before the City Council if the City Council 
finds evidence of fraud or deception, violation of conditions of the conditional use 
permit, or as provided in Section 7-609 and 7-610 of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 
Part 3: The Director of Planning is hereby directed to make the necessary changes to the 

City Zoning Map accordingly. 
 
Part 4: The declarations, determinations and findings declared, made and found in the 

preamble of this ordinance are hereby adopted, restated and made a part of the operative 
provisions hereof. 

 
Part 5: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 

paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the final 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of 
the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this ordinance, since the 
same would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance of 
any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 6: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is accordingly 
so ordained. 

 



 
 

3 

Part 7: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 19th day of 

May, 2016. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 2nd day of June, 2016. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 

 
_______________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
___________________________   ______________________________ 
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

06/02/16 
Item #4(N) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Floyd Mitchell, Chief of Police 
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:   Consider adopting a resolution ratifying an application for Tobacco and E-
Cigarette Enforcement funding from the Texas School Safety Center (TxSSC) in the amount of $7,275 
for the purposes of enforcing Subchapter H, Chapter 161 of the Texas Health and Safety Code for fiscal 
year 2017. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:   Texas law prohibits the sale or distribution of tobacco products to any person under 
the age of 18.  The police department proposes to use funding from the TxSSC to conduct covert 
investigations into the possible illegal sales of tobacco products to minors that violate the Health and 
Safety Code, §161.082.  All activity under the grant must be reported on a monthly basis to the TxSSC.  
The TxSSC is acting on behalf of the Department of State Health Services.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   TxSSC will reimburse contracted law enforcement agencies $75 for each 
completed investigation. The police department plans to conduct investigations at rate of 100% of the 
permitted outlets, meaning that 97 investigations are planned for the 97 tobacco permitted retail outlets 
during FY17.   
 
If this plan is met, the City will receive $7,275 in grant funds for the fourth year in a row. It is estimated 
that it will cost the City $4,159 in overtime hours as well as operational and fuel costs of $1,380 for 
police vehicles.  The total estimated expense is $5,539.  The remaining revenue would pay officer’s 
overtime for conducting compliance inspections on retail locations and provide education services to 
the public in the area of state laws pertaining to tobacco sales to minors.   
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 
 

 
 

 



1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO.     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
ADOPTING A RESOLUTION RATIFYING AN APPLICATION FOR TOBACCO 
AND E-CIGARETTE ENFORCEMENT FUNDING FROM THE TEXAS SCHOOL 
SAFETY CENTER, IN THE AMOUNT OF $7,275, FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
ENFORCING SUBCHAPTER H, CHAPTER 161 OF THE TEXAS HEALTH AND 
SAFETY CODE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

               
 

Whereas, Texas law prohibits the sale or distribution of tobacco products to any person 
under the age of 18 and the City of Temple Police Department proposes to use funding from the 
Texas School Safety Center (TxSSC) to conduct covert investigations into the possible illegal sales 
of tobacco products to minors that violate Texas Health and Safety Code, §161.082; 
 

Whereas, this enforcement is expected to continue to reduce the extent to which cigarettes 
and tobacco products are sold or distributed to persons who are younger than 18 years of age and to 
ensure compliance with all applicable State laws; 
 

Whereas, TxSSC will reimburse contracted law enforcement agencies $75.00 for each 
completed investigation - the police department plans to conduct investigations at rate of 100% of 
the permitted outlets which means that 97 investigations are planned for the 97 tobacco permitted 
retail outlets during fiscal year 2017;  
 

Whereas, if this plan is met, the City will receive $7,275 in grant funds for the fourth year in 
a row - it is estimated that it will cost the City $4,159 in overtime hours as well as operational and 
fuel costs of $1,380 for police vehicles; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council authorizes the ratification of an application for Tobacco 
Enforcement funding from the Texas School Safety Center for the purposes of enforcing Subchapter 
H, Chapter 161 of the Texas Health and Safety Code for fiscal year 2017, in the amount of $7,275. 
 

Part 2: The City Manager, or his designee, is authorized to execute any documents which 
may be necessary for this purpose, after approval as to form by the City Attorney. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Resolution 
was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose 
of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



2 
 

 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of June, 2016. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 

              
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
  
               
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

 

 

 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

  06/02/16 
Item #4(O) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

 
 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
 
Traci Barnard, Director of Finance 
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing budget amendments for fiscal year 
2015-2016. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: This item is to recommend various budget amendments, based on the adopted 
FY 2015-2016 budget. The amendments will involve transfers of funds between contingency 
accounts, department and fund levels. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The total amount of budget amendments is $819,042. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Budget Amendments 
Resolution 
 
 

  



CITY OF TEMPLE

BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR FY 2016 BUDGET

June 02, 2016

APPROPRIATIONS

ACCOUNT # PROJECT # DESCRIPTION Debit Credit

110-3700-524-2220 Capital < $5,000 / Machinery & Equipment 2,849$           
110-0000-461-0554 Insurance Claims / Insurance Claims 2,849$           

To appropriate insurance proceeds in the amount of $2,849 for replacement of a stolen
mower.  

110-2011-521-2516 Other Services / Judgement & Damages 16,193$         
110-0000-461-0554 Insurance Claims / Insurance Claims 16,193$         

To appropriate insurance proceeds in the amount of $16,192.76 for asset # 14045, 
asset # 13287, and # 14055 that were damaged.

561-5000-535-6532 Capital - Bonds / Contingency 800,000$       

561-5200-535-6955 101308 Capital - Bonds / Elm Creek Waterline Improvements 800,000$       

To reallocate remaining project funds into contingency account for future use on other
projects.

TOTAL AMENDMENTS 819,042$       819,042$       

Reconciliation
GENERAL FUND

Beginning Contingency Balance -$               
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -                 
Carry forward from Prior Year -                 
Taken From Contingency -                 
Net Balance of Contingency Account -$                   

Beginning Judgments & Damages Contingency 44,230$         
Added to Contingency Judgments & Damages from Council Contingency -                 
Taken From Judgments & Damages (34,318)          
Net Balance of Judgments & Damages Contingency Account 9,912$           

Beginning Compensation Contingency 375,000$       
Added to Compensation Contingency -                 
Taken From Compensation Contingency (375,000)        
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account -$                   

Net Balance Council Contingency 9,912$           

Beginning Balance Budget Sweep Contingency -$               
Added to Budget Sweep Contingency -                 
Taken From Budget Sweep -                 
Net Balance of Budget Sweep Contingency Account -$                   

WATER & SEWER FUND

Beginning Contingency Balance 50,000$         
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -                 
Taken From Contingency (23,198)          
Net Balance of Contingency Account 26,802$         

Beginning Compensation Contingency 64,000$         
Added to Compensation Contingency -                 
Taken From Compensation Contingency (64,000)          
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account -$                   

Net Balance Water & Sewer Fund Contingency 26,802$         

1



CITY OF TEMPLE

BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR FY 2016 BUDGET

June 02, 2016

APPROPRIATIONS

ACCOUNT # PROJECT # DESCRIPTION Debit Credit

HOTEL/MOTEL TAX FUND

Beginning Contingency Balance -$               
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -                 
Carry forward from Prior Year -                 
Taken From Contingency -                 
Net Balance of Contingency Account -$                   

Beginning Compensation Contingency 13,300$         
Added to Compensation Contingency -                 
Taken From Compensation Contingency (13,300)          
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account -$                   

Net Balance Hotel/Motel Tax Fund Contingency -$               

DRAINAGE FUND

Beginning Contingency Balance -$               
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -                 
Carry forward from Prior Year -                 
Taken From Contingency -                 
Net Balance of Contingency Account -$               

Beginning Compensation Contingency 10,300$         
Added to Compensation Contingency (10,300)          
Taken From Compensation Contingency -                 
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account -$                   

Net Balance Drainage Fund Contingency -$               

FED/STATE GRANT FUND

Beginning Contingency Balance -$               
Carry forward from Prior Year 69,089           
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -                 
Taken From Contingency (54,142)          

Net Balance of Contingency Account 14,947$         

2



 
RESOLUTION NO.    

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, APPROVING BUDGET AMENDMENTS TO THE 
2015-2016 CITY BUDGET; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 Whereas, on the 27th day of August, 2015, the City Council approved a budget 
for the 2015-2016 fiscal year; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council deems it in the public interest to make certain 
amendments to the 2015-2016 City Budget. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1:  The City Council approves amending the 2015-2016 City Budget by 
adopting the budget amendments which are more fully described in Exhibit ‘A,’ 
attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes. 
 
 Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice 
of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open 
Meetings Act. 
  
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of June, 2016. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
             

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
             
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
06/02/16 
Item #5 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 2  

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:   FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING: Consider adopting an ordinance 
amending Chapter 41, “Credit Access Businesses,” of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Temple, 
Texas to delete Section 41-11 “Submission of Quarterly Report.”  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Conduct a public hearing, and adopt ordinance as presented in item 
description on first reading, and set second and final reading for June 16, 2016.  
 
ITEM SUMMARY: On December 17, 2016, the City Council passed an ordinance creating Chapter 41 
of the Code of Ordinances which is titled “Credit Access Businesses.” Chapter 41 regulates certain 
business practices of “Credit Access Businesses,” also commonly referred to as “payday lenders” or 
“auto title loan lenders.” A Credit Access Business (“CAB”) is defined in the Texas Finance Code, § 
393.601 as a “credit services organization that obtains for a consumer or assists a consumer in 
obtaining an extension of credit in the form of a deferred presentment transaction or a motor vehicle 
title loan.” There are currently 14 CAB’s operating within the Temple city limits.  
 
Chapter 41 was based on a model ordinance that was drafted by the Texas Municipal League and that 
has been adopted by more than 25 cities in Texas. The ordinance places the following requirements 
and restrictions on CAB’s: 
 

 A CAB must apply for and receive a certificate of registration from the City; 
 A CAB must maintain complete records of all loans made by the business for at least 3 years 

and make the records available to the City for inspection upon request; 
 The amount of a payday loan may not exceed 20% of the consumer’s gross monthly income; 
 The amount of an auto title loan may not exceed the lesser of 3% of the consumer’s gross annual 

income or 70% of the retail value of the motor vehicle; 
 Any loan that provides for repayment in installments may not be payable in more than 4 

installments, and the proceeds from each installment must be used to repay at least 25% of the 
principal amount of the loan;  

 No renewals or refinancing of installment-payment loans would be permitted; 
 Any loan that provides for a single lump sum repayment may not be refinanced or renewed more 

than 3 times and the proceeds from each refinancing or renewal must be used to repay at least 
25% of the principal amount of the loan; 
 



06/02/16 
Item #5 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 2  

 
 

 Any loan made to a consumer within 7 days of a previous loan paid by the consumer constitutes 
a refinancing or renewal; 

 Every agreement must be written in the consumer’s language of preference and if a consumer 
is unable to read, it must be read to them in their language of preference prior to signature; and 

 Referral to non-profit credit counseling/financial education providers is required. 
 
Section 41-11 requires a CAB to submit a quarterly report to the Director of Finance which must contain, 
at a minimum, the information required for the quarterly reports submitted to the Texas Consumer Credit 
Commissioner under Section 393.627 of the Texas Finance Code. Failure to submit a quarterly report 
may result in revocation or suspension of the CAB’s certificate of registration.  
 
Section 41-11 is the only section of Chapter 41 that is different from the Texas Municipal League model 
ordinance. It was added after staff discussions and discussions with legal counsel for TML. The intent 
of this section was to ensure that CAB’s were submitting the reports as required by State law and to 
obtain information that may be helpful in tracking compliance with the City’s ordinance. Staff has since 
learned that sections of the reports are confidential by law and after reviewing a sample report received 
from the Office of Consumer Credit Commissioner, it was determined that the information contained in 
the reports would not help track compliance. For these reasons, Staff is now requesting that the current 
language of Section 41-11 be deleted and that the section be reserved for possible future use. The 
proposed changes are set forth below: 
 
41-11- Submission of Quarterly Report.- Reserved 
 

(a) Each credit access business holding or possessing a current certificate of registration shall be 
required to submit a quarterly report to the Director of Finance for the City of Temple, which must 
contain at a minimum the information required for the quarterly reports submitted to the Texas 
Consumer Credit Commissioner under Section 393.627 of the Texas Finance Code.  
 

(b) Failure of a credit access business to submit a quarterly report to the Director of Finance may result 
in revocation or suspension of the business’s certificate of registration in addition to any other 
penalties allowed under this chapter, other city ordinance or state law. 

 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: None 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 
Ordinance 
 
  



 1

ORDINANCE NO.   
  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AMENDING CHAPTER 41, “CREDIT ACCESS BUSINESSES” OF 
THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS TO 
DELETE SECTION 41-11 “SUBMISSION OF QUARTERLY REPORT;” 
PROVIDING A REPEALER; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

               
 
 Whereas, on December 17, 2016, Council passed an ordinance creating Chapter 41 of 
the Code of Ordinances titled “Credit Access Businesses” - Chapter 41 regulates certain 
business practices of “Credit Access Businesses,” also commonly referred to as “payday 
lenders” or “auto title loan lenders;” 
 

Whereas, a Credit Access Business (“CAB”) is defined in the Texas Finance Code, § 
393.601 as a “credit services organization that obtains for a consumer or assists a consumer in 
obtaining an extension of credit in the form of a deferred presentment transaction or a motor 
vehicle title loan” - there are currently 14 CAB’s operating within the Temple city limits;  
 
 Whereas, Chapter 41 was based on a model ordinance that was drafted by the Texas 
Municipal League and that has been adopted by more than 25 cities in Texas - the ordinance 
places the following requirements and restrictions on CAB’s: 
 

 a CAB must apply for and receive a certificate of registration from the City; 
 a CAB must maintain complete records of all loans made by the business for at least 3 

years and make the records available to the City for inspection upon request; 
 the amount of a payday loan may not exceed 20% of the consumer’s gross monthly 

income; 
 the amount of an auto title loan may not exceed the lesser of 3% of the consumer’s gross 

annual income or 70% of the retail value of the motor vehicle; 
 any loan that provides for repayment in installments may not be payable in more than 4 

installments, and the proceeds from each installment must be used to repay at least 25% 
of the principal amount of the loan;  

 no renewals or refinancing of installment-payment loans are permitted; 
 any loan that provides for a single lump sum repayment may not be refinanced or 

renewed more than 3 times and the proceeds from each refinancing or renewal must be 
used to repay at least 25% of the principal amount of the loan; 

 any loan made to a consumer within 7 days of a previous loan paid by the consumer 
constitutes a refinancing or renewal; 

 every agreement must be written in the consumer’s language of preference and if a 
consumer is unable to read, it must be read to them in their language of preference prior 
to signature; and 

 referral to non-profit credit counseling/financial education providers is required; 
 
 
 



 2

 
Whereas, Section 41-11 requires a CAB to submit a quarterly report to the Director of 

Finance which must contain, at a minimum, the information required for the quarterly reports 
submitted to the Texas Consumer Credit Commissioner under Section 393.627 of the Texas 
Finance Code - failure to submit a quarterly report may result in revocation or suspension of the 
CAB’s certificate of registration; 
 

Whereas, Section 41-11 is the only section of Chapter 41 that is different from the Texas 
Municipal League model ordinance - it was added after Staff discussions and discussions with 
legal counsel for Texas Municipal League; 
 

Whereas, the intent of this section was to ensure that CAB’s were submitting the reports as 
required by State law and to obtain information that may be helpful in tracking compliance with 
the City’s ordinance - Staff has since learned that sections of the reports are confidential by law 
and after reviewing a sample report received from the Office of Consumer Credit 
Commissioner, it was determined that the information contained in the reports would not help 
track compliance; 

 
Whereas, for these reasons, Staff recommends the removal of the current language of 

Section 41-11 and that the section be reserved for possible future use as set forth below: 
 
41-11- Submission of Quarterly Report. Reserved. 
 

(a) Each credit access business holding or possessing a current certificate of registration 
shall be required to submit a quarterly report to the Director of Finance for the City of 
Temple, which must contain at a minimum the information required for the quarterly 
reports submitted to the Texas Consumer Credit Commissioner under Section 393.627 of 
the Texas Finance Code.  
 

(b) Failure of a credit access business to submit a quarterly report to the Director of Finance 
may result in revocation or suspension of the business’s certificate of registration in 
addition to any other penalties allowed under this chapter, other city ordinance or state 
law.; and 
 

 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest 
to authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: The City Council deletes and reserves Section 41-11 of Chapter 41, “Credit 
Access Businesses” of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Temple, Texas. 
 

Part 2: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 



 3

 
 

Part 3: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the final 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of 
the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this ordinance, since the 
same would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance 
of any such invalid phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 4: This ordinance shall take effect immediately after its passage in accordance with 
the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is accordingly so ordained. 
 

Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 2nd day of 
June, 2016. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 16th day of June, 2016. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
 
              
       DANIEL A. DUNN, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



   
 
            

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
 
 

06/02/16 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 5 

 
DEPARTMENT / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:   
Brian Chandler, Director of Planning 
Mark Baker, Senior Planner 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  FIRST READING  - PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-16-21: Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a rezoning from Single Family Three - Planned Development (SF-3-PD) District 
to General Retail (GR) District on Lots 4-7, 21-25, Block 13, Hilldell Estates, located at 18 South Pea 
Ridge. 

 
Figure 1: Aerial Location Map 

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: At their May 2, 2016 meeting, the 
Planning & Zoning Commission voted 7 to 0 to recommend approval for Neighborhood Services (NS) 
for the proposed rezoning. 
 
While the General Retail district is the standard retail district, during the Planning & Zoning Commission 
meeting, a comparison between the Neighborhood Service (NS) district and the General Retail (GR) 
district was discussed. Additional discussion centered on the merits of recommending Neighborhood 
Services (NS) at this location. While many of the same uses are permitted between NS & GR, there 
are some differences as shown in the following table: 
 

Use Type Neighborhood Service (NS) General Retail (GR) 

Residential Uses 

* Single Family Residence 
(Detached & Attached)                         
*  Townhouse                                        
*  Industrialized Housing                      
* Family or Group Home (CUP)            

* Single Family Residence 
(Detached & Attached)                        
*  Duplex                                                
*  Townhouse                                        
*  Industrialized Housing                     
* Family or Group Home                      
*  Home for the Aged 

Retail & Service Uses 

* Most Retail & Service Uses               
* Beer & Wine Sales, off-premise 
consumption (CUP) 

* Most Retail & Service Uses              
* Alcoholic Beverage Sales, off-
premise consumption, Package 
Store (CUP) 

N. Pea Ridge Rd.

W. Adams Ave (FM

West Temple Park



Commercial Uses 

*  None                                                   *   Plumbing Shop                                
*   Upholstery Shop                             
*   Kennel No Vet. Hosp. (CUP)           
*   Indoor Flea Market 

Industrial Uses 

* Temporary Asphalt & Concrete 
Batching Plat (CUP)                              
*  Laboratory, medical, dental, 
scientific or research (CUP)                 

* Temporary Asphalt & Concrete 
Batching Plat (CUP)                             
*  Laboratory, medical, dental, 
scientific or research                           
* Recycling collection location  

Recreational Uses 
* Park or Playground                            
* Beer & Wine (On Premise 
Consumption) < 75% (CUP) 

* Park or Playground                           
* Beer & Wine (On Premise 
Consumption) < 75% 

Vehicle Service Uses 

* Fuel Sales (CUP)                                 * Auto Leasing, Rental                         
*  Auto Sales - New & Used                 
* Car Wash                                            
* Vehicle Servicing  (Minor) 

Restaurant Uses * No Drive-In * With & Without Drive-In 
Overnight Accommodations * None * Hotel or Motel 

Transportation Uses 
* Helistop (CUP)                                    * Emergency Vehicle Service              

* Helistop  

In addition, as a result of adjacent property owner opposition from increased traffic, it was discussed 
during the meeting and noted by Commissioner Mikeska-Reed that it was felt that there would not be 
a significant amount of increased traffic, especially in NS. During the meeting, the applicant reiterated 
the desire to redevelop the property with non-residential uses. The applicant is in agreement with 
rezoning to the NS district. 
 
Further, the property owner immediately to the south has approached staff and indicated a desire to 
also rezone the property with general retail service uses. To date, while an application has not been 
received by staff, the property owner has an approved a Flood Plain Development Permit through the 
City Engineer’s office to allow the fill and build-up the foundation above the base floodplain elevation 
of the property.       
 
Although staff recommended GR, we are supportive of the NS district at this location.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Based on the following, staff recommends approval for a rezoning from 
Single Family 3 - Planned Development (SF-3 PD) district to General Retail (GR) district for the 
following reasons: 

1. The proposed zoning is compatible with the lack of residential development south of 
Georgia Ave and the anticipated non-residential development and growth along South 
Pea Ridge Road and West Adams (FM 2305);  

2. The request complies with the Thoroughfare Plan; and   
3. Public facilities are available to serve the subject property.   

 
ITEM SUMMARY: The subject property is currently developed with a single family residence, which is 
comprised of Lots 4 through 7 and 21 through 25, Block 13, Hilldell Estates subdivision, an 
approximately 1.14 +/- acre tract of land. As per Ordinance 95-2321, Block 13 was included with the 
overall establishment of the current Single-Family Three – Planned Development (SF-3- PD) zoning, 
which became effective on March 2, 1995. The current request is from the SF-3 PD to General Retail 
(GR) for future non-residential development.  
 
 
 



06/02/16 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 5 

 
The Planned Development as adopted by Ordinance 95-2321 identifies zoning classification for a 
portion of Hilldell Estates subdivision and identifies development and dimensional standards for (1) 
single family detached homes, (2) industrialized modular homes and (3) mobile homes, which were 
occupied and existed at the time of ordinance adoption.  
 

 Surrounding Property & Uses  

Direction Future Land Use Map Zoning Current Land Use 
Site Suburban Residential SF-3 PD Existing Residence       

North Suburban Residential SF-3 PD Undeveloped 

South Suburban Residential SF-3 PD Undeveloped 

East 
Suburban Commercial          &  

Auto-Urban Residential 
GR 

Big Chew Chew’s 
Restaurant 

West Parks & Open Space AG West Temple Park 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN (CP) COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following 
goals, objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 
 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Compliance? 
CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use Map  NO 
CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  YES 

CP 
Goal 4.1 - Growth and development patterns should be 
consistent with the City’s infrastructure and public service 
capacities 

YES 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance YES 
CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 

 
Future Land Use Map (CP Map 3.1) 
The subject property is entirely within the Suburban Residential land use district. Platted by the Hilldell 
Estates subdivision, with SF-3 Planned Development zoning, land immediately to the north and the 
south is vacant and undeveloped, leaving the subject property the only residentially-developed lot south 
of Georgia Avenue Based on this, Georgia Ave could be considered a boundary between potential 
retail and service uses and development while maintaining the residential character north of Georgia 
Avenue. Lastly, the property across from the subject site is developed with non-residential uses (Big 
Chew Chews Burgers) with underlying GR zoning. This has established non-residential uses along this 
portion of South Pea Ridge, which is less than 200 feet north from its intersection with West Adams 
Avenue (FM 2305). 
 
While neither the NS or the requested GR zoning are not consistent with the Future Land Use Map, 
the area lends itself to a transitioning to non-residential zoning and uses due to its location south of 
Georgia Ave and proximity to West Adams Ave. If the zoning is approved, the Future Land Use Map 
will need to be updated. 
 
Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) 
The subject property takes access from south Pea Ridge Road, a proposed collector.  Any needed 
right-of-way (ROW) to meet the road standards will be addressed with any re-platting of the property.   
 



06/02/16 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 4 of 5 

 
While not funded, Series Three TCIP improvements to this section of North Pea Ridge Road are 
scheduled for fiscal year 2019.  
 
Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
Sewer is available to the subject property through an existing 8-inch sewer line in South Pea Ridge 
Road.  Water is available through an existing 1.5-inch waterline on the west side of the property.   
 
Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance 
No trails were identified by the Trails Master Plan fronting along this property. Since South Pea Ridge 
Road is identified as a proposed collector, a 4-foot sidewalk would be required along one side of the 
street. Sidewalk improvements however would not be addressed until re-platting, which would be 
triggered by non-single-family residential development. 
 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: Setbacks for detached residential uses in the SF-3 PD and the 
non-residential setbacks in the General Retail (GR) district are as follows: 
  

 
Current  (SF-3 PD) 

(SF Residential)  
Proposed (GR) 

(Non-Residential) 

Minimum Lot Size 4,000 Square Feet N/A 

Minimum Lot Width 40 Feet N/A 

Minimum Lot Depth 100 Feet N/A 

Front Setback 15 Feet 15 Feet 

Side Setback 5 Feet 10 Feet 

Side Setback (corner) 15 Feet 10 Feet 

Rear Setback 10 Feet       10 Feet 

Max Building Height  2 1/2 Stories  3 Stories  
 
 10’ rear setback (Non-residential use abuts a residential zoning district or use - UDC Section 

4.4.4.F3) and, 
 
General provisions for buffering and screening for non-residential uses adjacent to residential uses 
are found in UDC Section 7.7, highlighted provisions include but not limited to: 
 
* Landscaping or solid fencing from 6 to 8 feet in height (UDC Section 7.7.4), 
* Refuse containers located in the side or rear of the property (UDC Section 7.7.6), and  
* Screened outdoor storage (UDC Section 7.7.8.B1). 
  
PUBLIC NOTICE: Fifteen notices to property owners within 200-feet of the subject property were sent 
notice of  the public hearing as required by State law and City Ordinance.  As of Tuesday May 24, 2016 
at 9:00 AM, three notices in agreement of the proposed rezoning and three notices in disagreement 
have been received.  
 
The newspaper printed notice of the public hearing on April 21, 2016, in accordance with state law and 
local ordinance. 
 
 



06/02/16 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 5 of 5 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Site and Surrounding Property Photos 
Location Map (Exhibit A) 
Aerial Map / Zoning Map / Future Land Use and Character Map    
Thoroughfare & Trails Map / Utility Map 
Notification Map / Returned Property Notices 
Planned Development Ordinance #95-2321 
Ordinance 
 
  



Site & Surrounding Property Photos 
 

 
 

Site – Looking from N. Pea Ridge Road - Existing SF Residence (SF-3 - PD) 
 
 

 
 

Site – Alternative View from N. Pea Ridge Road: SFR (SF-3-PD) 



 
 

North:  North Pea Ridge Road – SF Residences on both sides of Street  
Hilldell Estates on Left (SF-3-PD) – Westfield, Phase X on Right (SF-2) 

 

 
 

North: SF Residences along North Pea Ridge Road – North of Georgia Ave 
alignment (Hilldell Estates subdivision - SF-3-PD) 

 



 
 

North: Georgia Ave - Current Alignment Conditions (SF-3-PD) 
 
 

 
 

North: Looking back toward the site from Georgia Ave Alignment  
(SF-3-PD) 

 



 
 

South: Intersection of S. Pea Ridge Road & W. Adams (FM2305) - Undeveloped 
(AG & GR) 

 

 
 

East: Big Chew Chew’s Burgers – (GR) 
 

 



 
 

West: West Temple Park (AG) 
 
 



N
 P
EA

 R
ID

G
E 
R
D

S
PE
A
RI
D
G
E
RD

REDBRUSH

HONEYSUCKLE

HAWTHORN

GEORGIA AVE

N
 M

O
N
TP

A
R
K
 R
D

S 
M
O
N
TP

A
R
K
 R
D

BRIDGEPOINTE DR

DELAWARE AVE

GEORGIA AVE

WADAM
SAVE

West Temple Park121

8015

18

121

8150

6

30

30

206

2

4

2

6

21

21

10

16

116

8420

8501

108

108

21

8213

8506

8119

10

18

12

8426

8417

8409

8418

50

8118

8514

8122

16

8123

8505

214

112

209

110

208

202

102

120

108

8135

8115

8111

8112

8005

8111

8131

8110

8125

8506

8127

8009

8506

8138

8013

8001

101

8017

8107

8107

8108

8429

8430
8103

8106

8103

8021

8114

8104

8025

8102

8023

8024

8021

8024

8019

8020

8025

8017

7923

8020

8015

8129

8015

8016

8013

8016

8011

8012

8009

8012

8103

8009

8008

7919

8005

8109

8119

8103

8007

8115

8011

8008

8005

7915

8004

8004

7925

8107

7924

7924

8133

7921

7920

8008

8110

8111

8425

8130

8134

8020

8106
8102

8024

8016
80128126

8004

7916

50

8006

7925

8012

8205

8016
213122 8104

500
100

110
110

8003

7920

7917

7911

81102108505

8515

7924

8116

8002

7912

8602

Ü

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-21

SF-3 PD to GR

Address :
18 South Pea Ridge

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

LOCATION MAP

 mbaker
Date: 3/31/2016

Streets

EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

MINOR ARTERIAL

PRIVATE

RAMP

Railroad

Temple Municipal Boundary

Parcels

ETJ Parcels

CaseArea

mbaker
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



N
 P
EA

 R
ID

G
E 
R
D

S
PE
A
RI
D
G
E
RD

REDBRUSH

HONEYSUCKLE

HAWTHORN

GEORGIA AVE

N
 M

O
N
TP

A
R
K
 R
D

S 
M
O
N
TP

A
R
K
 R
D

BRIDGEPOINTE DR

DELAWARE AVE

GEORGIA AVE

WADAM
SAVE

West Temple Park121

8015

18

121

8150

6

30

30

206

2

4

2

6

21

21

10

16

116

8420

8501

108

108

21

8213

8506

8119

10

18

12

8426

8417

8409

8418

50

8118

8514

8122

16

8123

8505

214

112

209

110

208

202

102

120

108

8135

8115

8111

8112

8005

8111

8131

8110

8125

8506

8127

8009

8506

8138

8013

8001

101

8017

8107

8107

8108

8429

8430
8103

8106

8103

8021

8114

8104

8025

8102

8023

8024

8021

8024

8019

8020

8025

8017

7923

8020

8015

8129

8015

8016

8013

8016

8011

8012

8009

8012

8103

8009

8008

7919

8005

8109

8119

8103

8007

8115

8011

8008

8005

7915

8004

8004

7925

8107

7924

7924

8133

7921

7920

8008

8110

8111

8425

8130

8134

8020

8106
8102

8024

8016
80128126

8004

7916

50

8006

7925

8012

8205

8016
213122 8104

500
100

110
110

8003

7920

7917

7911

81102108505

8515

7924

8116

8002

7912

8602

Ü

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-21

SF-3 PD to GR

Address :
18 South Pea Ridge

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

AERIAL MAP

 mbaker
Date: 3/31/2016

Streets

EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

MINOR ARTERIAL

PRIVATE

RAMP

Railroad

Temple Municipal Boundary

Parcels

ETJ Parcels

CaseArea





Date: 3/31/2016

8426

10

2

4

6

12

18

108
8418

8409

8417

2

6

10

30

50

50

110

110

110

30

8213

8150

101

18

100

8015

121

108

102

16

500

8021

8025
8103

8107
81118115

8119

8024

8123 8102
8106

8110

8127

8103

8131 8107
8111

8135

8108

8138
8112

West
Temple
Park

WADAMSAVE

W ADA
MS AV

E

H
A
W
TH

O
R
N

GEORGIA AVE

HONEYSUCKLE

GEORGIA AVE

R
ED

B
R
U
SH

N
 P
EA

 R
ID

G
E 
R
D

S 
P
EA

 R
ID

G
E 
R
D

S
P
EA

R
ID

G
E
R
D

Ü
Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-21

SF-3 PD to GR

Address :
18 South Pea Ridge

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

Date: 3/31/2016
 mbaker

FUTURE LAND
USE MAP

EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

MINOR ARTERIAL

PRIVATE

RAMP

Parcels

Future LUP

Agricultural/Rural

Auto-Urban Commercial

Auto-Urban Mixed Use

Auto-Urban Multi-Family

Auto-Urban Residential

Business Park

Estate Residential

Industrial

Neighborhood Conservation

Parks & Open Space

Public Institutional

Suburban Commercial

Suburban Residential

Temple Medical Education District

Urban Center

CaseArea



Date: 3/31/2016

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[ [
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

8426

10

2

4

6

12

18

108
8418

8409

8417

2

6

10

30

50

50

110

110

110

30

8213

8150

101

18

100

8015

121

108

102

16

500

8021

8025
8103

8107
81118115

8119

8024

8123 8102
8106

8110

8127

8103

8131 8107
8111

8135

8108

8138
8112

West
Temple
Park

WADAMSAVE

W ADA
MS AV

E

H
A
W
TH

O
R
N

GEORGIA AVE

HONEYSUCKLE

GEORGIA AVE

R
ED

B
R
U
SH

N
 P
EA

 R
ID

G
E 
R
D

S 
P
EA

 R
ID

G
E 
R
D

S
P
EA

R
ID

G
E
R
D

Ü
Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-21

SF-3 PD to GR

Address :
18 South Pea Ridge

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

Date: 3/31/2016
 mbaker

Parcels

Thoroughfare Plan

Expressway

Major Arterial

Proposed Major
Arterial

Minor Arterial

Proposed Minor
Arterial

Collector

Proposed
Collector

Trails Master Plan

[ EXISTING, CITY
WIDE SPINE

! EXISTING,
COMMUNITY
WIDE
CONNECTOR

EXISTING,
LOCAL
CONNECTOR

[ PROPOSED,
CITY WIDE
SPINE

! PROPOSED,
COMMUNITY
WIDE
CONNECTOR

PROPOSED,
LOCAL
CONNECTOR

CaseArea

THOROUGHFARE
AND TRAILS MAP



GF

GF

141
.5

8

8

S
PE
A
RI
D
G
E
RD

N
 P
EA

 R
ID

G
E 
R
D

GEORGIA AVE

R
ED

B
R
U
SH

W ADAM
S AVE

West Temple Park121

18

8150

30

30

2

6

2

8213

8119

10

50

8123

110

8115

100

500

4

8111

8110

110

8127

50110

8107

10

8015

Ü

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-21

SF-3 PD to GR

Address :
18 South Pea Ridge

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

UTILITY MAP

 mbaker
Date: 3/31/2016

Manhole

Gravity Main

GF Hydrant

Main

Parcels

CaseArea



10
PropID:
44380

2
PropID:
44381

4
PropID:
44382

6
PropID:
44383

2
PropID:
99354

6
PropID:
99355

10
PropID:
99356

30
PropID:
69265

50
PropID:
39277

50
PropID:
39275

110
PropID:
39276

110
PropID:
107581

110
PropID:
39278

30
PropID:
69266

8213
PropID:
124174

8150
PropID:
368871

18
PropID:
125420

100
PropID:
370632

8015
PropID:
441149

121
PropID:
208294

500
PropID:
438864

8111
PropID:
454628

8115
PropID:
454627

8119
PropID:
454626

8123
PropID:
454625

8127
PropID:
454624

8131
PropID:
454623

West
Temple
Park

W ADA
MS AV

E

R
ED

B
R
U
SH

GEORGIA AVE

N
 P
EA

 R
ID

G
E 
R
D

S 
P
EA

 R
ID

G
E 
R
D

S 
P
EA

 R
ID

G
E 
R
D

Ü

Date: 3/31/2016
 mbaker

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-21

SF-3 - PD to GR

Address :
18 South Pea Ridge

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

200'
NOTIFICATION MAP

CaseArea

Buffer























1 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO.     

 
(PLANNING NO. Z-FY-16-21) 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A REZONING FROM SINGLE FAMILY THREE 
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT TO NEIGHBORHOOD SERVICE  
DISTRICT  ON LOTS 4-7 AND LOTS 21-25, BLOCK 13, HILLDELL 
ESTATES, LOCATED AT 18 SOUTH PEA RIDGE ROAD; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
THAT: 

 
Part 1: The City Council approves a rezoning from Single Family Three 

Planned Development District to Neighborhood Service  District on Lots 4-7 and Lots 
21-25, Block 13, Hilldell Estates, located at 18 South Pea Ridge Road, as outlined in 
the map attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A,’ and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 
Part 2: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 

changes to the City Zoning Map. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the 
sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable 
and, if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be 
declared invalid by the final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, 
such invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, 
paragraphs or sections of this ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by 
the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, 
sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 4: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage 
in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 

 
Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 

this Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of 
the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open 
Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 2nd day 

of June, 2016. 



2 
 

 
 

 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 16th day of June, 2016. 

     
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
              

____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                 
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



   
 
            

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
 
 

06/02/16 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 4 

 
DEPARTMENT / DIVISION SUBMISSION: 
Brian Chandler, Director of Planning 
Mark Baker, Senior Planner 
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-16-22: Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a rezoning from Agricultural (AG) district to General Retail (GR) district on 0.993 
+/- acres of land situated in and being a part of the Baldwin Robertson Survey, A-17, Bell County, 
Texas, located east of State Highway 317 and south of Tarver Drive, addressed as 6401 State Highway 
317. 

 

 
Figure 2; Aerial Location Map 

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: At their May 2, 2016 meeting, the 
Planning & Zoning Commission voted 7 to 0 recommend approval of the proposed rezoning per staff’s 
recommendation as described in the Item Description. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Based on the following, staff recommends approval for a rezoning from 
Agricultural (AG) district to General Retail (GR) district for the following reasons: 

1. The proposed rezoning is in compliance with the Future Land Use Map’s Suburban 
Commercial District; 

2. The proposed zoning is compatible with surrounding zoning and uses;  
3. The request complies with the Thoroughfare Plan; and   
4. Public facilities are available to serve the subject property.   

 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The subject property contains a 0.993 +/- acre tract, which is being proposed for 
rezoning from Agricultural (AG) district to General Retail (GR) district.  The property is currently 
developed with several occupied residential units. 
 
 

Tarver Dr.

SH 317



06/02/16 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 4 

 
A companion final plat (Bell County Flooring Addition - P-FY-16-29) was approved by the Planning and 
Zoning Commission on May 2, 2016. The plat is a 1 Lot, 1 Block non-residential subdivision requiring 
the Planning & Zoning Commission review due to the extension of a water line.  
 

While it is anticipated the property will be developed with retail and service uses, there are a number 
of residential and non-residential uses that are permitted by right in the GR zoning district. The uses 
allowed in the GR, include but are not limited to: 
 

Permitted & Conditional Use Table - General Retail (GR) 

Agricultural Uses * Farm, Ranch or Orchard 

Residential Uses 

* Single Family Residence (Detached & Attached)             
*  Duplex                                                                                
*  Townhouse                                                                         
*  Industrialized Housing                                                      
* Family or Group Home                                                        
*  Home for the Aged 

Retail & Service Uses 
* Most Retail & Service Uses                                               
* Alcoholic Beverage Sales, off-premise consumption, 
package Store (CUP) 

Commercial Uses 

*  Plumbing Shop                                                                   
*  Upholstery Shop                                                                 
*   Kennel without Veterinary Hospital (CUP)                    
*  Indoor Flea Market 

Industrial Uses 
* Temporary Asphalt & Concrete Batching Plat (CUP)      
*  Laboratory, medical, dental, scientific or research        
* Recycling collection location  

Recreational Uses 
* Park or Playground                                                             
* Beer & Wine (On Premise Consumption) < 75% 

Vehicle Service Uses 

* Auto Leasing, Rental                                                          
*  Auto Sales - New & Used (outside Lot)                         
* Car Wash                                                                              
* Vehicle Servicing  (Minor) 

Restaurant Uses * With & Without Drive-In 
Overnight 

Accommodations 
* Hotel or Motel 

Transportation Uses 
* Emergency Vehicle Service                                              
* Helistop  

 

Prohibited uses include HUD-Code manufactured homes and land lease communities, most 
commercial uses and industrial uses.  
 

 Surrounding Property & Uses  
Direction Future Land Use Map Zoning Current Land Use 

Site Suburban Commercial AG Existing SF Residence 
North Suburban Commercial GR Undeveloped & SF Uses 
South Suburban Commercial AG  Scattered SF Uses 

East 
Suburban Commercial 

AG 
Undeveloped & Developing 

SF Uses 
West Suburban Commercial AG Undeveloped 



06/02/16 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 4 

 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN (CP) COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 
 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Compliance? 
CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use Map YES 
CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  YES 

CP 
Goal 4.1 - Growth and development patterns should be 
consistent with the City’s infrastructure and public service 
capacities 

YES 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance YES 
CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 

 
Future Land Use Map (CP Map 3.1) 
The subject property is entirely within the Suburban Commercial land use district. The Suburban 
Commercial district is intended for office and retail service-related zoning districts.  The requested GR-
zoning is in compliance with the Future Land Use Map.  
Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) 
The subject property takes access from State Highway 31, a major thoroughfare.  The companion final 
plat, Bell County Flooring Addition, is being evaluated for Thoroughfare Plan compliance. No 
Thoroughfare Plan compliance issues have been identified.    
 
Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
No sewer is available, so the property will be developed with an on-site septic system.  Water is 
available through an extension of the 6-inch waterline from Tarver Drive. The extension is being 
addressed through the subdivision plat process.   
 
Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance 
The Trails Master Plan identifies a proposed Local Connector Trail in State Highway 317. A sidewalk 
is being provided by TxDot improvements.  The sidewalk will be upsized to 10-foot as a result of City 
participation. TxDOT Construction for the State Highway 317 widening project is currently in process. 
 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: Non-residential setbacks in the Agriculture (AG) & General Retail 
(GR) districts are: 

  Current  (AG)  Proposed (GR) 
Minimum Lot Size N/A N/A 

Minimum Lot Width N/A N/A 
Minimum Lot Depth N/A N/A 

Front Setback 50 Feet 15 Feet 
Side Setback 20 Feet 10 Feet 

Side Setback (corner) 15 Feet 10 Feet 
Rear Setback 10 Feet 0 Feet 

Max Building Height  3 Stories  3 Stories  
 
  
 
 



06/02/16 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda 
Page 4 of 4 

 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Five notices to property owners within 200-feet of the subject property were sent 
notice of  the public hearing as required by State law and City Ordinance.  As of Tuesday May 24, 2016 
at 9:00 AM, one notice in agreement has been received. 
 
The newspaper printed notice of the public hearing on April 21, 2016, in accordance with state law and 
local ordinance. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Site and Surrounding Property Photos 
Surveyor Sketch (Exhibit A) 
Final Plat for Bell County Flooring Addition 
Location Map 
Aerial Map 
Zoning Map 
Future Land Use and Character Map    
Thoroughfare & Trails Map 
Utility Map 
Notification Map 
Returned Property Notices 
Ordinance 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Site & Surrounding Property Photos 
 

 
 

Site – Exising SF Residences (AG) 
 

 
 

Site – Alternative View –Scattered SF Residences (AG) 



 

 
 

North:  Existing Stripes Convenience Store (GR) 
 
 

 
 

South: Scattered SFR & Undeveloped Land (AG) 



 
 

East: Scattered SF Uses and SF Residential Development  
Village of Sage Meadows  

(AG & SF-3) 
 

 
 

West: Undeveloped Land (AG) 







TARVER DR

SA
G
EB

R
U
SH

D
R

G
R
EE

N
 P
A
ST

U
R
E 
D
R

LONESOME OAK DR

SAGE GROVE CT

SILVER SPRING CT

ST
A
TE

 H
IG
H
W
A
Y 
31

7

Village of Sage Meadows Park

6218

6217

6455

6511

6151

9115

6401

6303

6018

9215

6521
728

9210

9211

9212

9228

804

812

823

9213

9227

819
9203

9207

808

9205

815

9208

807

811

9232

802

9124
9118

9214

9114
9223

9114

724

9203

1013

9127

9204

9211
9207

9210

1012

1017

9120

9119

9202

9219

1016

9138

1020

1024

1036

1032

1028

9206

1103

1040

1053

1049

1021

1037

1033

1029

1025

9218
9214

9210
1045

9123

9134

9130

9217

729

803

92099213 92059203
1107 9142

725

1026

9212

9214

9100

1041

9126

1018

91169120
9222

1012

9111

721

9108

Ü

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-22

AG to GR

Address :
6401 N. Hwy 317

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

LOCATION MAP

 mbaker
Date: 4/6/2016

Streets

EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

MINOR ARTERIAL

PRIVATE

RAMP

Railroad

Temple Municipal Boundary

Parcels

ETJ Parcels

CaseArea



TARVER DR

SA
G
EB

R
U
SH

D
R

G
R
EE

N
 P
A
ST

U
R
E 
D
R

LONESOME OAK DR

SAGE GROVE CT

SILVER SPRING CT

ST
A
TE

 H
IG
H
W
A
Y 
31

7

Village of Sage Meadows Park

6218

6217

6455

6511

6151

9115

6401

6303

6018

9215

6521
728

9210

9211

9212

9228

804

812

823

9213

9227

819
9203

9207

808

9205

815

9208

807

811

9232

802

9124
9118

9214

9114
9223

9114

724

9203

1013

9127

9204

9211
9207

9210

1012

1017

9120

9119

9202

9219

1016

9138

1020

1024

1036

1032

1028

9206

1103

1040

1053

1049

1021

1037

1033

1029

1025

9218
9214

9210
1045

9123

9134

9130

9217

729

803

92099213 92059203
1107 9142

725

1026

9212

9214

9100

1041

9126

1018

91169120
9222

1012

9111

721

9108

Ü

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-22

AG to GR

Address :
6401 N. Hwy 317

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

AERIAL MAP

 mbaker
Date: 4/6/2016

Streets

EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

MINOR ARTERIAL

PRIVATE

RAMP

Railroad

Temple Municipal Boundary

Parcels

ETJ Parcels

CaseArea





Date: 4/6/2016

6401

6303

802

9203
9205

9207

9208

812

808

804

724

803

823

819

815

811

807

729

9134

91386018

6105

9142

11159216
9220

1111

1107

9203

92059213

9209

1103
9217

1053

1049

9202

9206

9210

9214

9218

1040
1033

1029

1025

1021

1017

1016 1013

1012 9119

9123

91279203

9207
9211

92199223
9114

9118

1045

6511

728

9211

9213

9212

9210

9120

9126

9120

6521

9100

1026

9114

9130

6217

6151

9227

9124

9204
9232 9210

9214

9222
9228

1028

1032

1036

1037

1041

6455 9212

1020

9215

9148

9154

9115

9214

1024

6218

Village
of Sage

Meadows Park

ST
A
TE

 H
IG
H
W
A
Y 
31

7

G
R
EE

N
 P
A
ST

U
R
E 
D
R

SA
G
EB

R
U
SH

D
R

SAGE GROVE CT

SILVER SPRING CT

LONESOMEOAKDR

TARVER DR

Ü
Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-22

AG to GR

Address :
6401 N. Hwy 317

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

Date: 4/6/2016
 mbaker

FUTURE LAND
USE MAP

EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

MINOR ARTERIAL

PRIVATE

RAMP

Parcels

Future LUP

Agricultural/Rural

Auto-Urban Commercial

Auto-Urban Mixed Use

Auto-Urban Multi-Family

Auto-Urban Residential

Business Park

Estate Residential

Industrial

Neighborhood Conservation

Parks & Open Space

Public Institutional

Suburban Commercial

Suburban Residential

Temple Medical Education District

Urban Center

CaseArea



Date: 4/11/2016

6401

6303

9203

9205
9207

9208

812

808

804

823

819

815

811

807

1049

920292069210

9214
9218

1040

1033

1029

1025

1021

1017

1016 1013

1012
9119

9123
9127

9203

9207
9211

92199223

9118

1045

6511

9211

9213

9212
9210

9120

9126

9120

9100

9130

6217

6151

9227

9124

9204
9232 9210

9214

92229228

1028

1032

1036

1037

1041

6455

9212

9115

9214

6218

9215 1024

1020

ST
A
TE

 H
IG
H
W
A
Y 
31

7

SA
G
EB

R
U
SH

 D
R

G
R
EE

N
 P
A
ST

U
R
E 
D
RSILVER SPRING CT

LONESOMEOAKDR

TARVER DR

Ü
Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-22

AG TO GR

Address :
6401 N Hwy 317

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

Date: 4/11/2016
 myarberry

Parcels

Thoroughfare Plan

Expressway

Major Arterial

Proposed Major
Arterial

Minor Arterial

Proposed Minor
Arterial

Collector

Proposed
Collector

Trails Master Plan

[ EXISTING, CITY
WIDE SPINE

! EXISTING,
COMMUNITY
WIDE
CONNECTOR

EXISTING,
LOCAL
CONNECTOR

[ PROPOSED,
CITY WIDE
SPINE

! PROPOSED,
COMMUNITY
WIDE
CONNECTOR

PROPOSED,
LOCAL
CONNECTOR

CaseArea

THOROUGHFARE
AND TRAILS MAP



GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF GF

GF

GF

2

6

8

8

8

8

TARVER DR

SA
G
EB

R
U
SH

 D
R

LONESOME OAK DR

G
R
EE

N
 P
A
ST

U
R
E 
D
R

SAGE GROVE CT

SILVER SPRING CT

SA
G
E 
LO

O
P
 C
T

ST
A
TE

 H
IG
H
W
A
Y 
31

7

Village of Sage Meadows Park

6218

6217

6455

6511

6151

9115

6401

6521

6303

9116

9215

728

6018

9210

9211

9212

807

9228

804 729

812

823

9213

9114
9227

724

819

811

815

9203

9207

9114

808

9205

9208

725

721

9232

803

802

9124
9118

9214

9223

9108

9105

9110

1026

9203

1013

9120

9111

9127

9204

9211
9207

9210

1012

1018

1017

9119

9202

9219

9134

9130

1016

1012

1020

1024

1036

1032

1028

9206

1040

1053

1049

1021

1037

1033

1029

1025

9218
9214

9210
1045

9123

9104

1103 9138

9103

9104

824

9217 92099213 9205 91379203

9212

9100

9214

1041

9126

822

9120
9222

820

9082

719

1107 9142

816

Ü

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-22

AG to GR

Address :
6401 N. Hwy 317

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

UTILITY MAP

 mbaker
Date: 4/6/2016

Manhole

Gravity Main

GF Hydrant

Main

Parcels

CaseArea







1 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO.     

 
(PLANNING NO. Z-FY-16-22) 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A REZONING FROM AGRICULTURAL 
DISTRICT TO GENERAL RETAIL DISTRICT ON APPROXIMATELY 0.993 
ACRES OF LAND SITUATED IN AND BEING A PART OF THE BALDWIN 
ROBERTSON SURVEY, ABSTRACT A-17, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, 
LOCATED EAST OF STATE HIGHWAY 317 AND SOUTH OF TARVER 
DRIVE, ADDRESSED AS 6401 STATE HIGHWAY 317; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
THAT: 

 
Part 1: The City Council approves a rezoning from Agricultural District to 

General Retail District on approximately 0.993 acres of land situated in and being a part of the 
Baldwin Robertson Survey, Abstract A-17, Bell County, Texas, located east of State Highway 
317 and south of Tarver Drive, addressed as 6401 State Highway 317, as outlined in the map 
attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A,’ and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 
Part 2: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 

changes to the City Zoning Map. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the 
sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable 
and, if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be 
declared invalid by the final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, 
such invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, 
paragraphs or sections of this ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by 
the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, 
sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 4: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage 
in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 

 
Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 

this Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of 
the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open 
Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 2nd day 

of June, 2016. 



2 
 

 
 

 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 16th day of June, 2016. 

     
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
              

____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                 
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM  

06/02/16 
Item #8 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 4 

DEPT. / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Brian Chandler, Director of Planning 
Dessie Redmond, Planner 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-16-24: Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a rezoning from Agricultural (AG) to General Retail (GR) on 8.436 +/- acres of 
land, situated in the Maximo Moreno Survey, Abstract 14, Bell County, Texas, located at 4350 South 
5th Street, Temple, Texas. 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  At their May 2, 2016 meeting, the 
Planning & Zoning Commission voted 7 to 0 to recommend approval of the proposed rezoning as 
presented by Planning staff.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval for a rezoning from AG district to GR district 
based on the following: 

1. The proposed rezoning is in compliance with the Future Land Use Map (FLUM) Auto-Urban
Commercial District;

2. The proposed zoning is compatible with surrounding zoning and uses;
3. The request complies with the Thoroughfare Plan; and
4. Public facilities are available to serve the subject property.

ITEM SUMMARY:  The applicant has requested a rezoning of approximately 8.436 acres from AG to 
GR. The subject property is currently undeveloped and vacant. A companion final plat (P-FY-16-30) 
was reviewed by the Development Review Committee (DRC) for the same +/- 8.436 acre tract of land 
on April 21, 2016. The plat is proposing to subdivide the property into 5 separate lots. During DRC, staff 
discussed with the applicant the existing median cut on South 5th Street to remain to allow access into 
the property and also the possibility of interior shared cross access between the proposed 5 lots. The 
applicant was receptive to this discussion.  

While it is anticipated the property will be developed with retail or office uses, there are other allowed 
uses by right and with a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) in the GR zoning district. Uses allowed in the 
GR district, include but are not limited to: 



06/02/16 
Item #8 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 4 

 
Permitted & *Conditional Use Table – General Retail (GR) 

Residential Uses 
Duplexes 
*Family or group home 

Agricultural Uses 
Farm, ranch, orchard or garden 
*Kennel without veterinary hospital 

Commercial Uses 
Flea market 
Upholstery shop 

Education & Institutional Uses 
*Cemetery, crematorium or mausoleum 
College, university or seminary 

Industrial Uses 
*Asphalt or concreate batching plant (permanent) 
Laboratory Medical, dental, scientific or research 

Office Uses 
Office  
*Warehouse office 

Overnight Accommodations Uses 
Hotel 
*Recreational vehicle park 

Recreational & Entertainment Uses 
Roller or Ice Rink 
*Zoo 

Restaurant Uses Restaurant (not drive-in & drive-in) 

Retail Sales and Service Uses 
Antique shop 
Medical appliances, fitting, sales or rental 

Transportation and Related Uses 
Emergency vehicle service 
*Helistop 

Utility and Service Uses 
*Sewage plumbing station 
Water treatment plant 

Vehicle Sales and Services Uses 
Auto leasing, rental 
Car wash 

 
Prohibited uses include but not limited to: truck stop, auto storage or auto auction, utility shop, storage 
yard or building, railroad yard or roundhouse, veterinary hospital (kennels).  
 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES: The following tables provide information regarding the 
subject property and surrounding properties on Future Land Use Map (FLUM) designations, existing 
zoning and current land uses: 

 Surrounding Property & Uses  

Direction FLUM Zoning Current Land Use 

Site Auto-Urban Commercial AG Undeveloped 

North Auto-Urban Commercial GR Retail & Service Uses 
South Auto-Urban Commercial AG SFR 
East Suburban Residential AG Agriculture 
West Parks & Open Space AG Open Space 

 
 
 
 
 



06/02/16 
Item #8 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 4 

 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan (Comp Plan) and Sidewalk and Trails Plan (S&T Plan): 
 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Compliance? 
Comp Plan Map 3.1 - Future Land Use Map Yes 
Comp Plan Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  Yes 

Comp Plan 
Goal 4.1 - Growth and development patterns should be 
consistent with the City’s infrastructure and public service 
capacities 

Yes 

S&T Plan Temple Trails Master Plan Map Yes 
 

Future Land Use Map, Comp Plan Map 3.1 
The subject property is located in the Auto-Urban Commercial character district according to the Comp 
Plan. The propose zoning is compatible with this character district as described in the Choice ’08 Comp 
Plan – FLUM. This designation is meant for commercial development and the proposed is anticipated 
for commercial/retail and office development. According to the FLUM, the majority of the Auto-Urban 
Commercial designation should be concentrated at intersections versus strip development along major 
roads. The subject property is not located at an intersection. 
 

Thoroughfare Plan (Comp Plan Map 5.2) 
The subject property is accessed off of South 5th Street (major arterial), which abuts the property to the 
east. According to the Thoroughfare Plan, there are no other roads existing or proposed through or 
abutting the property.  
 

Availability of Public Facilities (Comp Plan Goal 4.1) 
Sewer is available to the subject property through an existing 24-inch sewer line along the west side of 
the property. Water is available through an existing 3-inch waterline along South 5th Street. It should be 
noted that a portion of the subject property is located within the Regulatory Floodway Flood Hazard 
Zone. 
 

Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance 
South 5th Street is designated as a major arterial thoroughfare and therefore, at the time of 
development, the installation of a 6 foot wide sidewalk will be required. Also, there is an existing city 
wide spine trail located on the property to the west of the subject property (Friar’s Creek Trail).  
 

DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: It is anticipated the applicant will develop the property with retail 
or office uses. Staff included a comparison table for non-residential setbacks in the AG & GR zoning 
districts for review:  

 Current  AG  Proposed GR 
Minimum Lot Size N/A N/A 

Minimum Lot Width N/A N/A 
Minimum Lot Depth N/A N/A 

Front Setback 50’ 15’ 
Side Setback 20’ 10’ 

Side Setback (corner) 15’ 10’ 
Rear Setback 10’ *0’ 

Max Building Height  3 stories  3 stories 
   *Subject to UDC, Section 4.4 Measurements & Special Cases 



06/02/16 
Item #8 

Regular Agenda 
Page 4 of 4 

 
PUBLIC NOTICE: 20 notices to property owners within 200-feet of the subject property were sent notice 
of  the public hearing as required by state law and local ordinance.  As of Friday May 20, 2016, four 
notices (all four from the same property owner) have been returned in disagreement and seven notices 
(two from the applicant and two from a same property owner) have been returned in agreement of the 
request. Staff also received comments from an adjacent property owner (Mr. Herrington) who voiced 
concern about the filling of dirt on the subject property to raise the elevation of the lots for building that 
may raise the floodway surface elevation on Mr. Herrington’s property which could result in the flooding 
of his house.  
 
The newspaper printed notice of the public hearing on April 21, 2016, in accordance with state law and 
local ordinance. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Site Photos 
Location Map 
Aerial 
Zoning Map 
Future Land Use Map (FLUM) 
Thoroughfare & Trails Map 
Utility Map 
Notification Map 
Returned Property Owner Notices (12) 
Existing Zoning District vs Proposed Zoning District 
Ordinance 



Z-FY-16-25 Rezoning MF-2 to O-2, 416 N. 11th Street June 2, 20161

On the north boundary looking south through the subject property. 

On the east central boundary looking west through site. 

Site Photos

S 5th Street

subject property

subject property



Z-FY-16-25 Rezoning MF-2 to O-2, 416 N. 11th Street June 2, 20162

Existing retail building to the north of the subject property.

Existing single-family residence to the south of the property. 

Site Photos

S 5th Street



P-FY-16-24 Rezoning AG to GR 4350 S. 5th Street June 2, 20163

Location Map

Waters Dairy Rd

S.
 5

th
 S

tre
et

Georgetown RR

W Blackland Rd

Canyon Creek Dr

Date: 4/20/2016

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

Silverstone
Park

S 
5T

H
 S

T

KAREY DR

H
ARTR

IC
K

BL
U

FF
R

D

SILVER STONE DR

KENDRA DR

RIDGEVIEW DR

PASEO DEL PLATA

SI
LV

ER
W

O
O

D
C

T

B
R

U
TU

S 
LN

ST
ER

LI
N

G
M

A
N

O
R

D
R

KACIE DR

Ü
Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-24

AG to GR

Address:

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

Date: 4/20/2016
 dredmond

Parcels

Thoroughfare Plan

Expressway

Major Arterial

Proposed Major
Arterial

Minor Arterial

Proposed Minor
Arterial

Collector

Proposed
Collector

Trails Master Plan

[ EXISTING, CITY
WIDE SPINE

! EXISTING,
COMMUNITY
WIDE
CONNECTOR

EXISTING,
LOCAL
CONNECTOR

[ PROPOSED,
CITY WIDE
SPINE

! PROPOSED,
COMMUNITY
WIDE
CONNECTOR

PROPOSED,
LOCAL
CONNECTOR

CaseArea

THOROUGHFARE
AND TRAILS MAP

4350 S 5th Street



Z-FY-16-24 Rezoning AG to GR 4350 S. 5th Street June 2, 20164

Aerial

S.
 5

th
 S

tre
et



P-FY-16-24 Rezoning AG to GR 4350 S. 5th Street June 2, 20165

Zoning Map

403
PropID:
135980407

PropID:
135981

4701
PropID:
135983

4705
PropID:
135984

4709
PropID:
135985

4717
PropID:
135987

412
PropID:
135988

408
PropID:
135989

404
PropID:
1359904801

PropID:
135994

4200
PropID:
97476

4224
PropID:
434521

4236
PropID:
434522

4308
PropID:
434523

504
PropID:
444010

510
PropID:
444009

516
PropID:
444008

522
PropID:
444007

602
PropID:
444006

608
PropID:
444005614

PropID:
444004

505
PropID:
444000

511
PropID:
443999

517
PropID:
443998

523
PropID:
443997

603
PropID:
443996

609
PropID:
443995615

PropID:
443994

619
PropID:
443993

522
PropID:
443988

602
PropID:
443987

608
PropID:
443986

614
PropID:
443985

505
PropID:
443983

517
PropID:
443981

603
PropID:
443980

609
PropID:
443979

613
PropID:
443978

601
PropID:
443967

608
PropID:
444027

614
PropID:
444026

505
PropID:
444021

511
PropID:
444020

517
PropID:
444019

523
PropID:
444018

603
PropID:
444017

609
PropID:
444016

615
PropID:
444015

511
PropID:
443982

411
PropID:
135982

504
PropID:
443991

510
PropID:
443990

516
PropID:
443989

4501
PropID:
127023

400
PropID:
232909

4212
PropID:
434518

600
PropID:
443929

4503
PropID:
443942

4421
PropID:
443941

4415
PropID:
443940

4409
PropID:
443939

620
PropID:
443984

615
PropID:
443977

737
PropID:
350603

4403
PropID:
443938

4712
PropID:

9114

4804
PropID:
108889

4815
PropID:
108174

4709
PropID:
133421

4701
PropID:
133423

4702
PropID:
1359614706

PropID:
135962

4710
PropID:
135963

4802
PropID:
135966

4818
PropID:
112274

504
PropID:
444032

510
PropID:
444031

516
PropID:
444030

522
PropID:
444029

602
PropID:
444028

4515
PropID:
443944

365
PropID:
420760

604
PropID:
133430

516
PropID:
133432

404
PropID:
135998

512
PropID:
135972

504
PropID:
135974

420
PropID:
135975

416
PropID:
135976

412
PropID:
135977 408

PropID:
135978

404
PropID:
135979

501
PropID:
443951

4631
PropID:
443950

505
PropID:
443952

511
PropID:
443953

517
PropID:
443954

523
PropID:
443955

607
PropID:
443957

4350
PropID:
350609

4509
PropID:
443943

4627
PropID:
443964

4718
PropID:
135965

704
PropID:
26543710

PropID:
26543

709
PropID:
26543

715
PropID:
26543

704
PropID:
26543716

PropID:
26543

703
PropID:
26543

703
PropID:
26543

4615
PropID:
443948

4609
PropID:
443947

4603
PropID:
443946

4521
PropID:
443945

4621
PropID:
443949

365
PropID:
207416

727-A

731-B

728-A

726A-B
726B-A

726-B

729-B

Silverstone
Park

S 
5T

H
 S

T

ST
ER

LI
N

G
M

A
N

O
R

D
R

KENDRA DR

PASEO DEL PLATA

H
A

R
TR

IC
K

B
LU

FF
R

D

KACIE DR

RIDGEVIEW DR

SILVER STONE DR

B
R

U
TU

S 
LN

KAREY DR

NS

GR

SF-3

O-2

GR

SF-2

2F

AG

MF-1

Ü

Date: 4/20/2016
 dredmond

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-24

AG to GR

Address :
4350 S 5th Street

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

ZONING MAP

CurrentZoning

HI - CUP

UE

UE - PD

SF-1

SF-1 - CUP

SF-1 - PD

SF-2

SF-2 - PD

SF-3

SF-3 - PD

SF-3 - CUP, PD

SFA

SFA-2

SFA-2 - PD

SFA-3

SFA-3 - PD

2F

2F - CUP

2F - PD

MF-1

MF-1 - CUP

MF-1 - PD

MF-2

MF-2 - CUP

MF-2 - PD

MF-3 - PD

O-1

O-1 - CUP

O-1 - PD

O-2

O-2 - CUP

O-2 - PD

NS

NS - CUP

NS - PD

GR

GR - CUP

GR - PD

GR - CUP, PD

CA

CA - CUP

CA - PD

C

C - CUP

C - PD

C - CUP, PD

LI

LI - CUP

LI - PD

LI - CUP, PD

HI

HI - PD

AG

AG - CUP

MH

MH - CUP

MH - PD

MU

MU - CUP

SD-C

SD-C - CUP

SD-H

SD-H - CUP

SD-T

SD-V

T4

T4 - PD

T4 - CUP

T5-C

T5-C - CUP

T5-C - PD

T5-E

T5-E - CUP

T5-E - PD

NO BASE

CUP

PD

CaseArea

S.
 5

th
 S

tre
et



Z-FY-16-24 Rezoning AG to GR 4350 S. 5th Street June 2, 20166

Future Land Use Map

Date: 4/20/2016

Silverstone
Park

S 
5T

H
 S

T

KAREY DR

H
ARTR

IC
K

BL
U

FF
R

D

SILVER STONE DR

KENDRA DR

RIDGEVIEW DR

PASEO DEL PLATA

SI
LV

ER
W

O
O

D
C

T

B
R

U
TU

S 
LN

ST
ER

LI
N

G
M

A
N

O
R

D
R

KACIE DR

Ü
Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-24

AG to GR

Address:

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

Date: 4/20/2016
 dredmond

FLUM

EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

MINOR ARTERIAL

PRIVATE

RAMP

Parcels

Future LUP

Agricultural/Rural

Auto-Urban Commercial

Auto-Urban Mixed Use

Auto-Urban Multi-Family

Auto-Urban Residential

Business Park

Estate Residential

Industrial

Neighborhood Conservation

Parks & Open Space

Public Institutional

Suburban Commercial

Suburban Residential

Temple Medical Education District

Urban Center

CaseArea

4350 S 5th Street

S.
 5

th
 S

tre
et



P-FY-16-24 Rezoning AG to GR 4350 S. 5th Street June 2, 20167

Thoroughfare and Trails Map

Date: 4/20/2016

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

Silverstone
Park

S 
5T

H
 S

T

KAREY DR

H
ARTR

IC
K

BL
U

FF
R

D

SILVER STONE DR

KENDRA DR

RIDGEVIEW DR

PASEO DEL PLATA

SI
LV

ER
W

O
O

D
C

T

B
R

U
TU

S 
LN

ST
ER

LI
N

G
M

A
N

O
R

D
R

KACIE DR

Ü
Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-24

AG to GR

Address:

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

Date: 4/20/2016
 dredmond

Parcels

Thoroughfare Plan

Expressway

Major Arterial

Proposed Major
Arterial

Minor Arterial

Proposed Minor
Arterial

Collector

Proposed
Collector

Trails Master Plan

[ EXISTING, CITY
WIDE SPINE

! EXISTING,
COMMUNITY
WIDE
CONNECTOR

EXISTING,
LOCAL
CONNECTOR

[ PROPOSED,
CITY WIDE
SPINE

! PROPOSED,
COMMUNITY
WIDE
CONNECTOR

PROPOSED,
LOCAL
CONNECTOR

CaseArea

THOROUGHFARE
AND TRAILS MAP

4350 S 5th Street

S.
 5

th
 S

tre
et



Z-FY-16-24 Rezoning AG to GR 4350 S. 5th Street June 2, 20168

Utility Map

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

3

12

8

6

8

B
R

U
TU

S 
LN

KAREY DR

KENDRA DR

KACIE DR

RIDGEVIEW DR

H
A

R
TR

IC
K

 B
LU

FF
 R

D

SILVER STONE DR

PASEO DEL PLATA

ST
ER

LI
N

G
 M

A
N

O
R

 D
R

S 
5T

H
 S

T

S 
5T

H
 S

T

Silverstone Park

Ü
Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-24

AG to GR

Address:

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

UTILITY MAP

 dredmond
Date: 4/20/2016

Manhole

Gravity Main

GF Hydrant

Main

Parcels

CaseArea

4350 S 5th Street

S.
 5

th
 S

tre
et



P-FY-16-24 Rezoning AG to GR 4350 S. 5th Street June 2, 20169

Notification Map

403
PropID:
135980407

PropID:
135981

4701
PropID:
135983

4705
PropID:
135984

4709
PropID:
135985

4717
PropID:
135987

412
PropID:
135988

408
PropID:
135989

404
PropID:
1359904801

PropID:
135994

4200
PropID:
97476

4224
PropID:
434521

4236
PropID:
434522

4308
PropID:
434523

504
PropID:
444010

510
PropID:
444009

516
PropID:
444008

522
PropID:
444007

602
PropID:
444006

608
PropID:
444005614

PropID:
444004

505
PropID:
444000

511
PropID:
443999

517
PropID:
443998

523
PropID:
443997

603
PropID:
443996

609
PropID:
443995615

PropID:
443994

619
PropID:
443993

522
PropID:
443988

602
PropID:
443987

608
PropID:
443986

614
PropID:
443985

505
PropID:
443983

517
PropID:
443981

603
PropID:
443980

609
PropID:
443979

613
PropID:
443978

601
PropID:
443967

608
PropID:
444027

614
PropID:
444026

505
PropID:
444021

511
PropID:
444020

517
PropID:
444019

523
PropID:
444018

603
PropID:
444017

609
PropID:
444016

615
PropID:
444015

511
PropID:
443982

411
PropID:
135982

504
PropID:
443991

510
PropID:
443990

516
PropID:
443989

4501
PropID:
127023

400
PropID:
232909

4212
PropID:
434518

600
PropID:
443929

4503
PropID:
443942

4421
PropID:
443941

4415
PropID:
443940

4409
PropID:
443939

620
PropID:
443984

615
PropID:
443977

737
PropID:
350603

4403
PropID:
443938

4712
PropID:

9114

4804
PropID:
108889

4815
PropID:
108174

4709
PropID:
133421

4701
PropID:
133423

4702
PropID:
1359614706

PropID:
135962

4710
PropID:
135963

4802
PropID:
135966

4818
PropID:
112274

504
PropID:
444032

510
PropID:
444031

516
PropID:
444030

522
PropID:
444029

602
PropID:
444028

4515
PropID:
443944

365
PropID:
420760

604
PropID:
133430

520
PropID:
133431

516
PropID:
133432

404
PropID:
135998

512
PropID:
135972

504
PropID:
135974

420
PropID:
135975

416
PropID:
135976

412
PropID:
135977 408

PropID:
135978

404
PropID:
135979

501
PropID:
443951

4631
PropID:
443950

505
PropID:
443952

511
PropID:
443953

517
PropID:
443954

523
PropID:
443955

607
PropID:
443957

4350
PropID:
350609

4509
PropID:
443943

4627
PropID:
443964

4718
PropID:
135965

704
PropID:
26543710

PropID:
26543

709
PropID:
26543

715
PropID:
26543

704
PropID:
26543

710
PropID:
26543

716
PropID:
26543

703
PropID:
26543

703
PropID:
26543

4615
PropID:
443948

4609
PropID:
443947

4603
PropID:
443946

4521
PropID:
443945

4621
PropID:
443949

365
PropID:
207416

727-A

731-B

728-A

726A-B
726B-A

726-B

729-B

Silverstone
Park

S 
5T

H
 S

T

ST
ER

LI
N

G
M

A
N

O
R

D
R

KENDRA DR

PASEO DEL PLATA

H
A

R
TR

IC
K

B
LU

FF
R

D

KACIE DR

RIDGEVIEW DR

SILVER STONE DR

B
R

U
TU

S 
LN

KAREY DR

Ü

Date: 4/20/2016
 dredmond

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-24

AG to GR

Address :
4350 S 5th Street

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

NOTIFICATION MAP

CaseArea

Buffer

S.
 5

th
 S

tre
et



Z-FY-16-25 Rezoning MF-2 to O-2, 416 N. 11th Street June 2, 201610

Returned Property Owner Notice



Z-FY-16-25 Rezoning MF-2 to O-2, 416 N. 11th Street June 2, 201611

Returned Property Owner Notice



Z-FY-16-25 Rezoning MF-2 to O-2, 416 N. 11th Street June 2, 201612

Returned Property Owner Notice



Z-FY-16-25 Rezoning MF-2 to O-2, 416 N. 11th Street June 2, 201613

Returned Property Owner Notice



Z-FY-16-25 Rezoning MF-2 to O-2, 416 N. 11th Street June 2, 201614

Returned Property Owner Notice



Z-FY-16-25 Rezoning MF-2 to O-2, 416 N. 11th Street June 2, 201615

Returned Property Owner Notice



Z-FY-16-25 Rezoning MF-2 to O-2, 416 N. 11th Street June 2, 201616

Returned Property Owner Notice



Z-FY-16-25 Rezoning MF-2 to O-2, 416 N. 11th Street June 2, 201617

Returned Property Owner Notice



Z-FY-16-25 Rezoning MF-2 to O-2, 416 N. 11th Street June 2, 201618

Returned Property Owner Notice



Z-FY-16-25 Rezoning MF-2 to O-2, 416 N. 11th Street June 2, 201619

Returned Property Owner Notice



Z-FY-16-25 Rezoning MF-2 to O-2, 416 N. 11th Street June 2, 201620

Returned Property Owner Notice

1

Dessie Redmond

From: jimmy herrington <jimmy.herrington@att.net>
Sent: Monday, May 02, 2016 4:45 PM
To: Dessie Redmond
Subject: Z-FY-16-24

Hi Dessie, 

To be clear, I am not objecting to the change in zoning from agricultural to General retail for my 
neighbor. I am concerned about filling of dirt on his property to raise the elevation of these lots for 
building that may raise the floodway surface elevation on my downstream property and could result in 
the flooding of my house. I look forward to reviewing the hydrology plans for development of these 
lots.

Thanks,
Jim Herrington 
4712 S. 5th Street 
Temple, Texas 76502 
(254) 654-1018 



Z-FY-16-25 Rezoning MF-2 to O-2, 416 N. 11th Street June 2, 201621

Returned Property Owner Notice



Z-FY-16-25 Rezoning MF-2 to O-2, 416 N. 11th Street June 2, 201622

Proposed General Retail Zoning District

Existing Agricultural Zoning District

Existing Zoning District versus Proposed Zoning District

Agricultural (AG)
General Retail (GR)
Two-Family Dwelling (2F)
Multiple-Family Dwelling 1 (MF-1)

Neighborhood Services (NS)
Single-Fmaily Dwelling 3 (SF-3)
Subject Property Boundary

S.
 5

th
 S

tre
et

S.
 5

th
 S

tre
et



1 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO.     

 
(PLANNING NO. Z-FY-16-24) 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A REZONING FROM AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT 
TO GENERAL RETAIL DISTRICT ON APPROXIMATELY 8.436 ACRES OF 
LAND SITUATED IN THE MAXIMO MORENO SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 
14, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, AND LOCATED AT 4350 SOUTH 5TH STREET, 
TEMPLE, TEXAS; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
THAT: 

 
Part 1: The City Council approves a rezoning from Agricultural District to General 

Retail District on approximately 8.436 acres of land situated in the Maximo Moreno 
Survey, Abstract No. 14, Bell County, Texas, and located at 4350 S. 5th Street, Temple, 
Texas, as outlined in the map attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A,’ and made a part hereof for all 
purposes. 

 
Part 2: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 

changes to the City Zoning Map. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the 
sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if 
any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared 
invalid by the final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or 
sections of this ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council 
without the incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph 
or section. 
 

Part 4: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 

 
Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the 
time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 2nd day of 

June, 2016. 



2 
 

 
 

 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 16th day of June, 2016. 

     
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
              

____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                 
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



   
 
            

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM  
 
 

06/02/16 
Item #9 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 5 

 
 
DEPT. / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Brian Chandler, Director of Planning 
Dessie Redmond, Planner  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-16-25: Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing rezoning from Multifamily-2 (MF-2) to Office-2 (O-2) on .711 +/- acres of land, 
Lot 1, Block 1, Vandiver Subdivision, Bell County, 416 North 11th Street, Temple, Texas. 
 

 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  At their May 2, 2016 meeting, the 
Planning & Zoning Commission voted 8 to 0 to recommend approval of the proposed rezoning, as 
presented by Planning staff. 
 
During the meeting, discussion included details of the proposed use, which the applicant explained is 
for a Day Habilitation for special needs adults. She stated that TISD has agreed to let her use parking 
on the adjacent parking lot property and will submit that letter when necessary. The applicant would be 
subject to parking standards. The Unified Development Code (UDC) Section 7.5 lists Off-Street Parking 
and Loading requirements. The applicant also stated that the facility will operate between 9:00 a.m. to 
2:00 p.m. and that all of the clients will be dropped off. 
 
The Planning Commission also agreed that this use was a needed service for the community and was 
excited about the idea.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval for a rezoning from Multi-Family Dwelling 
2 (MF-2) district to Office-1 (O-1) district. The applicant applied for a rezoning to the O-2 district; 
however, the applicant’s proposed use (“school, business”) is also permitted by right in the O-1 district 
and this district is less intense than the O-2 district. Staff also believes the O-1 zoning district is more 
appropriate for the property. Therefore, staff is recommending approval for a rezoning to the O-1 district. 
The applicant is in agreeance with this recommendation.  
 

 



06/02/16 
Item #9 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 5 

 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The applicant has requested a rezoning of approximately .711 acres from MF-2 to 
O-2. There is a vacant school (Vandiver Elementary) on the subject property.  
 
It is anticipated the property will be developed with a “school, business” use, there are other allowed 
uses by right and with a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) in the O-1 zoning district. Uses allowed in the 
O-1 district, include but are not limited to: 
 

Permitted & *Conditional Use Table – Office-1 (O-1) 

Residential Uses 
Boarding house 
*Family or group home 

Agricultural Uses Farm, ranch, orchard or garden 

Commercial Uses none 

Education & Institutional Uses 

Art gallery or museum 
*Cemetery, crematorium or mausoleum 
Place of Worship 
School, business 

Industrial Uses *Laboratory medical, dental, scientific or research 

Office Uses Office  

Overnight Accommodations Uses none 

Recreational & Entertainment Uses 
*Day camp for children 
Park or playground 

Restaurant Uses none 

Retail Sales and Service Uses 
Bank or savings and loan 
Travel agency 
Veterinary office (no animal hospital) 

Transportation and Related Uses 
*Emergency vehicle service 
*Helistop 

Utility and Service Uses 
*Electrical substation (high voltage bulk power)  
Fire Station 

Vehicle Sales and Services Uses none 

 
Surrounding Property and Uses: The following table provide information regarding the subject 
property and surrounding properties on Future Land Use Map (FLUM) designations, existing zoning 
and current land uses: 
 

 Surrounding Property & Uses  

Direction FLUM Zoning Current Land Use 

Site 
Public Institutional/Auto-Urban 

Multi-Family MF-2 Vacant building 

North Auto-Urban Multi-Family MF-2 Multi-Family (apartment) 
South Auto-Urban Multi-Family O-2 Multi-Family (apartment) 
East Neighborhood Conservation SF-1 Vacant lot/SFR 

West 
Public Institutional/Auto-Urban 

Multi-Family O-2/MF-2 Parking lot 



06/02/16 
Item #9 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 5 

 
Comprehensive Plan Compliance: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, objectives 
or maps of the Comprehensive Plan (Comp Plan) and Sidewalk and Trails Plan (S&T Plan): 
 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Compliance? 
Comp Plan Map 3.1 - Future Land Use Map Yes 
Comp Plan Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  Yes 

Comp Plan 
Goal 4.1 - Growth and development patterns should be 
consistent with the City’s infrastructure and public service 
capacities 

Yes 

S&T Plan Temple Trails Master Plan Map N/A 
 

Future Land Use Map, Comp Plan Map 3.1 
Approximately two-thirds of the subject property is located in the Public Institutional character district 
according to the Comp Plan. The proposed zoning is compatible with this character district as described 
in the Choice ’08 Comp Plan – FLUM. The Public Institutional designation is meant for the community’s 
major public and civic facilities, including schools, government buildings, community facilities and 
cemeteries. The design of public sites and buildings should also respect the character context of their 
locations, especially in and near residential neighborhoods. It is the intent of the applicant to utilize the 
existing building as a Day Habilitation for special needs adults. Staff believes, the use could be viewed 
as an important asset to the community by providing a unique business that contributes to the overall 
health of the community. Further, the applicant intends to utilize the building with proper “up-to-code” 
building standards. By utilizing the existing building, the applicant preserves the character context of 
the neighborhood. Therefore, the proposal does comply with the FLUM with the Public Institutional 
designation. 
 

The other portion of the subject property is located in the Auto-Urban Multi-Family character district. 
The intent of this designation is to accommodate multi-family only development. The anticipated 
development of this property is not for multi-family; however, the proposal is compatible with the 
designation. 
 

Thoroughfare Plan (Comp Plan Map 5.2) 
The subject property is accessed off both North 11th Street and West Elm Avenue (both local road 
designations). North 11th Street runs along the east side of the property and West Elm Avnue runs 
along the north side of the property. According to the Thoroughfare Plan, there are no roads proposed 
in the vicinity of the subject property.  
 

Availability of Public Facilities (Comp Plan Goal 4.1) 
Sewer is available to the subject property through an existing sewer line along the north side of the 
property (West Elm Avenue) or through an existing line to the east side (North 11th Street). Water is 
available through an existing 16-inch waterline to the east side (North 11th Street).  
 

Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance 
There are no proposed or existing trails abutting the site or in the vicinity of the subject property. It 
should be noted there is an existing sidewalk along the east side of the property (North 11th Street). 
The applicant proposes to maintain the location of the existing sidewalk.  
 

Parking Requirements:  
The applicant will be subject to UDC, Section 7.5 Off-Street Parking and Loading requirements. The 
applicant’s proposed use is a “school, business,” which would require 1parking space per 300 square  



06/02/16 
Item #9 

Regular Agenda 
Page 4 of 5 

 
feet of gross floor area. The subject building is approximately 13,000 square feet; however, the 
applicant is proposing to utilize only the first floor for now, which is approximately 7,500 square feet. 
Therefore, the applicant would be required to show availability for 25 parking spaces. UDC, Section 
7.5.3 states, “Off-street parking must be provided on the lot, an immediately adjacent lot, or on a lot 
within 150 feet of the building or structure, in accordance to the Required Parking Ratios and design 
standards.” The applicant has stated that Temple Independent School District (TISD) has agreed to let 
the applicant use the parking lot that is adjacent to the subject property.  
 

DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: It is anticipated the applicant will develop the property with a 
“school, business” use. Staff included a comparison table for non-residential setbacks in the MF-2 & O-
1 zoning districts for review:  

 Current  MF-2  Proposed O-1 
Minimum Lot Size N/A N/A 

Minimum Lot Width N/A N/A 
Minimum Lot Depth N/A N/A 

Front Setback 25’ 25’ 
Side Setback 20’ 5’ 

Side Setback (corner) 15’ 15’ 
Rear Setback 10’ 0* 

Max Building Height  4 stories  3 stories 
   *Subject to UDC, Section 4.4 Measurements & Special Cases 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE: 12 notices to property owners within 200-feet of the subject property were sent notice 
of  the public hearing as required by state law and local ordinance. As of Friday, May 20, 2016, one 
notice had been returned in disagreement and six in agreement (four from the Temple Housing 
Authority and one from the applicant). 
 

The newspaper printed notice of the public hearing on April 21, 2016, in accordance with state law and 
local ordinance. 
 

Proposed City Council meeting Schedule: This rezoning is scheduled for the 1st Reading on June 
2, 2016 and a 2nd Reading on June 16, 2016.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Site Photos 
Location Map 
Aerial 
Future Land Use Map (FLUM) 
Thoroughfare & Trails Map 
Utility Map 
Notification Map 
Returned Property Owner Notice 
Existing Zoning District vs Proposed Zoning District 
Ordinance 
 



Z-FY-16-25 Rezoning MF-2 to O-2, 416 N. 11th Street June 2, 20161

Looking west down W Elm Ave along the north side of subject property.

Corner of N 11th Street and W Elm Ave looking southwest through subject property.

Site Photos

N 11th Street

W Elm Avenue



Z-FY-16-25 Rezoning MF-2 to O-2, 416 N. 11th Street June 2, 20162

Corner of N 11th Street and W Elm Ave looking south along N 11th Street.

Front of vacant building.

Site Photos

N 11th Street

N 11th Street

W Elm Avenue



Z-FY-16-25 Rezoning MF-2 to O-2, 416 N. 11th Street June 2, 20163

Existing multi-family apartments to the north of the subject property.

Parking lot to the west adjacent to the the subject property.

Site Photos

N 11th Street

W Elm Avenue



Z-FY-16-25 Rezoning MF-2 to O-2, 416 N. 11th Street June 2, 20164

Site Photos

Google Earth image showing vicitiny.

Subject property
Approximate boundary

N
 1

1t
h 

St
re

et

W Elm Avenue
parking lot

vacant lot

multi-family apartments

multi-family 
apartments

W Downs Ave



Z-FY-16-25 Rezoning MF-2 to O-2, 416 N. 11th Street June 2, 20165

Location Map

B
N

 &
 S

F
 R

R
B

N
 &

 S
F

 R
R

B
N

 &
 S

F
 R

R

B
N

 &
 S

F
 R

R

B
N

 &
 S

F
 R

R
B

N
 &

 S
F

 R
R

B
N

 &
 S

F
 R

R
B

N
 &

 S
F

 R
R

B
N

 &
 S

F
 R

R
B

N
 &

 S
F

 R
R

B
N

 &
 S

F
 R

R

B
N

 &
 S

F
 R

R

B
N

 &
 S

F
 R

R
B

N
 &

 S
F

 R
R

N
 M

A
IN

 S
T

N
 1

ST
 S

T

N
 2

1S
T 

ST

W FRENCH AVE

W ELM AVE

N
 5

TH
 S

T

W BARTON AVE

N
 9

TH
 S

T
N

 7
TH

 S
T

W DOWNS AVE

W GARFIELD AVE

N
 1

1T
H

 S
T

W CALHOUN AVE

N
23

RD ST

W HOUSTON AVE

N
 1

9T
H

 S
T

N
15

TH
ST

N
 2

N
D

 S
T

N
 1

3T
H

 S
T

S 
9T

H
 S

T

W AVE A

N
 4

TH
 S

T

S 
19

TH
 S

T

S 
11

TH
 S

T

S 
7T

H
 S

T
E CALHOUN AVE

E DOWNS AVE

S 
5T

H
 S

T

LENGEFELD DR

E FR ENCH AVE

E BARTON AVE

N
 1

5T
H

 S
T

W CALHOUN AVE

N
 2

N
D

 S
T

N
 7

TH
 S

T
W AVE A

W CALHOUN AVE

W ELM AVE

N
 1

3T
H

 S
T N

 5
TH

 S
T

N
 1

1T
H

 S
T

N
 1

ST
 S

T

W BARTON AVE

W DOWNS AVE

W DOWNS AVE

N
 1

9T
H

 S
T

N
 9

TH
 S

T

N
 3

R
D

 S
T

W ADAMS AVE

W CENTRAL AVE

E ADAMS AVE

S
3R

D
ST

Fred Springer Park

Downtown Visitor's Center

Whistlestop Park

Clarence Martin Rec Center

N
 5

TH
 S

T

N
 2

N
D

 S
T

N
 1

3T
H

 S
T

Ü
Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-25

MF-2 to O-2

Address:

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

LOCATION MAP

 dredmond
Date: 4/20/2016

Streets

EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

MINOR ARTERIAL

PRIVATE

RAMP

Railroad

Temple Municipal Boundary

Parcels

ETJ Parcels

CaseArea

416 N 11th Street

W Adams Ave

W Downs Ave

W Elm Ave

W Central Ave
N

 3
rd

 S
t

N
 1

1t
h 

St

N
 1

1t
h 

St



Z-FY-16-25 Rezoning MF-2 to O-2, 416 N. 11th Street June 2, 20166

Aerial

Aerial

W Elm Ave

W Downs Ave

N
 1

1t
h 

St



Z-FY-16-25 Rezoning MF-2 to O-2, 416 N. 11th Street June 2, 20167

Zoning Map

504
PropID:
66679

320
PropID:
49475

317
PropID:
22061

313
PropID:
131849

315
PropID:
96720

304
PropID:
67394

415
PropID:
40971

418
PropID:
35952

410
PropID:
81353

516
PropID:
63152

502
PropID:
19212

707
PropID:
39430

603
PropID:

6513

517
PropID:
44973

519
PropID:
44974

501
PropID:
15953

511
PropID:
33708

610
PropID:
52120

518
PropID:
115193

705
PropID:
69694 611

PropID:
353505

618
PropID:
353234

317
PropID:

4983

510
PropID:
78729 404

PropID:
37904

512
PropID:
22946

411
PropID:
382681

401
PropID:
57727

419
PropID:
35956

300
PropID:
52119

418
PropID:
115193

700
PropID:
52137

711
PropID:
52137

416
PropID:
434635

264-B

271-1A

272-2

262-1A
263-2B

263-2D

263-2C

263-2A

265-A

N
 1

3T
H

 S
T

W ELM AVE

N
 9

TH
 S

T

W
DOWNS AVE

W CALHOUN AVE

N
 9

TH
 S

T

W FRENCH AVE

N
 1

1T
H

 S
T

N
 15TH

 ST

N
 1

1T
H

 S
T

MF-2

O-2

SF-1

SF-1

Ü

Date: 4/20/2016
 dredmond

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-25

MF-2 to O-2

Address :
416 N 11th Street

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

ZONING MAP

CurrentZoning

HI - CUP

UE

UE - PD

SF-1

SF-1 - CUP

SF-1 - PD

SF-2

SF-2 - PD

SF-3

SF-3 - PD

SF-3 - CUP, PD

SFA

SFA-2

SFA-2 - PD

SFA-3

SFA-3 - PD

2F

2F - CUP

2F - PD

MF-1

MF-1 - CUP

MF-1 - PD

MF-2

MF-2 - CUP

MF-2 - PD

MF-3 - PD

O-1

O-1 - CUP

O-1 - PD

O-2

O-2 - CUP

O-2 - PD

NS

NS - CUP

NS - PD

GR

GR - CUP

GR - PD

GR - CUP, PD

CA

CA - CUP

CA - PD

C

C - CUP

C - PD

C - CUP, PD

LI

LI - CUP

LI - PD

LI - CUP, PD

HI

HI - PD

AG

AG - CUP

MH

MH - CUP

MH - PD

MU

MU - CUP

SD-C

SD-C - CUP

SD-H

SD-H - CUP

SD-T

SD-V

T4

T4 - PD

T4 - CUP

T5-C

T5-C - CUP

T5-C - PD

T5-E

T5-E - CUP

T5-E - PD

NO BASE

CUP

PD

Buffer

CaseArea

W Elm Ave

W Downs Ave

N
 1

1t
h 

St



Z-FY-16-25 Rezoning MF-2 to O-2, 416 N. 11th Street June 2, 20168

Future Land Use Map

Date: 4/20/2016

418

410

516

502

517

501

511

610

618

510

404

512

411

419

300

418

700

416

N
 1

3T
H

 S
T

W DOWNS AVE

N
 1

1T
H

 S
T

W ELM AVE

Ü
Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-25

M-2 to O-2

Address:

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

Date: 4/20/2016
 dredmond

FUTURE LAND
USE MAP

EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

MINOR ARTERIAL

PRIVATE

RAMP

Parcels

Future LUP

Agricultural/Rural

Auto-Urban Commercial

Auto-Urban Mixed Use

Auto-Urban Multi-Family

Auto-Urban Residential

Business Park

Estate Residential

Industrial

Neighborhood Conservation

Parks & Open Space

Public Institutional

Suburban Commercial

Suburban Residential

Temple Medical Education District

Urban Center

CaseArea

416 N 11th Street

W Elm Ave

W Downs Ave

N
 1

1t
h 

St



Z-FY-16-25 Rezoning MF-2 to O-2, 416 N. 11th Street June 2, 20169

Thoroughfare and Trails Map

Date: 4/20/2016

418

410

516

502

517

501

511

610

618

510

404

512

411

419

300

418

700

416

N
 1

3T
H

 S
T

W DOWNS AVE

N
 1

1T
H

 S
T

W ELM AVE

Ü
Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-25

M-2 to O-2

Address:

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

Date: 4/20/2016
 dredmond

THOROUGHFARE &
TRAILS MAP

EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

MINOR ARTERIAL

PRIVATE

RAMP

Parcels

CaseArea

CaseArea

416 N 11th StreetW Elm Ave

W Downs Ave

N
 1

1t
h 

St



Z-FY-16-25 Rezoning MF-2 to O-2, 416 N. 11th Street June 2, 201610

Utility Map

GF
2

16

6

6

W ELM AVE

N
 1

1T
H

 S
T

W DOWNS AVE

N
 1

1T
H

 S
T

610

418

416

300

419

418

404

618

501

411

512

510

410

511

502

700

317

Ü
Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-25

M-2 to O-2

Address:

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

UTILITY MAP

 dredmond
Date: 4/20/2016

Manhole

Gravity Main

GF Hydrant

Main

Parcels

CaseArea

416 N 11th Street

W Elm Ave

W Downs Ave

N
 1

1t
h 

St



Z-FY-16-25 Rezoning MF-2 to O-2, 416 N. 11th Street June 2, 201611

Notification Map

504
PropID:
66679

320
PropID:
49475

317
PropID:
22061

313
PropID:
131849

315
PropID:
96720

304
PropID:
67394

415
PropID:
40971

418
PropID:
35952

410
PropID:
81353

516
PropID:
63152

502
PropID:
19212

707
PropID:
39430

603
PropID:

6513

517
PropID:
44973

519
PropID:
44974

501
PropID:
15953

511
PropID:
33708

610
PropID:
52120

518
PropID:
115193

705
PropID:
69694 611

PropID:
353505

618
PropID:
353234

317
PropID:

4983

510
PropID:
78729 404

PropID:
37904

512
PropID:
22946

411
PropID:
382681

401
PropID:
57727

419
PropID:
35956

300
PropID:
52119

418
PropID:
115193

700
PropID:
52137

711
PropID:
52137

416
PropID:
434635

264-B

271-1A

272-2

262-1A
263-2B

263-2D

263-2C

263-2A

265-A

N
 1

3T
H

 S
T

W ELM AVE

N
 9

TH
 S

T

W
DOWNS AVE

W CALHOUN AVE

N
 9

TH
 S

T

W FRENCH AVE

N
 1

1T
H

 S
T

N
 15TH

 ST

N
 1

1T
H

 S
T

Ü

Date: 4/20/2016
 dredmond

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-25

MF-2 to O-2

Address :
416 N 11th Street

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

200'
NOTIFICATION MAP

Buffer

CaseArea

CaseArea

Buffer

W Elm Ave

W Downs Ave

N
 1

1t
h 

St



Z-FY-16-25 Rezoning MF-2 to O-2, 416 N. 11th Street June 2, 201612

Returned Property Owner Notice



Z-FY-16-25 Rezoning MF-2 to O-2, 416 N. 11th Street June 2, 201613

Returned Property Owner Notice



Z-FY-16-25 Rezoning MF-2 to O-2, 416 N. 11th Street June 2, 201614

Returned Property Owner Notice



Z-FY-16-25 Rezoning MF-2 to O-2, 416 N. 11th Street June 2, 201615

Returned Property Owner Notice



Z-FY-16-25 Rezoning MF-2 to O-2, 416 N. 11th Street June 2, 201616

Returned Property Owner Notice



Z-FY-16-25 Rezoning MF-2 to O-2, 416 N. 11th Street June 2, 201617

Returned Property Owner Notice



Z-FY-16-25 Rezoning MF-2 to O-2, 416 N. 11th Street June 2, 201618

Returned Property Owner Notice



Z-FY-16-25 Rezoning MF-2 to O-2, 416 N. 11th Street June 2, 201619

Existing Zoning District versus Proposed Zoning District

504
PropID:
66679

320
PropID:
49475

317
PropID:
22061

313
PropID:
131849

315
PropID:
96720

304
PropID:
67394

415
PropID:
40971

418
PropID:
35952

410
PropID:
81353

516
PropID:
63152

502
PropID:
19212

707
PropID:
39430

603
PropID:

6513

517
PropID:
44973

519
PropID:
44974

501
PropID:
15953

511
PropID:
33708

610
PropID:
52120

518
PropID:
115193

705
PropID:
69694 611

PropID:
353505

618
PropID:
353234

317
PropID:

4983

510
PropID:
78729 404

PropID:
37904

512
PropID:
22946

411
PropID:
382681

401
PropID:
57727

419
PropID:
35956

300
PropID:
52119

418
PropID:
115193

700
PropID:
52137

711
PropID:
52137

416
PropID:
434635

264-B

271-1A

272-2

262-1A
263-2B

263-2D

263-2C

263-2A

265-A

N
 1

3T
H

 S
T

W ELM AVE

N
 9

TH
 S

T

W
DOWNS AVE

W CALHOUN AVE

N
 9

TH
 S

T

W FRENCH AVE

N
 1

1T
H

 S
T

N
 15TH

 ST

N
 1

1T
H

 S
T

MF-2

O-2

SF-1

SF-1

Ü

Date: 4/20/2016
 dredmond

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-25

MF-2 to O-2

Address :
416 N 11th Street

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

ZONING MAP

CurrentZoning

HI - CUP

UE

UE - PD

SF-1

SF-1 - CUP

SF-1 - PD

SF-2

SF-2 - PD

SF-3

SF-3 - PD

SF-3 - CUP, PD

SFA

SFA-2

SFA-2 - PD

SFA-3

SFA-3 - PD

2F

2F - CUP

2F - PD

MF-1

MF-1 - CUP

MF-1 - PD

MF-2

MF-2 - CUP

MF-2 - PD

MF-3 - PD

O-1

O-1 - CUP

O-1 - PD

O-2

O-2 - CUP

O-2 - PD

NS

NS - CUP

NS - PD

GR

GR - CUP

GR - PD

GR - CUP, PD

CA

CA - CUP

CA - PD

C

C - CUP

C - PD

C - CUP, PD

LI

LI - CUP

LI - PD

LI - CUP, PD

HI

HI - PD

AG

AG - CUP

MH

MH - CUP

MH - PD

MU

MU - CUP

SD-C

SD-C - CUP

SD-H

SD-H - CUP

SD-T

SD-V

T4

T4 - PD

T4 - CUP

T5-C

T5-C - CUP

T5-C - PD

T5-E

T5-E - CUP

T5-E - PD

NO BASE

CUP

PD

Buffer

CaseArea

504
PropID:
66679

320
PropID:
49475

317
PropID:
22061

313
PropID:
131849

315
PropID:
96720

304
PropID:
67394

415
PropID:
40971

418
PropID:
35952

410
PropID:
81353

516
PropID:
63152

502
PropID:
19212

707
PropID:
39430

603
PropID:

6513

517
PropID:
44973

519
PropID:
44974

501
PropID:
15953

511
PropID:
33708

610
PropID:
52120

518
PropID:
115193

705
PropID:
69694 611

PropID:
353505

618
PropID:
353234

317
PropID:

4983

510
PropID:
78729 404

PropID:
37904

512
PropID:
22946

411
PropID:
382681

401
PropID:
57727

419
PropID:
35956

300
PropID:
52119

418
PropID:
115193

700
PropID:
52137

711
PropID:
52137

416
PropID:
434635

264-B

271-1A

272-2

262-1A
263-2B

263-2D

263-2C

263-2A

265-A

N
 1

3T
H

 S
T

W ELM AVE

N
 9

TH
 S

T

W
DOWNS AVE

W CALHOUN AVE

N
 9

TH
 S

T

W FRENCH AVE

N
 1

1T
H

 S
T

N
 15TH

 ST

N
 1

1T
H

 S
T

MF-2

O-2

SF-1

SF-1

Ü

Date: 4/20/2016
 dredmond

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-25

MF-2 to O-2

Address :
416 N 11th Street

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

ZONING MAP

CurrentZoning

HI - CUP

UE

UE - PD

SF-1

SF-1 - CUP

SF-1 - PD

SF-2

SF-2 - PD

SF-3

SF-3 - PD

SF-3 - CUP, PD

SFA

SFA-2

SFA-2 - PD

SFA-3

SFA-3 - PD

2F

2F - CUP

2F - PD

MF-1

MF-1 - CUP

MF-1 - PD

MF-2

MF-2 - CUP

MF-2 - PD

MF-3 - PD

O-1

O-1 - CUP

O-1 - PD

O-2

O-2 - CUP

O-2 - PD

NS

NS - CUP

NS - PD

GR

GR - CUP

GR - PD

GR - CUP, PD

CA

CA - CUP

CA - PD

C

C - CUP

C - PD

C - CUP, PD

LI

LI - CUP

LI - PD

LI - CUP, PD

HI

HI - PD

AG

AG - CUP

MH

MH - CUP

MH - PD

MU

MU - CUP

SD-C

SD-C - CUP

SD-H

SD-H - CUP

SD-T

SD-V

T4

T4 - PD

T4 - CUP

T5-C

T5-C - CUP

T5-C - PD

T5-E

T5-E - CUP

T5-E - PD

NO BASE

CUP

PD

Buffer

CaseArea

504
PropID:
66679

320
PropID:
49475

317
PropID:
22061

313
PropID:
131849

315
PropID:
96720

304
PropID:
67394

415
PropID:
40971

418
PropID:
35952

410
PropID:
81353

516
PropID:
63152

502
PropID:
19212

707
PropID:
39430

603
PropID:

6513

517
PropID:
44973

519
PropID:
44974

501
PropID:
15953

511
PropID:
33708

610
PropID:
52120

518
PropID:
115193

705
PropID:
69694 611

PropID:
353505

618
PropID:
353234

317
PropID:

4983

510
PropID:
78729 404

PropID:
37904

512
PropID:
22946

411
PropID:
382681

401
PropID:
57727

419
PropID:
35956

300
PropID:
52119

418
PropID:
115193

700
PropID:
52137

711
PropID:
52137

416
PropID:
434635

264-B

271-1A

272-2

262-1A
263-2B

263-2D

263-2C

263-2A

265-A

N
 1

3T
H

 S
T

W ELM AVE

N
 9

TH
 S

T

W
DOWNS AVE

W CALHOUN AVE

N
 9

TH
 S

T

W FRENCH AVE

N
 1

1T
H

 S
T

N
 15TH

 ST

N
 1

1T
H

 S
T

MF-2

O-2

SF-1

SF-1

Ü

Date: 4/20/2016
 dredmond

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-25

MF-2 to O-2

Address :
416 N 11th Street

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

ZONING MAP

CurrentZoning

HI - CUP

UE

UE - PD

SF-1

SF-1 - CUP

SF-1 - PD

SF-2

SF-2 - PD

SF-3

SF-3 - PD

SF-3 - CUP, PD

SFA

SFA-2

SFA-2 - PD

SFA-3

SFA-3 - PD

2F

2F - CUP

2F - PD

MF-1

MF-1 - CUP

MF-1 - PD

MF-2

MF-2 - CUP

MF-2 - PD

MF-3 - PD

O-1

O-1 - CUP

O-1 - PD

O-2

O-2 - CUP

O-2 - PD

NS

NS - CUP

NS - PD

GR

GR - CUP

GR - PD

GR - CUP, PD

CA

CA - CUP

CA - PD

C

C - CUP

C - PD

C - CUP, PD

LI

LI - CUP

LI - PD

LI - CUP, PD

HI

HI - PD

AG

AG - CUP

MH

MH - CUP

MH - PD

MU

MU - CUP

SD-C

SD-C - CUP

SD-H

SD-H - CUP

SD-T

SD-V

T4

T4 - PD

T4 - CUP

T5-C

T5-C - CUP

T5-C - PD

T5-E

T5-E - CUP

T5-E - PD

NO BASE

CUP

PD

Buffer

CaseArea

Office 1 (O-1)
Single-Family Dwelling 1 (SF-1)
Office 2 (O-2)
Multi-Family Dwelling 2 (MF-2)
Subject Property Boundary

Existing Multi-Family-2 Zoning District

N
 1

1t
h 

St

W Downs Ave

W Elm Ave

Proposed Office-1 Zoning District

N
 1

1t
h 

St

W Downs Ave

W Elm Ave



1 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO.     

 
(PLANNING NO. Z-FY-16-25) 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A REZONING FROM MULTIFAMILY TWO 
DISTRICT TO OFFICE TWO DISTRICT ON APPROXIMATELY .711 
ACRES OF LAND LOCATED AT LOT 1, BLOCK 1, VANDIVER 
SUBDIVISION, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, AND LOCATED AT 416 NORTH 
11TH STREET, TEMPLE, TEXAS; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN 
OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
THAT: 

 
Part 1: The City Council approves a rezoning from Multifamily Two District to 

Office Two District on approximately .711 acres of land located at lot 1, block 1, 
Vandiver Subdivision, Bell County, 416 North 11th Street, Temple, Texas, as outlined 
in the map attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A,’ and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 
Part 2: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 

changes to the City Zoning Map. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the 
sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable 
and, if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be 
declared invalid by the final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, 
such invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, 
paragraphs or sections of this ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by 
the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, 
sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 4: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage 
in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 

 
Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 

this Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of 
the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open 
Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 2nd day 

of June, 2016. 



2 
 

 
 

 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 16th day of June, 2016. 

     
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
              

____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                 
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



   
 
            

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
 
 

06/02/16 
Item #10 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 4 

 
DEPARTMENT / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
Brian Chandler, Director of Planning 
Mark Baker, Senior Planner 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  FIRST READING - PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-16-26: Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a rezoning from Light Industrial (LI) district to Single Family One (SF-1) district 
on 1.88 +/- acres, out of the Redding Roberts Survey, Abstract No. 345, Bell County, Texas, located at 
3221 West Avenue R. 

 
Figure 3: Aerial Location Map 

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: At their May 2, 2016 meeting, the 
Planning & Zoning Commission voted 7 to 0 to recommend approval of the proposed rezoning as 
recommended by staff and described in the Item Description. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Based on the following, staff recommends approval for a rezoning from 
Light Industrial (LI) district to Single Family One (SF-1) district for the following reasons: 

1. The proposed rezoning is in compliance with the Future Land Use Map’s Neighborhood 
Conservation District; 

2. The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding residential zoning and uses;  
3. The request complies with the Thoroughfare Plan; and   
4. Public facilities are available to serve the subject property.   

 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The subject property contains a 1.88 +/- acre tract of land, which is being proposed 
for rezoning from Light Industrial (LI) district to Single-Family One (SF-1) district. 
 
The rezoning is being requested to Single-Family One (SF-1) to allow the buyer to obtain a home loan 
and allow conveyance and pending sale of the property. Non-residential uses were not anticipated to 
be developed by the current or proposed owners. While the property is anticipated to remain developed 
with a detached single family residence, there are a number of other uses allowed in the SF-1 district 
which, include but are not limited to: 
 



06/02/16 
Item #10 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 4 

 
Permitted & Conditional Use Table – Single Family One (SF-1) 

Agricultural Uses * Farm, Ranch or Orchard 

Residential Uses 
* Single Family Residence (Detached Only)                                                
*  Industrialized Housing                                                      
 * Family or Group Home                                                        

Retail & Service Uses * None 

Commercial Uses *  None 

Industrial Uses * Temporary Asphalt & Concrete Batching Plat (CUP)                               

Recreational Uses * Park or Playground                                                             

Educational & Institutional Uses 

* Cemetery, Crematorium or Mausoleum (CUP)                                         
* Place of Worship 
* Child Care: Group Day Care (CUP)                                                            
* Social Service Center (CUP) 

Restaurant Uses * None 
Overnight Accommodations * None 

Transportation Uses * Railroad Track Right-of-Way                                             

 
Prohibited uses include HUD-Code manufactured homes and land lease communities, most 
commercial uses and industrial uses.  

 Surrounding Property & Uses  
Direction Future Land Use Map Zoning Current Land Use 

Site Neighborhood Conservation LI Existing SF Residence 

North Auto-Urban Multi-Family MF-2 
MF Uses – Chappell Hill 

Apartments 

South Park & Open Space 2F  
SF Uses – Woodlawn Park 

Subdivision 

East 
Neighborhood Conservation 

2F & LI 
SF Uses – Woodlawn Park 

Subdivision 

West Auto-Urban Multi-Family PD, C & LI 
Creekside 

Planned Development 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN (CP) COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 
 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Compliance?
CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use Map YES 
CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  YES 

CP 
Goal 4.1 - Growth and development patterns should 
be consistent with the City’s infrastructure and public 
service capacities 

YES 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks 
Ordinance 

YES 

CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 
 



06/02/16 
Item #10 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 4 

 
Future Land Use Map (CP Map 3.1) 
The subject property is entirely within the Neighborhood Conservation Future Land Use Map district. 
The purpose of the district is to establish standards consistent with those at the time of development 
(i.e., lot size, setbacks etc.) so as not to create nonconforming situations and to ensure that any infill 
activity or redevelopment maintains the neighborhood character. The requested single family-one (SF-
1) zoning, while more restrictive than the surrounding Two-Family (2F) and the developed lots can be 
used as a baseline for which the current residential lot can be developed by, if redevelopment should 
occur on this property.  Therefore, the request is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan. 
 
Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) 
The subject property takes access from West Ave R, a local street that serves the adjacent Woodlawn 
Park subdivision. No plat is triggered by the rezoning or for the conveyance of the real property.  Any 
future platting will address access deficiencies or needed ROW.        
 
Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
Sewer is available to the subject property through an existing 6-inch sewer line in West Avenue R.  
Water is available through an existing 6-inch waterline in West Avenue R.   
 
Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance 
The Trails Master Plan does not identify any trail in West Avenue R or adjoining the property.  
Additionally, since West Ave R is a local street, no sidewalk is required. 
 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: Standards for detached Single Family residential homes in the 
SF-1 district are:  

 SF-1 (Proposed)  
Minimum Lot Size 7500 Square Feet 

Minimum Lot Width 60 Feet 
Minimum Lot Depth 100 Feet 

Front Setback 25 Feet 
Side Setback 10% Lot Width (6’ Min – 7.5’ Max) 

Side Setback (corner) 15 Feet 
Rear Setback 10 Feet 

Max Building Height  2 Stories  
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Eleven notices to property owners within 200-feet of the subject property were sent 
notice of  the public hearing as required by State law and City Ordinance.  As of Tuesday May 24, 2016 
at 9:00 AM, two notices in agreement have been received. 
 
The newspaper printed notice of the public hearing on April 21, 2016, in accordance with state law and 
local ordinance. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
 
 
 



06/02/16 
Item #10 

Regular Agenda 
Page 4 of 4 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Site and Surrounding Property Photos 
Surveyor Sketch (Exhibit A) 
Location Map 
Aerial Map 
Zoning Map 
Future Land Use and Character Map    
Thoroughfare & Trails Map 
Utility Map 
Notification Map 
Returned Property Notices 
Ordinance 
 

 

  



Site & Surrounding Property Photos 
 

 
 

Site – Existing SF Residence (LI) 
 

 
 

Site – Alternative View – SF Residence (LI) 



 
 

North:  Chappell Hill Apartments (MF-2) 
 

 
 

South – Hodge Park and Woodlawn Park Residential subdivision (2F) 

Hodge Park 



 
 

East: Single Family Uses  
Woodlawn SF Residential Subdivision (2F) 

 

 
 

East: Single Family Uses  
Woodlawn SF Residential subdivision (2F) 



 
 

West: Creekside Planned Development (PD) 
 

 
 

West: Existing Mixed Uses (C, LI & PD) 

Creekside PD 



mbaker
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



S
61ST

ST

S IN
TER

STA
TE 3

5

SW
 H
 K
 D
O
D
G
EN

 LO
O
P

S IN
TER

STA
TE 3

5

SW
 H
 K
 D
O
D
G
EN

 LO
O
P

WAVER

IRA
YO

U
N
G
D
R

SW
 H
 K
 D
O
D
G
EN

 LO
O
P

S G
ENE

RA
L B

RU
CE 

DR

WAVET

S GE
NER

AL B
RUC

E DR

Hodge Park

3009

3010

3550

1902

3687

3621
3625

3221

3617

3568

2803

3615

3522

3610
3614

3301

3608

3520

3001
3200

3117

3216

20023500

3204

3205

3112

3602

3212

3209

3201

1804

3009

3108

3604

1714

3008

1800
3105

32043208

1710

3104

3109

3113

1711

3012

3004

3502

3116

3008

3005

3112

3100

3598

3207

2006 3108

Ü

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-26

LI to SF-1

Address :
3221 West Ave R

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

LOCATION MAP

 mbaker
Date: 4/7/2016

Streets

EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

MINOR ARTERIAL

PRIVATE

RAMP

Railroad

Temple Municipal Boundary

Parcels

ETJ Parcels

CaseArea



S
61ST

ST

S IN
TER

STA
TE 3

5

SW
 H
 K
 D
O
D
G
EN

 LO
O
P

S IN
TER

STA
TE 3

5

SW
 H
 K
 D
O
D
G
EN

 LO
O
P

WAVER

IRA
YO

U
N
G
D
R

SW
 H
 K
 D
O
D
G
EN

 LO
O
P

S G
ENE

RA
L B

RU
CE 

DR

WAVET

S GE
NER

AL B
RUC

E DR

Hodge Park

3009

3010

3550

1902

3687

3621
3625

3221

3617

3568

2803

3615

3522

3610
3614

3301

3608

3520

3001
3200

3117

3216

20023500

3204

3205

3112

3602

3212

3209

3201

1804

3009

3108

3604

1714

3008

1800
3105

32043208

1710

3104

3109

3113

1711

3012

3004

3502

3116

3008

3005

3112

3100

3598

3207

2006 3108

Ü

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-26

LI to SF-1

Address :
3221 West Ave R

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

AERIAL MAP

 mbaker
Date: 4/7/2016

Streets

EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

MINOR ARTERIAL

PRIVATE

RAMP

Railroad

Temple Municipal Boundary

Parcels

ETJ Parcels

CaseArea





Date: 4/7/2016

3201

3117

3113

3221

3610

3625

3522

3108

3112

3209

3205
3568

3550

1902

3200

3204

3617

3621

3009

3520

Hodge Park

W
 A
VE R

Ü
Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-26

LI to SF-1

Address :
3221 West Ave R

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

Date: 4/7/2016
 mbaker

FUTURE LAND
USE MAP

EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

MINOR ARTERIAL

PRIVATE

RAMP

Parcels

Future LUP

Agricultural/Rural

Auto-Urban Commercial

Auto-Urban Mixed Use

Auto-Urban Multi-Family

Auto-Urban Residential

Business Park

Estate Residential

Industrial

Neighborhood Conservation

Parks & Open Space

Public Institutional

Suburban Commercial

Suburban Residential

Temple Medical Education District

Urban Center

CaseArea



Date: 4/7/2016

3201

3117

3113

3221

3610

3625

3522

3108

3112

3209

3205
3568

3550

1902

3200

3204

3617

3621

3009

3520

Hodge Park

W
 A
VE R

Ü
Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-26

LI to SF-1

Address :
3221 West Ave R

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

Date: 4/7/2016
 mbaker

Parcels

Thoroughfare Plan

Expressway

Major Arterial

Proposed Major
Arterial

Minor Arterial

Proposed Minor
Arterial

Collector

Proposed
Collector

Trails Master Plan

[ EXISTING, CITY
WIDE SPINE

! EXISTING,
COMMUNITY
WIDE
CONNECTOR

EXISTING,
LOCAL
CONNECTOR

[ PROPOSED,
CITY WIDE
SPINE

! PROPOSED,
COMMUNITY
WIDE
CONNECTOR

PROPOSED,
LOCAL
CONNECTOR

CaseArea

THOROUGHFARE
AND TRAILS MAP



GF

GF

GF

GF

6
6

W
AVE

R

Hodge Park

3550

3009

3221
3204

3205

3209

3522

3201

3200

1902

3112

3621

3568

3117

3625

Ü

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-26

LI to SF-1

Address :
3221 West Ave R

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

UTILITY MAP

 mbaker
Date: 4/7/2016

Manhole

Gravity Main

GF Hydrant

Main

Parcels

CaseArea









1 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO.     

 
(PLANNING NO. Z-FY-16-26) 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A REZONING FROM LIGHT INDUSTRIAL 
DISTRICT TO SINGLE FAMILY ONE DISTRICT ON APPROXIMATELY 
1.88 ACRES OUT OF THE REDDING ROBERTS SURVEY, ABSTRACT 
NO. 345, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, LOCATED AT 3221 WEST AVENUE R; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
THAT: 

 
Part 1: The City Council approves a rezoning from Light Industrial district to 

Single Family One District on approximately 1.88 acres, out of the Redding Roberts 
Survey, Abstract No. 345, Bell County, Texas, located at 3221 West Avenue R, as 
outlined in the map attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A,’ and made a part hereof for all 
purposes. 

 
Part 2: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 

changes to the City Zoning Map. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the 
sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable 
and, if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be 
declared invalid by the final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, 
such invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, 
paragraphs or sections of this ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by 
the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, 
sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 4: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage 
in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 

 
Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 

this Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of 
the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open 
Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 2nd day 

of June, 2016. 



2 
 

 
 

 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 16th day of June, 2016. 

     
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
              

____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                 
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



   
 
            

COUNCIL AGEDNA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
 
 

06/02/16 
Item #11 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 3 

 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Brian Chandler, Director of Planning 
Tammy Lyerly, Senior Planner 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING – Z-FY-16-27: Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing amendments Ordinance No. 2005-4025 for the existing Planned Development-
General Retail District (PD-GR) with the Planned Development site plan for Lots 6 & 7, Block 1, Adam's 
Island Commercial Subdivision, for a new building with parking lot and sidewalks, new water and sewer 
services, and new storm sewer. 

 
 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  At its May 2, 2016, meeting the 
Planning and Zoning Commission voted 7/0 to recommend approval of Z-FY-16-27, amending the 
original Planned Development (Ordinance No. 2005-4025) with the proposed Planned Development 
site plan. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Based on the following, staff recommends amending the original 
Planned Development by approving the proposed site plan for the following reasons: 

1. Compliance with the Future Land Use Plan; 
2. Compliance with surrounding zoning and land uses; 
3. Compliance with the Thoroughfare Plan;  
4. Public facilities are available to serve the subject property; 
5. The Planned Development site plan exceeds the 5% landscaping plan requirements for 

non-residential development, per the Unified Development Code (UDC).  
6. The site plan is designed around existing oak and elm trees. 
7. The proposed Planned Development site plan must meet all applicable Unified 

Development Codes (UDC), Engineering/Drainage, Building Codes, and Fire Codes 
during the building permit process, regardless of any approved site plan. 

 
ITEM SUMMARY:  This Planned Development site plan request is associated with property located on 
Lots 6 and 7, Block 1, Adam’s Island Commercial Subdivision.  The original Planned Development 
(General Retail) District for this property, approved by Ordinance No. 2005-4025, did not include a 
Planned Development site plan for this portion on the Planned Development. 



06/02/16 
Item #11 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 3 

 
The applicants request amending the existing Planned Development-General Retail District (PD-GR) 
for this property, approved by Ordinance No. 2005-4025, to allow construction of a new retail building 
and parking lot, per the attached exhibits.   
 
The proposed site plan not only exceeds parking space requirements.  It also exceeds the 5% 
landscaping plan requirements for non-residential development, per the Unified Development Code 
(UDC) and is consistent with the adjacent site plan for Lots 1 through 5, approved by City Council on 
July 17, 2014 (Ordinance 2014-4677). 
 
The Development Review Committee (DRC) reviewed the proposed Planned Development site plan on Monday, 
April 18, 2016.   
 
 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES: The following table provides the direction from the property, 
Future Land Use Plan (FLUP) designation, existing zoning and current land uses: 
 
Direction FLUP     Zoning Current Land Use 
Site  Suburban Commercial  PD-GR Undeveloped Property 
North            Suburban Commercial  AG  Agricultural 
South            Suburban Commercial  AG            Major Arterial (Adams Avenue) 
East           Suburban Commercial  PD-GR Undeveloped Property 
West          Suburban Commercial  PD-GR Undeveloped Property 
 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 
 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Compliance? 
CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use and Character (FLUP) Yes 
CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  Yes 

CP 
Goal 4.1 - Growth and development patterns should be 
consistent with the City’s infrastructure and public service 
capacities 

Yes 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance Yes 
CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 

 
Future Land Use and Character Plan (FLUP) (CP Map 3.1) 
The subject property is within the Suburban Commercial District according to the Comprehensive Plan 
/ Future Land Use Plan (FLUP).  The existing Planned Development and requested site plan are in 
compliance with the Suburban Commercial FLUP district.   
 
Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) 
The subject property has frontage along West Adams Avenue, a major arterial.  The subject property 
also fronts Adams Lane, a local street.  The only entrance to the site will be from Adams Lane, but the 
proposed building and business activities will be adjacent to West Adams Avenue. 
 
 



06/02/16 
Item #11 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 3 

 
The site plan reflects a series of sidewalks from the parking lot to every entrance into the proposed 
building. 
  
Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
Water will be provided by a new connection to the existing 6-inch water line along Adams Lane.  Sewer 
will be provided through a new connection to the existing 10-inch sanitary sewer line along Adams 
Lane.   
 
A new HDPE storm sewer will be built on this site, as well as a new reinforced concrete detention pond 
outlet structure. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Nine notices of the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing were sent out 
to property owners within 200-feet of the subject property.  As of Wednesday April 27, 2014 at 1:00 
PM, five response notification letters were returned in approval of the request and none were returned 
in opposition.   
 
The newspaper printed notice of the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearings for Z-FY-16-27 
on April 21, 2016, in accordance with state law and local ordinance. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Site and Surrounding Property Photos 
Zoning & Notification Map 
Location map with Aerial  
Future Land Use and Character Map    
Thoroughfare & Trails Map 
Utility Map 
Proposed Planned Development Site Plan Exhibits 
Ordinance No 2005-4025 (original PD-GR Zoning) 
Notification Response Letters 
Ordinance 
 
  



 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES: 
The following table shows the subject property, existing zoning and current land uses: 
 

Direction Zoning 
Current Land 

Use Photo 

Subject 
Property PD-GR 

Undeveloped 
Property 
 

 

East PD-GR  Undeveloped 
Property 

 

West PD-GR  Undeveloped 
Property 

 



Page 2 of 3 
 

Direction Zoning 
Current Land 

Use Photo 

South AG  Major Arterial 

 
 

North AG Agricultural  

 

 



9017
PropID:
457400

9012
PropID:
387768

8850
PropID:
63067

9219
PropID:
457395

9201
PropID:
457396

9121
PropID:
457397

9101
PropID:
457399

9109
PropID:
457398

8901
PropID:
69482

W ADAMS AVE

ADAMS LN

GR

AG

Ü

Date: 4/20/2016
 tlyerly

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-27

PD-GR Site Plan

Address :
9100 & 9108 Adams Ln

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

200'
NOTIFICATION MAP

CurrentZoning

HI - CUP

UE

UE - PD

SF-1

SF-1 - CUP

SF-1 - PD

SF-2

SF-2 - PD

SF-3

SF-3 - PD

SF-3 - CUP, PD

SFA

SFA-2

SFA-2 - PD

SFA-3

SFA-3 - PD

2F

2F - CUP

2F - PD

MF-1

MF-1 - CUP

MF-1 - PD

MF-2

MF-2 - CUP

MF-2 - PD

MF-3 - PD

O-1

O-1 - CUP

O-1 - PD

O-2

O-2 - CUP

O-2 - PD

NS

NS - CUP

NS - PD

GR

GR - CUP

GR - PD

GR - CUP, PD

CA

CA - CUP

CA - PD

C

C - CUP

C - PD

C - CUP, PD

LI

LI - CUP

LI - PD

LI - CUP, PD

HI

HI - PD

AG

AG - CUP

MH

MH - CUP

MH - PD

MU

MU - CUP

SD-C

SD-C - CUP

SD-H

SD-H - CUP

SD-T

SD-V

T4

T4 - PD

T4 - CUP

T5-C

T5-C - CUP

T5-C - PD

T5-E

T5-E - CUP

T5-E - PD

NO BASE

CUP

PD

CaseArea

Buffer



Date: 4/20/2016

9017

9012

8850

9201

9121

9101

9109

8901

WADAMSAVE

ADAMS LN

Ü
Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-27

PD-GR Site Plan

Address :
9100 & 9108 Adams Ln

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

Date: 4/20/2016
 tlyerly

FUTURE LAND
USE MAP

EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

MINOR ARTERIAL

PRIVATE

RAMP

Parcels

Future LUP

Agricultural/Rural

Auto-Urban Commercial

Auto-Urban Mixed Use

Auto-Urban Multi-Family

Auto-Urban Residential

Business Park

Estate Residential

Industrial

Neighborhood Conservation

Parks & Open Space

Public Institutional

Suburban Commercial

Suburban Residential

Temple Medical Education District

Urban Center

CaseArea



Date: 4/20/2016

9017

9012

8850

9201

9121

9101

9109

8901

WADAMSAVE

ADAMS LN

Ü
Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-27

PD-GR Site Plan

Address :
9100 & 9108 Adams Ln

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

Date: 4/20/2016
 tlyerly

Parcels

Thoroughfare Plan

Expressway

Major Arterial

Proposed Major
Arterial

Minor Arterial

Proposed Minor
Arterial

Collector

Proposed
Collector

THOROUGHFARE
AND TRAILS MAP



GF6

14

ADAMS LN

W ADAMS AVE

8850

9012

9017

9109

9121

9101

8901

9201

Ü

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-27

PD-GR Site Plan

Address :
9100 & 9108 Adams Ln

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

UTILITY MAP

 tlyerly
Date: 4/20/2016

Manhole

Gravity Main

GF Hydrant

Main

Parcels

CaseArea



Revisions

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 S
TA

TU
S

1

PU
D

 S
IT

E 
PL

A
N

A
D

A
M

S 
IS

LA
N

D
B

LO
C

K
 1

 L
O

T 
6 

A
N

D
 7

N
EW

 S
IT

E 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

PARKING CALCULATOR

LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS - W. ADAMS AVENUE

LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS - ADAMS LANE

LANDSCAPE NOTES



Revisions

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 S
TA

TU
S

2

TO
PO

G
R

A
PH

IC
 A

N
D

 U
TI

LI
TY

 M
A

P

A
D

A
M

S 
IS

LA
N

D
B

LO
C

K
 1

 L
O

T 
6 

A
N

D
 7

N
EW

 S
IT

E 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T



















1 
 

ORDINANCE NO.     
(PLANNING NO. Z-FY-16-27) 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2005-4025 FOR THE EXISTING 
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT-GENERAL RETAIL DISTRICT WITH THE 
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT SITE PLAN FOR LOTS 6 & 7, BLOCK 1, 
ADAM’S ISLAND COMMERCIAL SUBDIVISION, FOR A NEW BUILDING 
WITH PARKING LOT AND SIDEWALKS, NEW WATER AND SEWER 
SERVICES, AND NEW STORM SEWER; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Whereas, this Planned Development site plan request is associated with property 

located on lots 6 and 7, block 1, Adam’s Island Commercial Subdivision - the original 
Planned Development (General Retail) District for this property, approved by Ordinance 
No. 2005-4025, did not include a Planned Development site plan for this portion of the 
Planned Development; 

 
Whereas, the applicants are requesting the City amend the existing Planned 

Development-General Retail District for this property, approved by Ordinance No. 2005-
4025, to allow construction of a new retail building with parking lot and sidewalks, new 
water and sewer services, and new storm sewer; 

 
Whereas, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended on May 2, 2016, 

that Ordinance No. 2005-4025, be amended to allow construction of a new retail building 
and parking lot - the proposed site plan not only exceeds parking space requirement, it also 
exceeds the 5% landscaping plan requirements for non-residential development, per the 
Unified Development Code, and is consistent with the adjacent site plan for lot 1 through 
lot 5; and  

 
Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 

interest to authorize this action. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 

THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council amends Ordinance No. 2005-4025, to allow construction 
of a new retail building with parking lot and sidewalks, new water and sewer services, and 
new storm sewer associated with property located on lots 6 and 7, block 1, Adam’s Island 
Commercial Subdivision that is more particularly described in field notes attached as 
Exhibit A to this Ordinance.  

 
Part 2: The City Council approves the Planned Development site plan depicted in 

Exhibit B to this Ordinance, and the Planning Director is authorized to approve minor 
changes to the elements of the site plan, including but not limited to screening, buffering, 
landscaping, signage, exterior building materials, building elevations and modification of 
the overall site layout. Substantial changes require approval by City Council. 



2 
 

 
 

 
Part 3: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 

changes to the City Zoning Map. 
 

Part 4: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the 
sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if 
any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared 
invalid by the final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or 
sections of this ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council 
without the incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph 
or section. 

 
Part 6: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 

accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 

 
Part 7: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 2nd day of 

June, 2016. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 16th day of June, 2016. 

     
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
              

______________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                               
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM  
 

06/02/16 
Item #12 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 3 

 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Brian Chandler, Director of Planning 
Tammy Lyerly, Senior Planner 
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-16-28:   Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a rezoning from Single Family-One District (SF-1) to Two Family District (2F) for 
an existing duplex, on Pt 2 of Lot 2, Block 1, Roselawn Addition, located at 1408 and 1410 North 5th 
Street. 

 
 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  At its May 2, 2016, meeting the 
Planning and Zoning Commission voted 7/0 to recommend approval of a permanent rezoning from 
Single Family-One District (SF-1) to Two Family District (2F). 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of a rezoning from Single Family One 
District (SF-1) to 2F District (2F) for the following reasons: 

1. Compliance with the Future Land Use Plan; 
2. Compliance with surrounding zoning and land uses;  
3. Compliance with the Thoroughfare Plan; and 
4. Public and private facilities are available to serve the subject property. 

 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The applicant requests a rezoning from Single Family-One District (SF-1) to Two 
Family District (2F) for continued use of the property’s existing duplex, which was built in the 1930’s.  
The applicants have a buyer for the property and request this rezoning to bring this property into 
compliance with the Unified Development Code (UDC). 
 
The existing duplex, which is located to the north of the North Temple Historic District, is considered a 
legal non-conforming use because it was built prior to the existence of the City of Temple Zoning 
Ordinance, which was adopted in 1944.   

 
 



06/02/16 
Item #12 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 3 

 
The 2F zoning district permits single-family to duplex housing, with approximately seven units per acre 
possible, and is designed to accommodate single-family and duplex dwellings as an intermediate 
classification allowing an orderly transition from singe family neighborhoods to higher densities of 
residential use. 
 
The following residential uses are permitted by right in the proposed 2F zoning district: 

 Single Family Detached 
 Single-Family Attached 
 Duplex 

 
Prohibited uses include townhouse, HUD-Code manufactured home land lease community or 
subdivision, Patio home, apartment, recreational vehicle park, and retail and commercial uses, among 
others. 
 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS:  Dimensional standards for development in the 2-F District are as 
follows: 

 Minimum lot size – 4,000 Sq. Ft. 
 Minimum Lot Width – 50 feet (single-family detached dwelling) 
 Minimum Lot Width – 60 feet (duplex) 
 Minimum Lot Depth – 100 feet 
 Front Yard Setback – 25 feet 
 Side Yard Setback  –  5 feet 
 Side Yard Setback (corner)  – 15 feet  
 Rear Yard Setback –  10 feet  

 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES: The following table provides the direction from the property, 
Future Land Use Plan (FLUP) designation, existing zoning and current land uses: 
 
Direction FLUP     Zoning     Current Land Use 
Site  Neighborhood Conservation SF-1         Two-Family Residential 
North            Neighborhood Conservation SF-1     `     Single-Family Residential 
South            Neighborhood Conservation SF-1      Single-Family Residential 
East           Auto-Urban Commercial   MF-1 & SF-1     Multi & Single-Family Residential 
West          Neighborhood Conservation SF-1      Single-Family Residential 
 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map 
 

Compliance? 
CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use and Character (FLUP) Yes 
CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  Yes 

CP 
Goal 4.1 - Growth and development patterns should be consistent 
with the City’s infrastructure and public service capacities 

Yes 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance Yes 
CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 



06/02/16 
Item #12 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 3 

 
Future Land Use and Character Plan (FLUP) (CP Map 3.1) 
The property is within the Neighborhood Conservation character district of the Choices ’08 City of 
Temple Comprehensive Plan.  The applicant’s requested rezoning to 2F District complies with this 
character district. 
 
Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) and Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalk Ordinance 
The subject property fronts North 5th Street, a local street, which is appropriate for residential uses.   
 
Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
Water and sewer services for this property are provided by existing water and sewer lines within the 
North 5th Street right-of-way. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE:  21 notices of the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing were sent out to 
property owners within 200-feet of the subject property as required by State law and City Ordinance.  
As of Tuesday, May 24, 2016, one notification response letter has been received in favor of the 
proposed rezoning and one notice has been returned in opposition to the proposed rezoning.   
 
The newspaper printed notice of the public hearing on April 21, 2016, in accordance with state law and 
local ordinance. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Site and Surrounding Property Photos 
Zoning & Notification Map 
Location map with Aerial  
Future Land Use and Character Map    
Utility Map 
Notification Response Letter 
Ordinance 
 

  



 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES: 
The following table shows the subject property, existing zoning and current land uses: 
 

Direction Zoning 
Current Land 

Use Photo 

Subject 
Property SF-1 Duplex 

 

 

 

 

East 
MF-1 
and 
SF-1 

Multi-Family 
and Single-
Family 
Residential 
Use 

  

 



Page 2 of 4 
 

Direction Zoning 
Current Land 

Use Photo 

West SF-1  
Single-Family 
Residential 
Uses 

 

South SF-1  
Single-Family 
Residential 
Uses 

 

North SF-1 
Single-Family 
Residential 
Uses  

 
 

N 7th St 







Date: 4/25/2016

1405

1315

1402

1408
1405

1415

1419

1419

1417
1417

318

1415

1412

1418

1420

1403

1402

316

314

1318

N
 7
TH

 S
T

N
 5
TH

 S
T

W NUGENT AVE

Ü
Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-28

SF-1 to 2F

Address :
1408 & 1410 N 5th St

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

Date: 4/25/2016
 myarberry

FUTURE LAND
USE MAP

EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

MINOR ARTERIAL

PRIVATE

RAMP

Parcels

Future LUP

Agricultural/Rural

Auto-Urban Commercial

Auto-Urban Mixed Use

Auto-Urban Multi-Family

Auto-Urban Residential

Business Park

Estate Residential

Industrial

Neighborhood Conservation

Parks & Open Space

Public Institutional

Suburban Commercial

Suburban Residential

Temple Medical Education District

Urban Center

CaseArea











1 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO.     

 
(PLANNING NO. Z-FY-16-28) 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A REZONING FROM SINGLE FAMILY-ONE 
DISTRICT TO SINGLE FAMILY-TWO DISTRICT FOR AN EXISTING 
DUPLEX LOCATED ON PART 2 OF LOT 2, BLOCK 1, ROSELAWN 
ADDITION, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, AND LOCATED AT 1408 AND 1410 
NORTH 5TH STREET, TEMPLE, TEXAS; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN 
OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
THAT: 

 
Part 1: The City Council approves a rezoning from Single Family-One District 

to Single Two Family District for an existing duplex, on part 2 of lot 2, block 1, 
Roselawn Addition, located at 1408 and 1410 North 5th Street, as outlined in the map 
attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A,’ and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 
Part 2: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 

changes to the City Zoning Map. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the 
sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable 
and, if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be 
declared invalid by the final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, 
such invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, 
paragraphs or sections of this ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by 
the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, 
sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 4: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage 
in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 

 
Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 

this Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of 
the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open 
Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 2nd day 

of June, 2016. 



2 
 

 
 

 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 16th day of June, 2016. 

     
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
              

____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                 
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



   
 
            

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
 
 

06/02/16 
Item #13 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 3 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Brian Chandler, Director of Planning 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-16-32:   Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a rezoning from Two Family (2F) District for the east 40 feet of Lots 1 and 2, 
Block 1, Fairview Addition (1401 and 1405 South 33rd Street), and from TMED T5-e located at 1404 
South 31st Street to Planned Development District TMED T5-e (PD T5-e) to allow for a commercial 
parking lot to serve an existing business. 

 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  At their May 16, 2016 meeting, the 
Planning & Zoning Commission voted 7 to 0 to recommend approval of the proposed rezoning as 
presented by Planning staff.  
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the rezoning and accompanying 
development plan (site plan) with the following conditions: 

1. A wood privacy fence or masonry wall at least 6 feet in height is installed around the north, 
south and west boundaries of the parking lot to provide screening from adjacent 
residential properties 

2. Curb and gutter is installed 
3. Parking lot is paved with asphalt or concrete 
4. The east 40 feet of Lots 1 and 2, Block 1, Fairview Addition shall be used only for 

accessory parking tied to the business at 1404 South 31st Street or as part of the 
residential uses at 1401 and 1405 South 33rd Street 

 

Staff recommends approval of an exception to the following TMED T5-e (Neighborhood Edge Zone) 
development standard for the parking lot: 
 

 Sec 6.3.10.D Parking Lot Landscaped: Landscaped parking islands are required in all parking 
lots 

 
 
 



06/02/16 
Item #13 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 3 

 

ITEM SUMMARY: The applicant, Seleese Thompson, has requested approval of the rezoning to allow 
for supplementary parking for her business, Precious Memories, which would be located to the rear 
across the alley.  She purchased the two residential properties at 1401 and 1405 South 33rd Street with 
the intention of converting the east 40 feet of those lots to parking.  The following provides additional 
relevant details: 

 The TMED standards encourage parking to the rear accessed by public alleys 
 The 20-foot alley is paved and is currently used for solid waste pick up for the businesses in that 

block of South 31st Street  
 The two single-family residential lots (1401 and 1405 South 33rd Street) would still comply with 

the 100-foot minimum lot length requirements in the 2F (Two-Family) zoning district 
 The 5300 sf retail building would require 22 parking spaces (1 space per 250 sf of total floor 

area) per Sec. 7.5 of the Unified Development Code (UDC):  
o Precious Memories currently has 19 spaces on-site  
o Additional rear parking would bring the business into compliance with Sec. 7.5 

 

OTHER COMPLIANCE: 
 Compliance Notes 

Zoning  

Yes 

TMED requires parking to the rear; additional parking 
brings Precious Memories into compliance with TMED 
and with UDC retail parking space numbers; wood 
privacy fence will screen from adjacent residential uses

Future Land Use Map 

Yes 

Existing business in “Auto-Urban Commercial” 
designation; parking lot in "Neighborhood 
Conservation" designation –  privacy fence screening 
addresses compatibility and the 40-foot depth of the 
parking lot allows for preservation of the two existing 
homes 

Thoroughfare Plan Yes South 31st is a Major Arterial 
Trails N/A Not applicable to request 
Utilities Yes Utilities are available; sewer line in alley 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE: Owners of twenty-seven (27) properties within 200-feet of the subject property, were 
sent notice of the public hearing as required by State law and City Ordinance. As of May 24, 2016, 5 
notices in agreement had been received (including 2 from the property owner) and 1 in disagreement.  
 

The newspaper printed notice of the public hearing on May 5, 2016, in accordance with state law and 
local ordinance. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Site and Surrounding Property Photos 
Development Plan (Site Plan) 
Aerial Map/Location Map 
Zoning Map/Notification Map 
Thoroughfare Plan/Trails Map 
Utilities Map 
Returned Property Notices 
Ordinance  



SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES: 
The following table shows the subject property, existing zoning and current land uses: 

Direction Zoning 
Current Land 

Use Photo 

Subject 
Property 

TMED 
T5-e 
and 2F 

Retail and 
Parking/ 
Residential 



Page 2 of 4 

Direction Zoning 
Current Land 

Use Photo 

North 2F 
Single-Family 
Residential 

South 2F 
Single-Family 
Residential 

East TMED 
T5-3 

Subject 
Property 
(Precious 
Memories) 



Page 3 of 4 

Direction Zoning 
Current Land 

Use Photo 

South 
(1501-
1513 S. 
33rd 
Street) 

2F 
Paved 
Commercial 
Parking  



PRECIOUS MEMORIES

ALL COUNTY SURVEYING, INC.



WAVE L

S
35

TH
ST

S
37

TH
ST

S
33

R
D
ST

WAVEP

S 
27

TH
ST

S
29

TH
ST

WAVEK

S
39

TH
ST

WAVER

S23RD
 ST

WAVEJ

S
31

ST
ST

WAVEM

S
25
TH

ST

Ü

Zoning Case :
  Z-FY-16-32

2F, TMED T5-e
to

TMED T5-e (PD T5-e)

Address :
1401 & 1405 S 33RD ST

1404 S 31ST ST

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

AERIAL MAP

 jgibson
Date: 5/9/2016

Streets

EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

MINOR ARTERIAL

PRIVATE

RAMP

Railroad

Temple Municipal Boundary

Parcels

ETJ Parcels

case_area



1603
PropID:
116786

1605
PropID:
44039

1604
PropID:
5288

1606
PropID:
37273

1608
PropID:
48910

1603
PropID:
80523

1501
PropID:
239393

1505
PropID:
37488

1509
PropID:
128656

1513
PropID:
29258

1515
PropID:
122780

1406
PropID:
68741

1408
PropID:
107060

1410
PropID:
74258

1412
PropID:
96419

1502
PropID:
94132

1504
PropID:
33537

1506
PropID:
47006

1508
PropID:
101316

1517
PropID:
58217

1503
PropID:
55882

1501
PropID:
49800

1411
PropID:
48295

1409
PropID:
97047

1407
PropID:
126251

1405
PropID:
32018

1403
PropID:
74568

1402
PropID:
62496

1411
PropID:
103110

1408
PropID:
130312

1119
PropID:
440221202

PropID:
125691

1206
PropID:
101297

1208
PropID:
53880

1214
PropID:
105645

1502
PropID:
63137

1201
PropID:
96185

1207
PropID:
44611

1206
PropID:
92166

1209
PropID:
56742

1216
PropID:
105456

1215
PropID:
75403

1218
PropID:
98650

1219
PropID:
100481

1503
PropID:
109593

1308
PropID:
105803
1310

PropID:
105804

1405
PropID:
106182

1305
PropID:
95843

1307
PropID:
63745

1306
PropID:
5961

1309
PropID:
63688

1308
PropID:
72741

1311
PropID:
67994

1804
PropID:
68685

1215
PropID:
117996

1718
PropID:
102867

1212
PropID:
64893

1704
PropID:
45339

1207
PropID:
27964

1211
PropID:
103750

1618
PropID:
44191

1605
PropID:
40629

1305
PropID:
76543

1307
PropID:
34214

1317
PropID:
93028

1319
PropID:
74955

1321
PropID:
128342

1323
PropID:
95450

1719
PropID:
125756

1307
PropID:
58394

1309
PropID:
108124

1311
PropID:
4386

1313
PropID:
56110

1317
PropID:
14204

1709
PropID:
5160

1701
PropID:
5159

1308
PropID:
34212

1310
PropID:
44889

1314
PropID:
37502

1320
PropID:
37517

1324
PropID:
37518

1809
PropID:
53803

1306
PropID:
9907

1308
PropID:
55275

1310
PropID:
77001
1312

PropID:
103371
1316

PropID:
103300
1320

PropID:
103859

1302
PropID:
5318

1605
PropID:
370900

1602
PropID:
64428

1604
PropID:
64429

1606
PropID:
94099

1601
PropID:
18109

1602
PropID:
13486

1601
PropID:
124677

1401
PropID:
46334

1407
PropID:
106818

1411
PropID:
131169

1413
PropID:
63056

1503
PropID:
68947

1507
PropID:
122790

1511
PropID:
122779

1519
PropID:
67395

1402
PropID:
69065

1518
PropID:
103380

1519
PropID:
40886

1401
PropID:
58148

1401
PropID:
1376

1401
PropID:
103183

1419
PropID:
36128

1402
PropID:
109719

1410
PropID:
79177

1405
PropID:
113554

1201
PropID:
65204

1205
PropID:
73135

1505
PropID:
108993

1315
PropID:
93125

1316
PropID:
11486

1319
PropID:
30795

1202
PropID:
101113

1208
PropID:
100460

1325
PropID:
14203

1304
PropID:
44438

1320
PropID:
112513

1319
PropID:
95556

1328
PropID:
128674

1322
PropID:
94101

1320
PropID:
504

1209
PropID:
122782

1402
PropID:
94875

1508
PropID:
122775

1516
PropID:
104249

1404
PropID:
414

1408
PropID:
44189

463-A

463-C

463-D

W AVE M

W AVE M

W AVE M

S 
31

ST
ST

S 
29

TH
 S
T

S 
35

TH
 S
T

S 
27

TH
 S
T

W AVE L

S 
33

R
D

ST

W AVE P

T5-E

C

T5-C

GR

2F

2F

T5-E

GR

GR

T4

T5-C

Ü

Date: 5/12/2016

Z-FY-16-32

2F, TMED T5-e
to

TMED T5-E (PD T5-e)

1401 & 1405 S 33RD ST
1404 S 31ST ST

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

200'
Notification Map

CurrentZoning

HI - CUP

UE

UE - PD

SF-1

SF-1 - CUP

SF-1 - PD

SF-2

SF-2 - PD

SF-3

SF-3 - PD

SF-3 - CUP, PD

SFA

SFA-2

SFA-2 - PD

SFA-3

SFA-3 - PD

2F

2F - CUP

2F - PD

MF-1

MF-1 - CUP

MF-1 - PD

MF-2

MF-2 - CUP

MF-2 - PD

MF-3 - PD

O-1

O-1 - CUP

O-1 - PD

O-2

O-2 - CUP

O-2 - PD

NS

NS - CUP

NS - PD

GR

GR - CUP

GR - PD

GR - CUP, PD

CA

CA - CUP

CA - PD

C

C - CUP

C - PD

C - CUP, PD

LI

LI - CUP

LI - PD

LI - CUP, PD

HI

HI - PD

AG

AG - CUP

MH

MH - CUP

MH - PD

MU

MU - CUP

SD-C

SD-C - CUP

SD-H

SD-H - CUP

SD-T

SD-V

T4

T4 - PD

T4 - CUP

T5-C

T5-C - CUP

T5-C - PD

T5-E

T5-E - CUP

T5-E - PD

NO BASE

CUP

PD



Date: 5/9/2016

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

W AVE M

W AVE M

W AVE M

S
2
5
TH

ST

S 
25

TH
 S
T

S 
31

ST
 S
T

S 
31

ST
 S
T

S 
37

TH
 S
T

S 
35

TH
 S
T

S 
29

TH
 S
T

S 23R
D ST

S 
27

TH
 S
T

W AVE K

S 
33

R
D
 S
T

WAVEL

W AVE P

Ü

Z-FY-16-32

2F, TMED T5-e
to

TMED T5-e (PD T5-e)

1401 & 1405 S 33RD ST
1401 S 31ST ST

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

Date: 5/9/2016

Parcels

Thoroughfare Plan

Expressway

Major Arterial

Proposed Major
Arterial

Minor Arterial

Proposed Minor
Arterial

Collector

Proposed
Collector

Trails Master Plan

[ EXISTING, CITY
WIDE SPINE

! EXISTING,
COMMUNITY
WIDE
CONNECTOR

EXISTING,
LOCAL
CONNECTOR

[ PROPOSED,
CITY WIDE
SPINE

! PROPOSED,
COMMUNITY
WIDE
CONNECTOR

PROPOSED,
LOCAL
CONNECTOR

case_area

THOROUGHFARE
AND TRAILS MAP



GF

2

1
2

6

2

2

2

6

S 
33

R
D
ST

S 
29

TH
 S
T

S 
35

TH
 S
T

S 
31

ST
ST

W AVE M

1605

1401

1408

1315

1304

1320

1316

1508

1503

1505

1404

1419

1411

1305

1320

1310

1402

1401

1402

1401

1411

1410

1605

1403

1504

1319

1406

1508

1405

1413

1412

1518

1502

1407

1408

1328

1506

1308

1310

1325

1323

1405

1311

1319

1319

1324

1307

1317

1308

1321

1314

1317
1313

1309

1307

1401

1407

1502

1501

1505

1513

1509

1409

1411

1311

1501

12091719

1503

12141701

1309

1310

1517 1507

1511

1503

1307

1515

1312

1308

1519

1709

1519

1305

1316

1410

1405

1320

Ü

Zoning Case :
  Z-FY-16-32

2F, TMED T5-E
TO

TMED T5-E (PD T5-E)

ADDRESS :
1401 & 1405 S 33RD ST

1404 S 31ST ST

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

UTILITY MAP

 jgibson
Date: 5/9/2016

Manhole

Gravity Main

GF Hydrant

Main

Parcels

case_area















1 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO.     

 
(PLANNING NO. Z-FY-16-32) 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A REZONING FROM TWO FAMILY DISTRICT FOR 
THE EAST 40 FEET OF LOT 1 AND LOT 2, BLOCK 1, FAIRVIEW ADDITION, 
LOCATED AT 1401 AND 1405 SOUTH 33RD STREET, AND FROM TMED T5-e 
LOCATED AT 1404 SOUTH 31ST STREET TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT TMED T5-e TO ALLOW FOR A COMMERCIAL PARKING LOT TO 
SERVE AN EXISTING BUSINESS; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
THAT: 

 
Part 1: The City Council approves a rezoning from Two Family District for the 

east 40 feet of Lots 1 and 2, Block 1, Fairview Addition located at 1401 and 1405 South 
33rd Street, and from TMED T5-e located at 1404 South 31st Street to Planned 
Development District TMED T5-e, to allow for a commercial parking lot to serve an 
existing business, and more particularly described in Exhibit A.  

 
Part 2: At its May 16, 2016 meeting, the Planning and Zoning Commission 

recommended approval of the proposed rezoning, with the exceptions and conditions 
listed as follows: 

 
Planned Development District TMED T5-e Exceptions: 
1. A wood privacy fence or masonry wall at least 6 feet in height is installed 

around the north, south and west boundaries of the parking lot to provide screening from 
adjacent residential properties; 

2. Curb and gutter is installed; 
3. Parking lot is paved with asphalt or concrete; and 
4. The east 40 feet of lot 1 and lot 2, block 1, Fairview Addition will only be used 

for accessory parking tied to the business at 1404 S. 31st Street or as part of the residential 
uses at 1401 and 1405 S. 33rd Street. 

 
Part 3: Staff recommends approval of an exception to the following TMED T5-e 

(Neighborhood Edge Zone) development standard for the parking lot: 
1. Per Section 6.3.10.D. Parking Lot Landscaping:  

 Landscaped parking islands are required in all parking lots. 
 

Part 4: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 
changes to the City Zoning Map. 

 
Part 5: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the 

sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if 
any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared 
invalid by the final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or  



2 
 

 
 
sections of this ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council 
without the incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph 
or section. 

 
Part 6: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 

accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 

 
Part 7: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 2nd day of 

June, 2016. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 16th day of June, 2016. 

 
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
 

______________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                               
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

06/02/16 
Item #14 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT. /DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 
Brian Chandler, Planning Director 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution calling public hearings to consider the 
annexation of approximately 2.149 acres of Dubose Road right-of-way located to the south of FM 93 
and north of Forrester Road and directing Staff to develop a municipal services plan. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: On May 4, 2016, the City received a letter from Bell County Judge Jon Burrows 
requesting that the City annex a portion of Dubose Road right-of-way which is currently located outside 
of the Temple city limits, but within the City’s extraterritorial jurisdiction. Dubose Road is contiguous on 
three sides to the current Temple city limits. Section 43.054 allows the City to annex a publicly or 
privately owned area, including a strip following the course of a road, if the boundaries of the 
municipality are contiguous to the area to be annexed on at least two sides.  

Pursuant to Chapter 43 of the Local Government Code, the City must adopt a municipal services plan 
for the annexed area and conduct two public hearings. The proposed resolution would direct Staff to 
develop the municipal services plan and set the dates for the public hearings.  

The proposed dates for the public hearings are July 21, 2016 (regular meeting) and July 22, 2016, 
(special meeting, 8:30 a.m., Council Chambers). Planning staff will present a municipal services plan 
at the hearing on July 21, 2016, as required by State law, showing how the City will serve the area 
proposed to be annexed. The proposed schedule anticipates completion of annexation proceedings 
through a Second Reading at City Council on September 1, 2016.   

FISCAL IMPACT:  The City would be responsible for future maintenance of the road due to the 
annexation of approximately 2.149 acres of Dubose Road right-of-way. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Map 
Letter from Judge Jon Burrows 
Resolution 



Valley
Ranch
Park

BURTON LN

SO
UT

HW
OO

D D
R

DU
BO

SE
 RD

FORRESTER RD

W FM 93

SU
ND

OW
N 

CT WICKER DR
DU

BO
SE

 R
D

VALLEY PAR K DR

SUN
VA

LL
EY

DR

VALLEY RANCH DR

VALLE Y M IST DR

GR
EE

NF
IEL

D 
DR

VALLEY MIST CT

CR
YS

TA
L V

AL
LE

Y
DR

TWILIGHT DR

SO
UT

HW
OO

D 
DR

KTON
RDTAYLOR`S VALL EY RD

G e o r g e t o w n  R R
G e o r g e t o w n  R R

¶

Annexation Area
City Limits
Parcels

Dubose Road Annexation
DISCLAIMER:

GIS products are for informational purposes and may not
have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering,

or surveying purposes.  They do not represent an on-the-
ground survey and represent only the approximate relative

location of property boundaries and other features.

Approx. 2.149 Acres

Annexation Area

0 250 500125 Feet



Valley
Ranch
Park

BURTON LN

SO
UT

HW
OO

D D
R

DU
BO

SE
 RD

FORRESTER RD

W FM 93

SU
ND

OW
N 

CT WICKER DR
DU

BO
SE

 R
D

VALLEY PAR K DR

SUN
VA

LL
EY

DR

VALLEY RANCH DR

VALLE Y M IST DR

GR
EE

NF
IEL

D 
DR

VALLEY MIST CT

CR
YS

TA
L V

AL
LE

Y
DR

TWILIGHT DR

SO
UT

HW
OO

D 
DR

KTON
RDTAYLOR`S VALL EY RD

G e o r g e t o w n  R R
G e o r g e t o w n  R R

¶

Annexation Area
City Limits
Parcels

Dubose Road Annexation
DISCLAIMER:

GIS products are for informational purposes and may not
have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering,

or surveying purposes.  They do not represent an on-the-
ground survey and represent only the approximate relative

location of property boundaries and other features.

Approx. 2.149 Acres

Annexation Area

0 250 500125 Feet





 
 1

 RESOLUTION NO.     
  

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, CALLING PUBLIC HEARINGS TO CONSIDER THE 
ANNEXATION OF APPROXIMATELY 2.149 ACRES OF DUBOSE ROAD 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LOCATED TO THE SOUTH OF FM 93 AND NORTH OF 
FORRESTER ROAD, DIRECTING STAFF TO DEVELOP A MUNICIPAL 
SERVICES PLAN; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 Whereas, on May 4, 2016, the City received a letter from Bell County Judge Jon 
Burrows requesting that the City annex a portion of Dubose Road right-of-way which is 
currently located outside of the Temple city limits, but within the City’s extraterritorial 
jurisdiction; 
 
 Whereas, Dubose Road is contiguous on three sides to the current Temple city limits and 
Texas Local Government Code Section 43.054 allows the City to annex a publicly or privately 
owned area, including a strip following the course of a road, if the boundaries of the municipality 
are contiguous to the area to be annexed on at least two sides;  
 
 Whereas, pursuant to Chapter 43 of the Local Government Code, the City must adopt a 
municipal services plan for the annexed area and conduct two public hearings; 
 

 Whereas, the proposed dates for the public hearings are July 21, 2016 (regular meeting) 
and July 22, 2016, (special meeting) - planning Staff will present a municipal services plan at the 
hearing on July 21, 2016, as required by State law, showing how the City will serve the area 
proposed to be annexed; 
 

Whereas, the proposed schedule anticipates completion of annexation proceedings 
through a Second Reading at City Council on September 1, 2016;  
 

Whereas, the City will be responsible for future maintenance of the road upon 
annexation; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council directs Staff to develop a Municipal Services Plan and calls 
public hearings for the annexation of approximately 2.149 acres of Dubose Road right-of-way 
located to the south of FM 93 and north of Forrester Road (see map attached as Exhibit ‘A’). 
 

Part 2: The City Council hereby calls two public hearings to gather comments 
concerning the proposed annexation described above, with the first public hearing scheduled for 
the Regular Council Meeting on July 21, 2016 at 5:00 PM, and the second public hearing at a 
Special Called City Council Meeting on July 22, 2016 at 8:30 AM, both public hearings to be 
held in the City Council Chambers on the 2nd floor of the Municipal Building located at 2 North 
Main St. in Temple, Bell County, Texas. 

 
 



 
 2

 
 

Part 3: The City Staff is hereby authorized to relocate the second public hearing to a 
suitable location within the area to be annexed in the event of protest. 
 

Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of June, 2016. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 

       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 


	Korompai BID Tabulation.pdf
	Bid Tabulation Sheet

	Z-FY-16-22 Staff Report Attachments.pdf
	16-013 - PLAT - FINAL.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	TEMPLE - FINAL






